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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of
NHDC LTD (“the Company"”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2025
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended as
on that date, and Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended as on that
date (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements gives the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and gives a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state
of affairs of the company as on March 31, 2025 and its Profit, Changes in Equity and its
cash flows for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SA) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and Rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s code of ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence that is obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters, for incorporation in our Report.

Si Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
1 | Recognition and measurement of | We have obtained an understanding of the
\"/ m sale of pow CERC Tariff Regulations, Orders,

The Company recognizes revenue from | Guidelines and the Company's Accounting
Sale of Power in accordance with the | Policy and procedures in respect of
principles of Ind AS 115, based on tariffs | revenue recognition and measurement of
approved by the Central Electricity | revenue from sale of power comprising of
Regulatory Commission (CERC). As on | capacity and energy charges and adopted
the audit date, revenue is recognized on | the following audit procedures:-

the basis of latest tariff regulations
notified by CERC. However, in| e Evaluated and tested the effectiveness

November 2024, the Company has also of the Company's design of internal
filed a tariff petition for the period 2024- financial controls relating to
29, which is pending for final order from recognition and measurement of
CERC. revenue from sale of power.

e We understood determination and
For the current year, the Company has working of the various factors and
recorded revenue based on the parameters in billing and revenue
principals approved in latest tariff recognition in terms of CERC
petition (FY 2019-24), applying the Regulations.
Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) for FY 2024-25 | e Verified the calculation of Annual Fixed
as approved by the Board resolution Cost (AFC) for FY 2024-25 as approved
dated May 6, 2024. by the Board resolution dated May 6,

2024 and its application in revenue

The CERC Tariff Regulations notified on recognition.
March 7, 2019, stipulate that capital | e Examined the tariff petition filed by the
costs considered for tariff fixation in the Company in November 2024 for the
current period shall be subject to truing period 2024-29,
up at the end of the tariff period. o Reviewed the computation of truing up
Accordingly, sales for the year have adjustments based on actual capital
been recognized based on principles expenditure of admitted items as per
established in CERC regulations 2024- CERC regulations.

29 and actual capital expenditure of
admitted items, with tariff adjustments
calculated for truing up.




Further, revenue related to Solar Power During our examination of energy

projects have been recognised based on charge billing practices, we observed
the rate decided as per respective Power that the Company has calculated
Purchase Agreement (PPA). energy charges based on saleable

design energy (DE). According to
This is considered as key audit matter established procedures, annual design
due to the nature and extent of energy is determined by CERC on the
estimates made as per the CERC Tariff basis of water utilisation report issued
Regulations, which is the basis for by the Narmada Controlling Authority
recognition and measurement of (NCA). However, we noted that the
revenue from sale of powers. Company is taking base design energy

as per last CERC order for its current
billing calculations and latest water
account issued by NCA .

Subject to the above audit
observations, the recognition and
measurement of revenue from sale of
power from Hydro Power projects is
considered to be adequate and
reasonable.

Further, the revenue from sale of solar
power project is based on the report of
State Energy Account (SEA).

Capitalisation _of Solar Power
Projects

The company has got executed capital | We evaluated the system of internal
works including Solar Power Projects. In | control about the capital work in progress
the earlier year, the 8 MW Sanchi Solar | and capitalization thereof, with reference
Project was commissioned, and in the | to identification and testing of key controls.
current financial year, the 88 MW |We assessed various factors including
Floating Solar Project was | carry forward and bringing the asset to its
commissioned. state of intended use, the timeliness and
These solar power projects require a | accuracy of capitalization of assets when
substantial period of time to get ready | ready for the intended use.

for their intended use. Due to their
materiality in the context of the
company's balance sheet, this area had
a significant effect on our overall audit
strategy and allocation of resources in
planning and completing our audit.




The capitalization of these projects
involves significant management
judgment in determining:

e The appropriate timing of
capitalization when projects are
ready for intended use

e The proper  classification of
expenditures between capital and
revenue nature

e The identification of qualifying costs
eligible for capitalization during the
construction period.

Inappropriate capitalization or delays in
capitalization of projects ready for
intended use could result in material
misstatement of fixed assets,
depreciation and profit for the year.

Compliance of Ind AS 116 with

r f 1 r men
pursuant to Ind AS 116 .
The Power Purchase Agreement

("PPA") executed between NHDC Ltd
("the Company") and M.P. Power
Management Company Limited ("the
Beneficiary"), highlighted that:-

e The Company has entered into a
PPA with the Beneficiary, being
the sole off-taker, for a
substantial duration
approximating the stipulated
operational life of the Hydro
Power Stations.

e The contractual terms, confirms
that the arrangement satisfies the
criteria of an embedded lease as
defined under Indian Accounting
Standard 116 ("Ind AS 116") on
Leases.

e In accordance with Ind AS 116
requirements, the Company has
appropriately bifurcated its

As part of our audit procedures, we
performed the following:-

e We have verified the Finance Lease

Models of the Indira Sagar Power
Station and Omkareshwar Power
Station in  preparation of the
Standalone Financial Statement. These
models are based on capital cost and
Annual Fixed Cost (including
projected).

The company has identified and
segregated the components of energy
bills to those relating to the lease
model and Sale of Power.

The energy bills contain various factors
of billing as per tariff order, including
Capacity Charges, Energy Charges,
tariff adjustments, etc. We confirmed
that elements of billing falling under
Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) have been
appropriately dealt with in the Lease
model.

{ 2




revenue from power generation
operations into:

a) Revenue from lease rentals;
and

b) Revenue from sale of power.

e The significant portion of lease
rental income should be
recognized as finance lease
income and disclosed under
"Revenue from Operations" in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,
while the remaining portion is
appropriately required to be
adjusted against the lease
receivable balance.

e The lease receivables are to be
classified in the Balance Sheet as
"Non-current Assets" and partly
as "Current Assets - Financial
Assets - Others" in accordance
with their maturity profile.

e The Company is required to apply
the appropriate discount rate for
lease payments as required by
Ind AS 116, using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. This rate
has to be recalculated at each
reporting date to reflect changes
arising from:

a) Additional capitalization or
de-capitalization of underlying
assets; and

b) Revisions in the trued-
up/estimated Annual Fixed
Charges (AFC) as prescribed in
the latest notifications issued by
the Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC), to the
extent applicable.

The embedded lease arrangement under
Ind AS 116 is identified as a Key Audit
Matter due to the significant complexity
in accounting treatment and the
material impact on the financial

e We verified that these models have
proper linkage to the codes of accounts
in the Trial Balance.

e We examined the reconciliation
statement showing the total billed and
unbilled amount mapped to Income
from Lease model and Income from
Sale of Power.

e Sl. no 17(B) of Note 34- Explanatory
notes to account, which provides the
maturity analysis of lease receivables
and changes in carrying amount of net
investment in finance lease.

e We evaluated the reasonableness of
the discount rate applied by
management by assessing the
methodology used and verifying the
inputs to the calculation.

e We tested the mathematical accuracy
of the lease calculations, including the
bifurcation of revenue streams and the
classification of lease receivables
between current and non-current
portions.

e We assessed the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures in
the financial statements relating to the
embedded lease arrangement.

Based on the procedures performed, we
conclude that the recognition of revenue
and measurement of Lease rent receivable
is adequate and reasonable. The Company
has appropriately applied the requirements
of Ind AS 116 in accounting for the
embedded lease arrangement in the Power
Purchase Agreement, including the
bifurcation of revenue, determination of
the interest rate implicit in the lease, and
classification of lease receivables.




statements. The determination of the
interest rate implicit in the lease
requires specialized knowledge and
involves frequent recalculations based
on changes in asset base and regulatory
parameters. These calculations
materially affect revenue recognition
patterns, asset classification, and
overall financial presentation.
Additionally, the bifurcation of revenue
streams and proper classification of
lease receivables between current and
non-current categories demands
considerable judgment. The pervasive
nature of these accounting
determinations across multiple financial
statement elements and their
susceptibility to estimation uncertainty
necessitated heightened audit attention
and specialized procedures in this area.

Regulatory Deferral Account
Bal n R nition

The operating activities of the Company
are subject to cost of service regulations
whereby tariff charged for electricity
generated is based on allowable capital
and other cost and expenses and
stipulated return there against
Regulatory Deferral Accounts are based
on the estimates with respect to
recoverability thereof as per the current
CERC Tariff Regulations on final
approval and notifications.

Accruals are determined based on tariff
regulations and past tariff orders and
are subject to verification and approval
by regulators. Further the costs incurred
are subject to prudential checks and
prescribed norms. Significant judgments
are made in determining the accruals
including interpretation  of  tariff
regulations

We have assessed the application of the
provisions of Ind AS 114, Guidance Note
on Accounting for Rate Regulated Activities
(Previous GAAP) issued by the ICAI in
respect of the Company's revenue
recognition policy for sale of power. We
have verified the accounting of revenue in
accordance with the CERC Tariff
Regulations, Orders, Circulars, Guidelines
and the Company's internal circulars and
procedures in respect of recognition and
measurement of revenue from sale of
energy comprising of capacity and energy
charges.

- It is observed that the consideration of
various items under “"Net movement in
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances” and
the treatment in the audited accounts are
in compliance with the accounting
principles laid down in Ind AS 114

Based on the above procedure performed,
the recognition, measurement and




The above rate regulation results in | adequacy of disclosure of revenue as per
creation of right (asset) or an obligation | Ind AS 114 and Ind AS 115 for FY 2024-25
(liability) as envisaged in the accounting | are considered to be adequate and
framework which is not the case in other | reasonable.

industries. Guidance Note on Accounting
for Rate Regulated Activities (Previous | Attention is invited to SI no 21 of Note-34-
GAAP) issued by the ICAI is applicable. | other Explanatory notes to Accounts.

We called for a statement of MAT credit |
entitlement year wise till 2024-25, how
much MAT credit was utilized. And how
The company has recognized Deferred | much the MAT credit yet to be utilised in
Tax Asset relating to MAT credit | future. We also reviewed the future cash
entitlement as per Ind AS 12. Utilization | flow submitted for tariff revision and also
of MAT credit will result in lower outflow | future cash flow assessment to determine
of income tax in future years and | whether the MAT credit shall be utilized in
accordingly Regulatory Deferral Liability | future.

attributable to the said MAT credit
entitlement has also been recognised, | Based on the above procedures performed,
payable to the beneficiaries in|the recognition and measurement of
subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff | deferred tax relating to MAT credit
Regulations. Further partial benefit of | entitlement and corresponding Regulatory
MAT credit is to be appropriated / | Deferral Liability are reasonable.

adjusted in future years through
effective tax rate adjustment | We have verified the accounting of
mechanism as applicable for the tariff | regulatory deferral account debit balance
Regulations 2024-29 and accordingly | with regard to recognition and
accounted as Regulatory Deferral | measurement.

Liability.

The recoverability of this deferred tax | It is explained that CERC Regulations
assets relating to MAT credit entitlement | provide that deferred tax liability upto 31%t
is dependent upon the generation of | March 2009 shall be recovered from the
sufficient future taxable profits to utilise | beneficiaries as and when the same gets
such entitlement within the stipulated | materialized. Further, for the period
period prescribed under the Income Tax | commencing from 1t April 2014, CERC
Act, 1961. Tariff Regulations provide for grossing up
of the return on equity based on effective
The Company has recognised regulatory | tax rate for the financial year based on the
deferral account debit balance for |actual tax paid during the year on the
adjustment against deferred tax | generation income. The deferred tax
liabilities (net) in the financial | recoverable from beneficiaries in future
statements. years was presented as an adjustment to
deferred tax liabilities and was  not
recognised as Regulatory Deferral Account.




The debit balance in Regulatory Deferral | Based on an opinion dated 06.05.2018,
Account is disclosed in Note No 14.1 and | issued by the Expert Advisory Committee
credit balance in Note No 14.2|of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
separately in the balance sheet. of India (EAC of the ICAI) the same has
been recognised as regulatory deferral
account debit balance, during the year.

Based on the above procedure performed,
the recognition, measurement and
adequacy of disclosure for regulatory
deferral account debit balance is adequate
and reasonable.

Impairment assessment of Plant, | We evaluated the Company’s process of
Property and Equipment (PPE) impairment assessment in assessing the
appropriateness of the impairment model
The company has a material asset base | jncluding the independent assessment of

(PPE) in physical terms and not reflected | discount rate, economic growth rate,
as such in the financial statements. Most | terminal value etc.

of the PPE are reflected in Lease rent

receivable under embedded finance | we have obtained the In-house technical
lease model in pursuance of Ind AS 116. | committee report on impairment and
The company has identified that each of | reviewed. The committee constituted has
the power generating plant as Cash | senior officials from Commercial, O8&M,
Generating Units (CGU). Ind AS 36-| cg&P and Finance division.

Impairment of Assets requires an entity
to assess on each Balance Sheet date | we have also evaluated and checked the
whether there is any indication that an | cash flow forecasts prepared by the
asset may be impaired. If any such | company taking into consideration of CERC
indication exists, the entity is required | Regulations applicable for the tariff period
to estimate the recoverable amount of | of 5 years form 01t April 2024 to 31st
the asset. Based on the assessment, the | March 2029 along with the assumptions.
company has concluded that there
exists no significant impairment | The fact that there is no restructuring or
indicator or any impairment in respect of | discontinuation of operation of the
the CGUs of the company tested for | pusiness of company during the period,
impairment during the year 2024-2025. | there is no deterioration in the financial
Hence no provision for impairment | condition of beneficiary, and that company
against PPE has been considered | has taken Insurance coverage of Assets of
necessary by the company. Projects was considered by the committee.

We considered this as a key audit matter
as the carrying value of PPE requires | The assessment of impairment indicators
impairment assessment based on future | based on internal & external sources of
expected cash flows associated with the | information for power stations have been
power plants.
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considered for the purpose of impairment
analysis.

Based on the above procedures performed,
we observed that the company’s
assessment of impairment of the PPE is
adequate and reasonable.

Contingent Liabilit Note 34.1(a
of Financial Statements)

There are number of litigations pending
before various forums, against the
company other than capital
commitments on capital works. These
litigations are against the company in
matter of disputes over land
compensation cases, disputed tax and
other matters related to tariff,
contractor’'s payments subject to
arbitration or challenging of arbitration
awards.

Claims made against the Company are
significant. These are pending for
decision before arbitration or other
judicial forums and consequential and
possible impact thereof and
provisions/disclosure required have
been based on the management’s
assessment of the probability of the
occurrence of the liability.

The management does not expect that
the above claims/obligations (including
under litigation), when ultimately
concluded and determined, will have a
material and adverse effect on the
company’s results of operations or
financial condition.

Our audit procedures, based on which we
arrived at the conclusion regarding the
reasonableness of the Contingent
Liabilities, included the following:

e We evaluated the contractual terms
and conditions and management's
rationale for the adequacy of
provisions made and amounts
remaining unprovided against
demands made against the Company.

e We held discussions with management
and reviewed correspondence and
Notes on related matters.

e We placed reliance on decisions in
similar matters and assessed the
probability of liabilities arising from
pending cases, considering provisions
made by Management pending final
judgments/decisions.

e We reviewed the appropriateness and
adequacy of disclosures made by
management as required by Ind AS 37
"Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.”

oo
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Information her than th andalone Financial atements _and Auditor

Report Thereon:

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report including
Annexures, Management Discussion and Analysis Report and Report on Corporate
Governance, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
reports thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e When we read the other information as stated above and if we conclude that there is
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and describe necessary actions required as per applicable laws
and regulations.

Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, Cash Flows and Changes
in Equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application
of appropriate implementation and maintenance accounting policies: making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

o



In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future



events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluation the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequence of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 (the order) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the "Annexure -1” as a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order to the extent applicable.

2. Based on the verification of books of account of the Company and according to
information and explanations given to us, we give below a report on the Directions
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of Section 143 (5)
of the Act:

Impact on
Action AC.C ount's 5
S| Directions Reply taken Rnandial
No Statements
thereon
of the
company
1 Whether the Company | As per the information and
has system in place to | explanations given to us,
process all the | the Company has a system
accounting transactions | in place to process all the
through IT system? If |accounting transactions
yes, the implications of | through IT system. SAP-
processing of accounting | ERP has been
transactions outside IT |implemented w.e.f. 1%
system on the integrity of | April, 2023 for all the
the accounts along with | processes like Financial
the financial implications, | Accounting (FI), Payroll,
if any, may be stated Material Management
(MM), Commercial billing / | No action
Industry Solution Utilities | required | -
(ISU), etc. Based on the
audit procedures carried
out and as per the
information and
explanations given to us,
no accounting transactions
have been processed
/carried outside the IT
system. Accordingly, there
are no implications on the
integrity of the accounts.




Whether there is any | According to information | No action NIL

restructuring of an | and explanations given to | required

existing loan or cases of | us and based on our audit,

waiver/write off of debts/ | there is no case of

loans/ interest etc. made | restructuring of an existing

by a lender to the|loan or cases of

Company due to the | waiver/write off of debts /

Company’s inability to | loans / interest etc. made

repay the loan? If yes, | by lender to the Company.

the financial impact may

be stated. Whether such

cases are properly

accounted for? (In case,

lender is a Government

company, then this

direction is also

applicable for statutory

auditor of lender

company).

Whether funds (grants/ | According to information | No action | NIL

subsidy etc.) received/ | @hd explanations given to | required

receivable for specific | US and based on our audit,

schemes from | the company has

Central/State accounted for and utilized

Government or its|the funds received for

agencies were properly | SPecific  schemes  from

accounted for/utilized as | Central / State

per its terms and | Government or its

conditions? List the cases | @9encies as per the terms

of deviation. and conditions of the
schemes.

3.

Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as
required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(i) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(i) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by
the company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(iii) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.



(iv) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

(v) In terms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 05th June 2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding
disqualifications of the Directors, are not applicable as it is a Government Company.

(vi) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure -2” to this report. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(vii) As per Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, section 197 of the Act is not applicable to
the Government Companies. Accordingly, reporting in accordance with the
requirement of provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

(viii) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone financial statements as on 31-Mar-2025. (Refer Note
no:34(1) to the standalone Financial Statements).

b) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Indian
Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts. However, there are no such derivative contracts dealt by the company,
hence provision for foreseeable losses towards derivative contracts are not
applicable.

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) Omitted as per Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021, which
has been notified by MCA vide Notification dt. 24-Mar-2021.

e) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate




Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)of Rule 11(e),
as provided above, contains any material misstatement.

f) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

g) Under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company
has used accounting software i.e. SAP-ERP for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software
and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has
been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For B.C.P. JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
/Flrm Registration No - 000802C

., CA AMIT JAIN
-~ —Partner
Date : 09t May , 2025 M. No. : 077986
Place : Bhopal UDIN : 25077986BMJIPDF8300




ANNEXURE -1’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 2024-25

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirement’s” section of our report to the Members of NHDC Ltd. of even date]

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of

audit, we state that:

(i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-to-Use Assets and
Intangible Assets:

(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment
and relevant details of right-to-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

intangible assets.

(b) As per the information and explanations given by the management and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, Property, Plant and
Equipment have been physically verified by the management (except for submerged
assets in water) during the year in accordance with its annual assets and inventory
verification policy of the company, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the company, location of its plants and the nature of its assets.
Discrepancieé noticed on such verification during the year have been appropriately
dealt in books of account. According to information and explanations given by the

management and in our opinion, the same are not material.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the
title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company,
the major portion of immovable properties is land acquired for dam, resettlement
and rehabilitation of affected people, these are right-to-use of land and so no title
deed exists in the name of the company, as on the balance sheet date except for the

following where the title/ lease deeds are not available with the Company




Gross Whether
Period held | Reason for
carrying promoter,
. - indicate | not being
Description of | value Held in the | director or
range, held in
property ## name of their
where name of
(Rs. in relative or )
appropriate | company
Lakhs) employee
Land Right to Use- Land owned Right to
Indira Sagar by Govt of use
] 86,569 No -
Project (ISP)- Madhya granted by
102352.14 Acres Pradesh Govt of MP
Land Right to Use- Land owned Right to
Omkareshwar by Govt of use
. 37,547 No =
Project (0OsP)- Madhya granted by
14405.87 Acres Pradesh Govt of MP

##Expenditure incurred are compensatory in nature including payment made to land
outsees and resettlement expenses incurred up to 31-Mar-2025. Pursuant to
application of Ind AS 116, the power station(s) have been classified under finance
Lease. After application of finance Lease, a component of Land-Right to Use of ISPS
& OSPS excluding government grant have been derecognised and presented as
value of Underlying Asset. Accordingly, the carrying value of Land Right to Use
shown as Rs. 1,224,116 Lakhs against Rs. 3,74,016 Lakhs (Refer Note no. 2.3 of

Financial Statements).

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of records of the Company, the company has not revalued any of its
property, Plant and Equipment (including right-to-use assets) and intangible assets

during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of records of the company, there are no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at 31t March, 2025
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(a) As per the information and explanations given by the management, the
management has conducted physical verification of inventory (except for goods in
transit) at all locations in reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion based
on information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification
of inventory followed by the management, is reasonable and adequate in relation to
the size of the company and the nature of its business. The company is maintaining
proper records for inventory and no discrepancies exceeding 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. Minor discrepancies noticed

during physical verification were properly dealt in the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 Crore, in aggregate, at any point of time
during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of

current assets and hence reporting clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3
(iii) (a) (A&B) & 3(iii) (b, ¢, d, e & f) is not required.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 with respect to

loans, investments, guarantees and security made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act. In respect of overdue earnest money deposits and security
deposits, Management is of the view that overdue earnest money deposits and
security deposits of suppliers/contractors appearing in the books are in the nature of
retention money for performance of contracts or supply of goods and services and

accordingly, not to be treated as deemed deposits by virtue of amendment in rule 2,




(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

sub rule (1), clause (c) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Amendment
Rules 2016.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company
pursuant to rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, in respect
of the products/ services of the company which is electricity generation. We are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not however made a detailed examination of these records

with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the
company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess, Electricity Duty, Energy Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities to the extent applicable to it.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
in arrears as on 31-03-2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they

become payable.

(b) According-to the information and explanations given to us and as per books of
accounts of the company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a)
which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any

dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per books of
accounts of the company, there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year,




(a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations
given by the management. During the year, the Company has neither defaulted
in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender nor has taken any loan/borrowings from any lender. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the order is not required.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

~

our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not been
declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

~—

(c
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not taken any
term loan during the year. However, the company had an outstanding short term
loan at the beginning of the year and the loan was utilised for the required
purpose for which loan was obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

~

our examination of the records of the Company, funds raised on short term basis

have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, Associates or Joint ventures. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not required.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies, hence reporting on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the

Order is not required.

(x) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the management the company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the vyear.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) is not required.




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or Optionally)

and hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not required.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to
the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of
materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the

Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub
section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the

Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower
complaints have been received by the Company during the year (and up to the date

of this report).

(a) The company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii)(a),

(b), (c) of the order is not required.

According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act 2013 where applicable and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the Note No. 34 to the standalone financial statements, as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to
the company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and

extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the

company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons




(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

connected with them as per the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act. Hence,

reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company,

a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

d) The Group does not have any CIC.

Hence reporting under clauses 3(xvi) (a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order is not

required.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our

audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, accordingly

reporting under clause 3(xviii) is not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a




(xx)

(xxi)

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company

as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not required.

Since, the financial statement is a standalone financial statement, reporting to the

clause (xxi) of the order is not required.

For B.C.P. JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No - 000802C

VAN,
), JA

Mo e

| BHOPA

CA AMIT JAIN
Partner
Date : 09*h May , 2025 M. No. : 077986
Place : Bhopal UDIN : 25077986BMIPDF8300



ANNEXURE - ‘2’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 2024-25

[Referred to in paragraph 3(vi) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirement’s” section of our report to the Members of NHDC Ltd. of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NHDC
Limited (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended

on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable

financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the

Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those.
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Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial

controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
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use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31t March 2025,
based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B.C.P. JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No - 000802C

s,
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L!OPAL/ /;\’J }
CA AMIT JAI <&
Partner et
Date : 09t May , 2025 M. No. : 077986

Place : Bhopal UDIN:-25077986BMIPDF8300




NHDC LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in X Lakhs)

As per our report of ever date attached

For B.C.P. Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn.No. 000802C)

. (8 B
- ]
CA AMIT JAIN
Pariner
M.No. 077986

UDIN: 25077986BMJPDF8300

Place:
Nata-

Bhopal
na N INIK

PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
ASSETS
(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 72,660 17,738
b) Capital Work In Progress 2.2 2,236 28,931
c) Right Of Use Assets 23 74,952 72,415
d) Investment Property 2.4 » -
e) Intangible Assets 2.5 - -
f) Intangible Assets under development 2.6 - -
g) Financial Assets
i) Investments 3.1 - &
ii) Trade Receivables 3.2 - 3,041
iii) Loans 3.3 2,926 3,152
iv) Others 34 3,61,066 3,61,368
h) Other Non Current Assels 4 2,446 1,470
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 5,16,286 4,88,115
(2) CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 5 1,390 1,307
b) Financial Assets
i) Investments 6 - 3
ii) Trade Receivables 7 39,520 45744
iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 4,627 740
iv) Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 164,674 1,90,182
v) Loans 10 717 648
vi) Others i 15,577 23,552
c) Currenl Tax Assets (Net) 12 - 4
d) Other Currenl Assets 131 2,625 2,345
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,29,130 2,64,522
(3) Assets Classified as held for Sale 13.2 2 -
(4) Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balances 141 41,043 40,797
TOTAL ASSETS 7,86,461 7,93,434
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 15.1 1,96,258 1,96,258
(b) Other Equity 15.2 3,71,964 3,70,610
TOTAL EQUITY 5,68,222 5,66,868
(2) LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 16.1 = =
i) Lease Liabilities 16.2 5,019 64
iiiy Other financial liabilities 16.3 105 59
b) Provisions 17 822 732
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 43,185 24,843
d) Other non-current Liabilities 19 86,966 87,879
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,36,097 1,13,577
(3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 201 - 4,300
ii) Lease Liabilities 20.2 194 7
iii) Trade Payables 20.3
Total oulstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 855 904
Total oulstandlng‘dues of Creditors other than micro 743 637
and small enterprises
iv) Other financial liabilities 20.4 12,597 21,523
b) Other Current Liabilities 21 6,253 9,019
c) Provisions 22 32,386 33,892
d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 - 230
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 53,028 70,512
(4) Regulatory Deferral Account Credit Balances 14.2 29,114 42 477
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,18,239 2,26,566
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 7,86,461 7,93,434
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-34

For and on be* alf of Board of Directors

P

R Jasn -

Vo RAJEEV JAIN
% Managing Director
DIN: 10725127 ,

/ \K. TRIBATHI

CW(ary

Director
DIN: 09319007

K

DEEPAK AHUJA
General Manager (Fin) &
Chief Financial Officer




NHDC LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

CA AMIT JAIN N
Partner NHAC

M.No. 077986
UDIN: 25077986BMJPDF8300

Place:
Date:

Bhopal
09-05-2025

Wl
V.K.T
Co. S

THI
etlary

PARTICULARS N No; 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
INCOME
i) Revenue from Operalions 24.1 1,40,111 1,26,876
i)  Other Income 24.2 19,353 23,151
TOTAL INCOME 1,59,464 1,50,027
EXPENSES
i) Generation Expenses 25 331 194
ii)y  Employee Benefits Expense 26 20,390 15,575
i)  Finance Cosls 27 2,647 1,412
iv)  Depreciation and Amortization Expense 28 5,374 6,573
v)  Other Expenses 29 23,375 20,552
TOTAL EXPENSES 52,117 44,306
PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT BALANCES AND TAX 1,07,347 1,05,721
Exceplional items - .
PROFIT BEFORE REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT BALANCES AND TAX 1,07,347 1,05,721
income Tax Expenses 30.1
i) Current Tax 18,918 18,679
ii)  Deferred Tax 18,342 22,044
Total Tax Expenses 37,260 40,723
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE NET MOVEMENTS IN REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT
70,087 64,998
BALANCES
Movement in Regulalory Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) 31 13,609 16,226
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (A) 83,696 81,224
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (B) 30.2
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (Net of Tax)
(a) Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefil obligations (199) (73)
Less:-Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) 107 39
Sub total (a) (306) (112)
(b) Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI - -
Sub total (b) - -
Total (i)=(a)+(b) (306) (112)
(i) tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss (Net of Tax)
(a) Changes in the fair value of debt investments at FVTOCI - -
(b) Cost of Hedge Reserve % -
Total (ii) - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax) (B)=(i+ii) (306) (112)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A+B) (COMPRISING OF PROFIT AND OTHER 83.390 81.112
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR) ! !
Earning per share (Basic and Diluted)
(Equity shares, face value of ¥ 1000/- each) 34(13)
Excluding movements in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances 357.11 331.19
Including movements in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances 426.46 413.86
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-34
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
i
Q rJon -
For B.C.P. Jain & Co. o
Chartered Accountants RAJEEV JAIN MADH AWPANY
(Firm Regn.No. 000802C) ’ Managing Director Director
DIN: 10725127 DIN: 09319007

Ky

DEEPAK AHUJA
General Manager (Fin) &
Chief Financial Officer




NHDC LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in % Lakhs)

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax for the year including movements in Regulatory Deferral Account
Balance

Less: Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
Profit before Tax

ADD :

Depreciation and Amortization

Finance Cost (Net of EDC)

Provisions (Net loss)

Tariff Adjustment (loss)

Loss on sale of assets/Claims written off

LESS:

Advance against Depreciation written back
Provisions (Net gain)

Net Gain/Loss on sale of [nvestmets

Profit on Sale/Disposal of Assets

Dividend Income

Interest Income

Exchange rate variation (Gain)

Fair Value Adjustments

Amortisation of Government Grants

Cash flow from Operating Activities before Operating Assets & Liabilities adjustments

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Other Financial Assets, Loans and Advances
Other Financial Liabilities and Provisions

Cash flow from operating activities before taxes

Less : Taxes
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, Other Intangible Assets, Right Of Use
Assets, Capital Work-in-progress & Intangible Assets under development - Net of Grant

Net Investment in Term Deposits
Dividend Income
Interest Income (including Late Payment Surcharge)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(8)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Paid
Proceeds from Borrowings
- Long Term
- Short Term
Repayment of Borrowings
Interest & Finance Charges
Repayment of Lease Liability
- Principal
- Interest

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(C)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the close of the year

5,374
2,647

1,962
59

434
2

2
14,603
272
3,902

(86)
9,533
3722

(12,616)

(25)
(162)

1,20,956

13,609
1,07,347

10,045

1,17,392

19215

—_—Ie i

98,177

553
98,730

20,054

78,676

(30,273)
25,521

18,930

14,178

(82,036)

(4,300)
(2,444)
(187)

(88,967)

3,887
740

4,627

6,572
1,413

8,057
41

434

"
15,700
487
6,569

(241)
27,511
907

15,165 |

1,21,947

16,226
1,05,721

16,085

1,21,806

23,203

98,603

43,342

1,41,945
17,609

1,24,336

(30,971)
(19,128)

13,816

(36,283)

(95,578)
14,500

(10,200)
(1,311)
(12)

(92,601)

(4,548)

5,288
740




EXPLANATORY NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity include an amount of Z Nil/- (As on 31.03.2024 1360 Lakhs ) under lien with banks for non fund based credit, which
is not freely available for the business of the Company included in stated amount. (refer note no. 3.4)
Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity include an amount of Z Nil/- (As on 31.03.2024 ¥ 1 Lakhs ) under lien with banks for non fund based credit, which is
not freely available for the business of the Company included in stated amount. (refer note no. 9)
Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity include an amount of Z Nil/- (As on 31.03.2024 7 16735 Lakhs) under lien with banks for acquiring Short Term Loan,
which is not freely available for the business of the Company included in stated amount. (refer note no. 9)
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents include an amount of Z 8 Lakhs (As on 31.03.2024 ¥ 8 Lakhs) representing deposit by Oustees towards Land for
Land in respect of Omkareshwar Project, which is not freely available for the business of the Company (refer note no. 9).
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents include an amount of 2 762 Lakhs (As on 31.03.2024 ¥ 752 Lakhs) under lien with banks as per orders of Hon'ble
Court of Law which is not available for use as on 31.03.2025 (refer note no. 9).

Company has incurred Z 1873 Lakhs in cash on account of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure during FY 2024-25 (Previous year FY 2023-24 1939

Lakhs).

Figures for the previous periods have been re-grouped/ re-arranged /re-classified, wherever necessary.

Net Debt Reconciliation

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Borrowings (Current & Non-Current) - 4,301
Lease Liability 5,213 71
Net Debt 5,213 4,372
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended 31st March, 2025 For the Year ended 31st March, 2024
*Borrowings Lease Liability |Total *Borrowings |Lease Liability [ Tatal
(Current & Non- (Current & Non
Current) Current)
Opening Net Debt as on 1st April 4,301 71 4,372 - 39 39
Proceeds from Borrowings - - - 14,500 - 14,500
Repayment of Borrowings/Lease Liability (4,300) (25) (4,325) (10,200) (6) (10,2086)
Interest paid (8) (162) (170) (5) (6) (11)
Other Non-Cash Movements : -
-Increase in Lease Liability - 5,167 5,167 - 38 38
-Foreign exchange adjustments - - - - - -
-Interest and Finance Charges 7 162 169 . 6 6 12
-Fair value adjustments - - - - - -
Closing Net Debt as on 31st March - 5,213 5,213 4,301 7 4,372
*For Borrowings refer Note No.16.1, 20.1 and 20.4 (Extracts)
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For BCP Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants R .J B .
(Firm Regn.No. 000802C) WVoash
-— .
- : RAJEEV JAIN MADHUST NY
M— CJ-"‘"/ 4 Managing Director Director
%\ DIN: 10725127 DIN: 09319007
CA AMIT JAIN 0{\" <
Partner ‘\“ &/
M.No. 077986

UDIN: 25077986BMJPDF8300

Place: Bhopal

Date:

09-05-2025

Co. Secretary

DEEPAK AHUJA
General Manager (Fin) &
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTE NO. 1: COMPANY INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(I) Reporting entity
NHDC Limited (the “Company”) is a Company domiciled in India and limited by shares (CIN
U31200MP2000G0I014337). The address of the Company’s registered office is NHDC LTD.,

NHDC Office Complex, Shyamla Hills, Bhopal, MP-462013. The Company is primarily
involved in the generation and sale of power to State Power Utility of state of Madhya Pradesh.

(II) Basis of preparation

(A) Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent
amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the provisions of the Electricity Act,
2003 to the extent applicable.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors.

(B) Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for:

« Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

« Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans measured at fair value

e right of use assets — measured at present value of future cash outflows at initial recognition
e assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in Note 33.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds
received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected
to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

(C) Application of new and revised standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 9 September 2024 and 28 September
2024 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively,
which amended/ notified certain Indian Accounting Standards and are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

a) Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and
b) Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback Amendments to Ind AS 116

The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on the Company’s financial
statements.
(D) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs except where indicated otherwise. :



(E) Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the application of accounting
policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures
including contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates
and management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors considered
reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that
may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
included in the following notes:

Critical judgments and estimates
a) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116- Leases. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.

The Company also uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

b) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are based
on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological
advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

¢) Recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in
Progress and Intangible Assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and
intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions, in particular the expected
market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any changes in
these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable
amount resulting in impairment.

d) Post-retirement benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions in respect of future
developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increase, inflation rate and expected rate
of return on plan assets. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions
may have an impact on the resulting calculations.

e¢) Revenue

The Company records revenue from sale of power based on tariff approved by the CERC,
as per the principles of Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers. However, in
cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates are adopted considering
the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Further, where revision in tariff due to revision in



g)

h)

i)

)

k)

D

cost estimates are pending, tariff is computed based on the parameters and methods
prescribed under the CERC Tariff Regulations and an estimated amount of revenue is
recognised when an application is made to the CERC after obtaining necessary approvals
to the extent it is highly probable that there will be no downward adjustment to the

revenue recognised.
Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made
in accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has been made on the basis of
best judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. These
estimates can change due to unforeseeable developments.

Recoverable Amount of Rate Regulated Assets

The operating activities of the Company are subject to cost-of-service regulations whereby
tariff charged for electricity generated is based on allowable costs like interest costs,
depreciation, operation and maintenance including a stipulated return. Guidance Note on
Rate Regulated Activities issued by the ICAI (previous GAAP) and Ind AS 114- ‘Regulatory
Deferral Accounts’ permits an entity to include in the rate base, as part of the cost of self-
constructed (tangible) PPE or internally generated intangible assets, amounts that would
otherwise be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance
with Ind AS. The Company estimates that items of regulatory deferral accounts recognised
in the financial statements are recoverable as per the current CERC Tariff Regulations
2024-29. However, changes in CERC tariff regulations beyond the current tariff period
may affect the recoverability of such balances.

Impairment of Trade Receivables

Considering the historical credit loss experience for trade receivables, the Company does
not envisage either impairment in the value of receivables from beneficiaries or loss due to
time value of money owing to delay in realization of trade receivables, except to the extent
already provided for. CERC Tariff Regulations provide for recovery of Late Payment
Surcharge for delayed payments which compensates for loss due to time value of money,
except to the extent already provided for.

Insurance Claim Recoverable

The recoverable amount of insurance claims in respect of damages to Property, Plant and
Equipment and Capital Work in Progress is based on estimates and assumptions as per
terms and conditions of insurance policies and management estimate of amount
recoverable from the Insurance Company based on past experience.

Income taxes

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified
Carbon Units (VCUSs)

The cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon
Urits (VCUs) are measured as per Management estimate.

Asscts classified as held for sale :

Management judgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for
sale under Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’. In
assessing the applicability, management exercises judgment to evaluate availability of the
asset for immediate sale, management’s commitment for the sale and probability of sale
within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.



m) Capital Spares designated as part of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Management evaluates whether an item of inventory qualifies as a capital spare forming
part of Property, Plant & Equipment on the basis of various factors, including cost of the
item, period over which benefits from the item is expected to accrue and allowability of
the item in Tariff. On the basis of such evaluation and in line with the provisions of the
CERC Tariff Regulations for the period 2024-29, items of inventory costing more than Rs
10 Lakh, benefits from which are expected to be received over more than one accounting
year are designated as Property, Plant & Equipment.

(III) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Summary of the material accounting policies for preparation of financial statements as given below
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. These accounting
policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing relevant and
reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they apply. These
policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

Up to March 31, 2015, Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress, Intangible Assets
and Investment Property were carried in the Balance Sheet in accordance with Indian GAAP. The
Company had elected to avail the exemption granted by IND AS 101, “First time adoption of IND AS”
to regard those amounts as the deemed cost at the date of transition to IND AS (i.e., as on April 1,
2015). Therefore, the carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress,
Intangible Assets and Investment Property as per the previous GAAP as at April 1, 2015, were
maintained on transition to Ind AS.

1.0 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a) An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

b) PPE are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including decommissioning or
restoration cost wherever required. The cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. In cases where final settlement of bills with
contractors is pending, but the asset is complete and available for operating in the manner
intended by the management, capitalisation is done on estimated basis subject to necessary
adjustments, including those arising out of settlement of arbitration/court cases.

c) Subsequent costs is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

d) Expenditure incurred on renovation and modernization of power station on completion of
the originally estimated useful life of the power station is added to the cost of the related
asset when it meets the recognition criteria. PPE acquired as replacement of the existing
assets are capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use
are derecognized.

e) After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

f) Deposits, payments made/ liabilities created provisionally towards compensation (including
interest on enhanced compensation till the date of award by the Court), rehabilitation &
resettlement and other expenses including expenditure on environment management plans
relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

g) Assets over which the Company has control, though created on land not belonging to the
Company, are included under Property, Plant and Equipment. ‘



h) Standby equipment and servicing equipment which meet the recognition criteria of Property,

h))

k)

D

a)

b)

c)

Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Spares parts (procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently) which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are
replaced is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or
upon disposal. Other spare parts are treated as “stores and spares” forming part of inventory.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it
meets the asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous inspection and overhaul is derecognized.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the replaced part has been
depreciated separately. If it is not practicable to determine the carrying amount of the
replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost
of replaced part was at the time it was acquired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition/
disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Capital work in Progress (CWIP)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost
under CWIP. Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties and non-
refundable taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), expenditure in relation to
survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of site preparation, initial delivery and
handling charges, installation and assembly costs, etc.

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-
gradation of common public facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction of project
including Right-of-Use assets, interest during construction and other costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management are accumulated under “Expenditure
Attributable to Construction (EAC)” and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over
major immovable assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of
projects. Net pre-commissioning income/ expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of
related assets.

Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not
have control but the creation of which is essential principally for construction of the project
is accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction” and carried under “Capital
Work in Progress” and subsequently allocated on a systematic basis over major immovable
assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of projects, keeping in
view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure” conicepts in Ind AS 16- “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. Expenditure of such nature incurred after completion of the project, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment Property

[nvestment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.



The Company measures investment property using cost based measurement and fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when
they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from
their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of derecognition. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition/ disposal of the asset is included in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Transfers to or from investment property is made when and only when there is a change in
use supported by evidence.

Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development

a) Expenditure on research is charged to expenditure as and when incurred. Expenditure on
development is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to
use or sell the asset.

b) Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes any directly attributable expenses
necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

c) Intangible assets under development represent expenditure incurred on intangible assets
which are in the development phase and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

d) ‘Subsequent costs are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

e) An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Foreign Currency Transactions

a) Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. At each reporting date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currency are translated at the functional currency exchange
rates prevailing on that date.

b) Exchange differences relating to PPE/capital work-in-progress arising out of transaction
entered into prior to April 1, 2004 are adjusted to the carrying cost of respective
PPE/capital work-in-progress.

c) Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign currency borrowings entered into
prior to March 21, 2016 recoverable from or peyable to beneficiaries in subsequent
periods as per CERC Tariff regulations are recognised as “Deferred Foreign Currency
Fluctuation Recoverable/ Payable Account” and adjusted from the year in which the same
is recovered/ paid.

d) Exchange differences arising from settlement/ translation of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency entered into on or after April 1, 2016 to the extent
recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff
Regulations are recognized as ‘Regulatory Deferral Account Balances’ during construction -



6.0

7.0

period and adjusted from the year in which the same become recoverable from or payable
to the beneficiaries.

e) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Where the Company
has paid or received advance consideration in a foreign currency, the date of transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is the date when the Company initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

a) Where an item of expenditure incurred during the period of construction of a project is
recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss i.e., not allowed to be
capitalized as part of cost of relevant PPE in accordance with Ind AS, but is nevertheless
permitted by CERC to be recovered from the beneficiaries in future through tariff, the
right to recover the same is recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

b) Expense/ income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent recoverable
from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations
are recognised as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

¢) These Regulatory Deferral Account balances are adjusted from the year in which the same
become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

d) Regulatory Deferral Account balances are evaluated at each Balance Sheet date to ensure
that the underlying activities meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with such balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are
not met, the Regulatory Deferral Account balances are derecognised.

e) Regulatory Deferral Account balances are tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet
date.

Fair value measurement

At initial recognition, transaction price is the best evidence of fair value. However, when the
Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-
alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This categorisation is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any in the value of the investments. Where an indication of impairment
exists, considering entities with common line of activities as a single cash generating unit, the -



b)

c)

carrying amounts of investments are assessed and written down to its recoverable amount at
the end of reporting period. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity
or contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or
financial liability under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company. A
financial asset is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances,
Investments in equity shares of companies, Trade Receivables, Loan to employees, security
deposit, claims recoverable etc.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

. At amortised cost,
. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
. At fair value through profit and loss |

The classification depends on the following;:
(a) The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or under Other Comprehensive Income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures trade receivables at their transaction price, if the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing component.

Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are

met:

i) The asset is h=ld within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of



d)

the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met: |

i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI).

Debt instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are measured at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses,
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the EIR method.

Equity investments:

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading, if any, are classified at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The Company classifies all other equity instruments at
FVTOCI. The Company makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

All fair value changes of an equity instrument classified at FVTOCI, are recognized in OCI.
There is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Dividends from such investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
as “other income” when the company’s right to receive payments is established.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value -
with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade Receivables:

Trade receivables containing a significant financing component are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. '

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when:
i) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash tlows from the financial asset, or

ii) Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is

not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.



e)

10.0

11.0

On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount and the amount of
consideration received / receivable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

i) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
ii) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

iii) Contract Assets and Trade Receivables under Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

iv) Lease Receivables under Ind AS 116- Leases.

The Company follows the ‘simplified approach’ permitted under Ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments” for recognition of impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit
loss from initial recognition on contract assets, lease receivables and trade receivables
resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 115.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. Any increase
or reversal of loss allowance computed using ECL model, is recognized as an impairment
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise stores and spare parts to be used for maintenance of Property,
Plant and Equipment and are valued at cost or net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower.
The cost is determined using weighted average cost formula and NRV is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in which write-down or loss occurs.

Dividends

Final dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognised
as change in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders
and the Board of Directors respectively.

Financial liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. A
financial liability is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

a) Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion, over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

b) Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or



in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. '

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
e) Derivative financial instruments
(i) Derivative Financial Instruments not designated as Hedge

Derivative financial instruments that are held by the Company to hedge the foreign currency
and interest rate risk exposures and are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. '

(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments designated as Hedge:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as call spread options, to manage
foreign exchange rate risks related to foreign currency loans. These derivatives are
designated as fair value hedges under hedge accounting rules, provided the following criteria
are met:

i) Economic Relationship: There must be an economic relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument. '

ii)  Credit Risk: Credit risk should not be the predominant factor influencing changes in
value from this economic relationship.

iii) Hedge Ratio: The hedge ratio must match the ratio derived from the actual quantities
of the hedged item and the hedging instrument used by the Company

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the contract date and subsequently
remeasured to fair value at the end of each reporting period. Any gain or loss resulting from
changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as an effective hedging instrument and the
gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recognized in profit or loss,
offsetting the impact of the hedging instrument.

At the inception of each hedge, the Company undertakes a formal documentation process to
clearly define the hedged item and the hedging instrument. This documentation outlines the
specific risk or risks being hedged and establishes the hedge ratio, which reflects the
proportionate relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.
Additionally, the documentation includes a detailed explanation of how the hedging
relationship meets the effectiveness requirements as per the Company’s risk management

strategy.

For derivatives qualifying as fair value hedges:
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i) Hedged Item Adjustment: The carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted for
the gain or loss attributable to the hedged risk. This adjustment is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, providing a natural offset to the changes in the fair value
of the hedging instrument.

ii)  Effective Portion: The effective portion of the hedge, which is the extent to which
the hedging instrument offsets changes in fair value of the hedged item, is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii) Ineffective Portion: Any ineffective portion of the hedge is also recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Other Income or Other
Expenses.

iv) Intrinsic and Time Value: Changes in the intrinsic value of options used in fair
value hedges are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in the time
value component are initially recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and
accumulated in a separate component of equity. Over the life of the hedging
relationship, this time value component is gradually amortized, aligning with the
expiration of the hedge.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is terminated, or
exercised, or when the hedging relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting due to
failing to meet the necessary criteria.

Option Premium Payable:

The Company utilizes call spread options as hedging instruments to mitigate foreign
exchange rate risks associated with foreign currency loans. The option premium payable is a
critical component of the derivative's fair value measurement, initially recognized as part of
the derivative instrument's fair value at the contract date. This premium represents the cost
incurred to acquire the options. The derivative's fair valuation at each reporting date includes
an unamortized component of the option premium payable. This component is carried
forward in the Cost of Hedge Reserve within Other Comprehensive Income. Throughout the
duration of hedging relationship, the option premium is systematically amortized, aligning
with the expiration of the hedge. For hedged items relating to capital expenditure projects,
the amortized portion of the option premium is capitalized as Capital Work in Progress
(CWIP), ensuring that the premium cost is appropriately allocated to the asset being
constructed or developed, thereby matching the expenditure with the asset's future economic
benefits

f) Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial [nstruments’ and the amount recognized
less the cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance with the principles of Ind AS
115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Government Grants

a) The benefits of a government loan at a below market rate of interest is treated as a
Government Grant. The loan is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the
grant is measured as the difference between the initially recognized amount of the loan
and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial liabilities and the grant is recognized initially as Government



b)

c)

Grant and subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

Monetary grants from the government for creation of assets are initially recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the company will comply
with the conditions associated with the grant. The Grant so recognised is subsequently
amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the useful life of the related assets.

Government grant related to income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

14.0 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

15.0

a)

b)

c)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision net of any
reimbursement is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount
of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of
judgment of management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed .only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in
the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition and Other Income

Company’s revenues arise from sale and trading of energy, project management /
construction contracts/ consultancy assignment services and other income. Revenue from
other income comprise of interest from banks, employees, contractors etc., dividend from
investraents in joint ventures and subsiciary companizs, dividend from investments in equity
in other bodies corporate, interest from investment in bonds, surcharge received from
beneficiaries for delayed payments, sale of scrap, other miscellaneous income, etc.

a)

Revenue from sale of power

i)  Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises



iii)

vi)

revenue from contracts for sale of power over time as the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company.

Revenue from sale of power (except minimum lease receipts in respect of power
stations considered as Finance Lease/Operating Lease) is accounted for as per tariff
notified by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) under the CERC
(Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations as modified by the orders of Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity to the extent applicable. In the case of Power Stations where
provisional/ final tariff is yet to be notified or where incentives/disincentives are
chargeable/ payable as per CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations,
revenue is recognised to the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Rebates given to
beneficiaries as early payments incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue.

Customers are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date,
revenue from sale of power includes an accrual for sales delivered to customers but
not yet billed (unbilled revenue).

Recovery/ refund towards foreign currency variation in respect of foreign currency
loans and recovery towards Income Tax are recognised on year to year basis based on
regulatory norms. Recovery towards deferred tax items recognized till March 31,
2009 are accounted for when the same materialises.

Adjustments arising out of finalisation of Regional Energy Account (REA), though
not material, are effected in the year of respective finalisation.

Advance Against Depreciation (AAD) considered as deferred income up to 3ist
March 2009 is included in sales on straight line basis over the balance useful life after
a period of 12 years from the date of commercial operation of the Power Station.

b) Revenue from Project Mahagcment / Construction Contracts/ Consultancy
assignments

1)

ii)

iii)

Revenue from Project Management / Construction Contracts/ Consultancy
assignments is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract
with a customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the services and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises
revenue on the basis of input method. Input method recognises revenue on the basis
of the costs incurred towards the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to
the total expected costs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings
on contracts. Contract assets are transferred to trade receivables revenue when there
is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per
contractual terms. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance
consideration received from the customers.

Contract modifications, if any, are accounted for when there is a change in the scope
or price (or both) of a contract that is approved by the parties to the contract and
when the parties to a contract approve a modification that either creates new or
changes existing enforceable rights and obligations of the parties to the contract.
Accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services
added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone
selling price. Contract modifications are recorded on standalone basis when the
scope of the contract increases because of the addition of promised goods or services
or the price of the contract increases by an amount of consideration that reflects the
Company’s standalone selling prices of the additional promised goods or services and
any appropriate adjustments to that price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a
cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for



prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a términation of the existing contract and creation of a
new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

¢) Revenue from trading of power

i) Accounting for revenue from trading of power involves assessment of the contract
conditions to determine whether the Company is required to act in the capacity of a
principal or as an agent. The Company acts in the nature of a principal in case it
obtains control of the electricity before transferring it to the customer. Indicators of
control includes assessment of whether the company is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the electricity, it has the discretion to establish the
price or whether it bears the inventory risk. Where the Company does not obtain
control of the electricity before transferring it to the customer and its performance
obligation is to arrange for the supply of electricity by another party, it acts in the
nature of an agent.

ii) Where the Company acts as a principal in a contract for trading of power, the amount
of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation that is satisfied is
recognised as revenue.

iii) Where the Company acts as an agent in a contract for trading of power, the net
consideration retained after paying the supplier for the electricity provided to the
customer is recognised as revenue from operations. Financial assets and liabilities
arising out of these transactions are not set off.

d) Other income

i) Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the
right to receive is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

ii) For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

iii) Interest/Surcharge recoverable from customers including those arising out of
contracts for trading of power and liquidated damages /interest on advances to
contractors is recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of revenue recognised will not occur in the future.

e) Revenue from sale of carbon credits/ CERs/VERs

Revenue is recognized on transfer/ sale of Carbon Credits/ Certified Emission
Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) to the extent it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognized will not occur in the
future.

16.0 Employce Benefits

i) Short-term employce benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed or included in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance
related cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay



this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

ii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into separate trusts and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss or included
in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the
periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction from future
payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that is due more than
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are
discounted to their present value.

Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation Scheme (EDCSS) for providing pension
benefits and Social Security Scheme administered through separate trusts are accounted
for as defined contribution plans.

iii) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s Gratuity Scheme, Retired Employees Health Scheme
(REHS), Provident Fund Scheme, Allowance on Retirement/Death, Memento on
Superannuation to employees and Employees Family Economic Rehabilitation Scheme
are in the nature of defined benefit plans. All these plans, other than Allowance on
Retirement/Death, Memento on Superannuation to employees and Employees Family .
Economic Rehabilitation Scheme are administered through separate trusts.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity and Retired
Employees Health Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

In respect of Provident Fund Scheme, a liability is recognised in the Balance Sheet where
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is
higher than the fair value of plan assets. Any surplus of fair value of plan assets over the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is not
recognised as an asset since the Company does not have any right to the benefits either
in the form of refunds from the Plan or by way of lower contribution to the Plan.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by the actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

Remeasurement gains (except in the case of Provident Fund Scheme) and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
directly in Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur and are
included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity. '
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18.0

iv) Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment scheme constitute other long term
employee benefits.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of
future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market
yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Contributions to the scheme and actuarial gains or
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the period in which they
arise.

v) Termination benefits

The expenses incurred on terminal benefits in the form of ex-gratia payments and notice
pay on voluntary retirement schemes are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year of incurrence of such expenses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method
as described in Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in respect of finance
leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116— ‘Leases’ (c) exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs and (d) guarantee fee on loan paid to third parties.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily
take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of
the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that
are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or
erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are excluded from this calculation,
until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale
are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
Depreciation and amortization

a) Depreciation on additions to /deductions from Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from / up to the date on which the asset is
available for use / disposal.

b) (i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of Operating Units of the Company
capitalized till five years before the end of the useful life of the Power Station is charged
to the Statement of Profit & Loss on straight-line method following the rates and



c)

d)

e)

g)

h)

1)

7

methodology notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 18.0(d).

(ii) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment capitalized during the last five years
of the useful life of a Power Station is charged on straight-line method for the
remaining operational life/ period of extended life as per CERC Tariff
Regulations/Orders, from the date on which such asset becomes available for use.

(iii) Where the life and / or efficiency of a Power Station is increased due to renovation
and modernization, the expenditure thereon along with its unamortized depreciable
amount is charged prospectively on straight-line method over the revised/ remaining
useful life. '

i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (except old and used) of other than
Operating Units of the Company is charged to the extent of 90% of the cost of the asset
following the rates notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 18.0(d).

ii) Depreciation on old and used items of PPE of other than Operating Units is charged
on straight-line method to the extent of 90% of the cost of the asset over estimated useful
life determined on the basis of technical assessment.

i) Depreciation in respect of following items of PPE is provided on straight line method
based on the useful life and residual value (5%) given in the Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013:

- Construction Plant and Machinery
- Computer and Peripherals

ii) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Mobile Phones is provided on straight
line basis over a period of three years with residual value of Re 1.

iii) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Roof Top Solar Power System /
Equipment is provided on straight line basis over a period of twenty five years with
residual value of 10%.

(iv) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on furniture & other equipment
provided at residential office of employees is charged on straight line basis over a period
of five years with residual value of 10%.

Temporary erections are depreciated fully (100%) in the year of acquisition
/capitalization by retaining Re. 1/- as WDV.

All assets valuing Rs. 5000/- or less but more than Rs. 750/- are fully
depreciated/amortised during the year in which the asset becomes available for use with
WDV of Re. 1/- for tangible assets and NIL for Intangible Assets.

Low value items, which are in the nature of assets (excluding immovable assets) and
valuing up to Rs. 750/- are not capitalized and charged off to expenditure in the year of
use.

Leasehold Land of operating units is amortized over the period of lease or over the life of
the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and 25 years in case of Solar & Wind
Projects) whichever is lower, following the rates and methodology notified vide CERC
tariff regulations.

Leasehold Land and buildings of units other than operating units, is amortized over the
period of lease or over the life of the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and
25 years in case of Solar & Wind Projects), whichever is lower.

PPE created on leasehold land are depreciated to the extent of 90% of original cost over. -~
the balance available lease period of respective land from the date such asset is available
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k)

D

m)

n)

0)

for use or at the applicable depreciation rates & methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations for such assets, whichever is higher.

Land-Right of Use in case of Hydro Projects is amortized over a period of 40 years from
the date of commercial operation of the project following the rates and methodology
notified vide CERC tariff regulations .

Cost of software recognized as ‘Intangible Assets’ is amortized on straight line method
over a period of legal right to use or three years, whichever is earlier, starting from the
date when the asset becomes available for use. Other intangible assets are amortized on
straight line method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant,
whichever is less. The period and method of amortization of intangible assets with finite
useful life is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever
required.

Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to
increase/decrease in long term liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price
adjustment, settlement of arbitration/court cases, change in duties or similar factors, the
unamortized balance of such assets is depreciated prospectively over the residual life of
such assets at the rate of depreciation and methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations.

Spare parts procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently which are
capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item are depreciated over the
residual useful life of the related plant and machinery at the rates and methodology
notified by CERC.

Useful life, method of depreciation and residual value of assets where depreciation is
charged as per management assessment are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted prospectively over the balance useful life of the asset, wherever required.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators. Fair value less costs of disposal is determined only
in case carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds the value in
use.

In case of expenditure on survey & investigation of projects, if it is decided to abandon
such a project, expenditure incurred thereon is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which such decision is taken.

In case a project under survey and Investigation remains in abeyance by the order of .
appropriate authority/ by injunction of court order, any expenditure incurred on such
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e)

projects from the date of order/ injunction of court is provided in the books from the date
of such order till the period project is kept in abeyance by such order/ injunction.
Provision so made is however reversed on the revocation of aforesaid order/ injunction.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

a)

b)

i)

iii)

v)

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year on the basis of
the tax laws applicable at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in
previous years. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years (temporary differences) and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible (permanent differences).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the Balance
Sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset or liability in a transaction
that at the time of the transaction affects neither the taxable profit or loss nor the
accounting profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would flow in the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which
case it is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation -
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authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

vi) Deferred tax recovery adjustment account is credited/ debited to the extent the deferred
tax for the current period forms part of current tax in the subsequent periods and affects
the computation of return on equity (ROE), a component of tariff.

vii) When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses
whether a tax authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax treatment. If it concludes that
the tax authority is unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of the
uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is
recognised. The effect of the uncertainty is recognised using the method that, in each
case, best reflects the outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome or the
expected value. For each case, the Company evaluates whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately, or in conjunction with another or several other
uncertain tax treatments, based on the approach that best prefixes the resolution of
uncertainty.

Compensation from third parties

Impairments or losses of items, related claims for payments of compensation from third
parties including insurance companies and any subsequent purchase or construction of
assets/inventory are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

Compensation from third parties including from insurance companies for items of property,
plant and equipment or for other items that were impaired, lost or given up is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the compensation becomes receivable. Insurance claims
for loss of profit are accounted for based on certainty of realisation.

Segment Reporting

a) In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segment, the operating segments used to
present segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the
Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating
Decision Maker” or “CODM” within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

b) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company. Other operations
viz., Contracts, Project Management, Consultancy works and Trading of Power do not
form a reportable segment as per the Ind AS -108.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether the contract involves the use of an identified asset, whether the Company has the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of lease and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. If
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified. Where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset if it has the right to operate the asset, or the
Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will
be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a
lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.



i. Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

Land taken for use from State Government (without transfer of title) and expenses on relief
and rehabilitation as also on creation of alternate facilities for land evacuees or in lieu of
existing facilities coming under submergence and where construction of such alternate
facilities is a specific pre-condition for the acquisition of the land for the purpose of the
project, are accounted for as Right of Use Assets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset
by the end of lease term or if the cost of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase option
will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated/ amortized from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments;
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the incremental borrowing rate. Future lease payments comprise of the fixed
payments, including in-substance fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise or
the penalty for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or when a lease contract is modified,
and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in respect
of short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases where the
underlying asset is of low-value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.



ii. Company as a lessor
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When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

Where the Company determines a long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to be or to
contain a lease and where the off taker has the principal risk and rewards of ownership of the
power plant through its contractual arrangements with the Company, the arrangement is
considered a finance lease. For embedded leases in the nature of a Finance Lease, the
investment in the power station is recognised as a Lease Receivable. The minimum lease
receipts are identified by segregating the embedded lease receipts from the contract amounts
(including Advance Against Depreciation (AAD) recognised in accordance with CERC Tariff
regulations 2004-09 up to 31st March 2009 and considered as deferred income). Each lease
receipt is allocated between the receivable and finance lease income (forming part of revenue
from operations) so as to achieve a constant rate of return on the Lease Receivable
outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated
unguaranteed residual value and applies the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109-
Financial Instruments for recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the lease
receivables.

Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease
receivables, except for credit-impaired financial assets for which interest income is calculated
with reference to their amortised cost (i.e. after a deduction of the loss allowance).

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS
115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

In the case of Operating Leases or embedded operating leases, the lease income from the
operating lease is recognised in revenue over the lease term to reflect the pattern of use
benefit derived from the leased asset. The respective leased assets are included in the Balance
Sheet based on their nature and depreciated over its economic life.

Business combinations

(i) Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at
the date of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company.
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognized at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Where the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceed the consideration transferred, after reassessing the
fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognized as capital
reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

(i) Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method wherein the assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts and no adjustments are made to
reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are
made are to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as
if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated -
only from that date.



The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become
the reserves of the transferee. The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share
capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented
separately from other capital reserves.

25.0 Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred
before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for
the earliest period presented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the
comparative information is adjusted to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from
the earliest date practicable.

26.0 Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year.

b) Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

c) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are also presented using the earnings
amounts excluding the movements in regulatory deferral account balances.

27.0 Statement of Cash Flows
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. However, for Balance Sheet presentation, Bank
overdrafts are shown within “Borrowings” under Current Liabilities.

b) Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Ind AS 7- ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

28.0 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

a) An asset is current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
b) A liability is current when:

« [t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
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« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
« There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

¢) Deferred tax assets /liabilities are classified as non-current assets / liabilities.

Non -Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. Indicators in this regard include whether
management is committed to the sale, whether such sale is expected to be completed within
one year from the date of classification as held for sale and whether the actions required to
complete the plan of sale indicates that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. Non-Current Assets held for sale and disposal
groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their fair value. Cost of
disposal is deducted from the recognized value, if significant. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

Events Occurring After Balance Sheet Date:

Impact of events occurring after Balance Sheet date that provide additional information
materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the
Balance Sheet date are adjusted to the respective assets and liabilities.

The Company does not adjust the amounts recognized in its Financial Statements to reflect
the impact of events or conditions that arises after the reporting year.

Significant events arising after the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Financial
Statements.

Miscellaneous

a) Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements.
Items of a dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are
immaterial.

b) Liabilities for Goods in transit/Capital works executed but not certified are not provided
for, pending transfer of ownership, inspection and acceptance by the Company.

X KKK ¥



“310N SIU} O} [-8INXaUUY SE papiaoid Uaaq SBU dywo snoiaaid Japun Uoneidaidap PaIEINWNDIE PUE SIBSSE JO %20|q $50J6 Jad se (3dd) Wwawdinb3 pue jueld Auadold jo 2InsopRsIp leuonppY  ¥'L°2

129l01d Jejos BUneo|4 JEMUS3IENWO AN 88 JO UONEZIIEIIDED JO JUNODDE UO SUNET 8¥99G sy Sapnidul Assuluden pue 1ueld Bunessua9 LI suonippe Jeak ayl buunQg e

qassy Buikuapun jo anjea se pajuasald pue 19aus aoueeq Woyj pasiubooalap Uaaq aney JueJb JuaWwUIaA0B Bulpnioxs uonels Jamod aul Liog Jo 3dd JO 1UaLCdWOD e pue 3587 8dUBUY Se P3YISSEID UBAQ 3ABU SISO ¥ SdSI @' suonels Jamod oJpAY By wiog ‘,s3sea7, -gL L SV pu| jo uonesydde onuensing 21T

SIBUI0

wawdinb3g pue jueld ‘Auadoid

Auedwo) ay) jo sweu 1P UYdIym asuis Joydalipjiajowold jJo aakojdwa 10 103133Jip/iajowold anjep buikien 199y aduUejeg ay) Ul Wajl aulT juaA3|ay
ay) ul pjay bBujaqg jou Joj uoseay piay Auadoid JO aApe|al Jo Jo1dalp ‘Jajowoid e s| Japjoy pasp )i JAUIaUM Jo aweu ayy uj pjay spaaq 3L ss019 Auadoud jo way jo uondyasag

-:6Z0Z UDJB 1SLE UO se Auedwo) au) Jo aweu Ul pjay 10u saluadold 3|qeAoww! Jo Spaap sl Ve

- :310N

90L'cL 8EL'LL 69¢'0) # 229 8vL's L01'82 : . . £59'Y - vSY'eT Jeak snoirald
8el'LL 099'zL TLE'TL # €007 69¢'01 2e0's8 . - - 6Z6'95 # 101'8Z |elol
= : 5 3 s . - - - - - - - sjuawdinb3 82yj0

. p = = s z - % P - - - - Juswdinb3 uonedunwwo)| (i

. . . . . E E : 5 - = . - sigindwo)|  (1ax

. . . - . N . B . ) : : = ainxiy pue asnjuing| (A

. - . B : B . . - - - - - : sieog pjeioly|  (Aix

= s 2 . - - . = = . : R - FERIER

= = s = N & 3 ¥ 3 = P . - suonej[elsul [eoL}08|3
abelamag

pue abeueig/waisAg Aiddng Jsiep
- - . - : - - . : - . . s UsWdinb3 UoKONIISUO) [x
- siayi0 Kauiyoew pue jueld x

Saul| uorssiwsues |
Kiauiyoew pue jueld
uonels ang
Asuiyoew pue jueld
p95'L9 - - - 116'65 . £59'y Kiauiyoew pue Jueld Bunessuag| (1A
] (sjauun) "sajeb
1801 08z 88601 - 129 19801 89v'ce * : : vl : bSh'ee [eojueyosw oJpAH ‘waishs Joynpuod| (A
191eM ‘sweq)syiom dnespAy
- - . - - sbuipis Aemjiey
- - - sbuipjing
- - - - - - sabpug pue speoy
- - - ploysal 4 — puen
sianio ni 843410 ini

169"y 081°09 ¥8e'L - 28¢'L

o~

. ‘ . i .
20T 'Ud4e isig . §202 §20T ‘ysiew siuaunsnipy seak auy Jog vz0oz-1dv-10 §20Z saunsnlpy
1e sy YdJew isig e sy 1SLE 1B SY ie sy ‘Yasew IsLg je sy 4amo

vz0Z-1dv-10

e sy SYYINDILYYd "ON IS
suonanpag suonIppy

LNNOWY ONIA¥YVYD L3N NOILVYID3¥d3a
(suye 2 ul lunowy)

LNNOWY ONIAYYHYD SSOHO

§20Z°c0'L¢ uo se juawdinb3 pue jueld ‘Auadoid L'z "ON FLON




90L°€l

8EL'LL

EEY'VT

Z18'e

A%44

£69'y

1e3af snolaalg

8eL'L)

099'z2

9EY'9C

£eV'vT

960'66

5§26'95

[Bj0]

sjuawdinb3 821j0

Juswdinb3 uoneauNwwo)

s12)ndwo)

3JN}X!} pue aJnjiuin4

sjeog jelolly

A

suonejejsul |eal)as|3

abelamag
pue abeureig/weisAg Alddng ssiepm

juawdinb3 uononisuo)

syl Asauiyoew pue jueld

SaUI| uoISSIWSUE) |
Kisuiyoew pue yueld

uonels qng
Asauiyoew pue jue|d

169y

081'09

v8e'l

z9g'L

9519

L16'9S

£59'y

Kisuiyoew pue jueld Bunessusg

180°CL

08v'zL

250'se

129

LEY'vT

CeS'LE

125

815'/¢

(sjauun) "sajeb
|eaIueyosW 01pAH ‘waisAs Jojonpuo)
181 ‘SWEQ)SHIOM lnelpAH

sbuipis femjiey

sbuipjing

sabpug pue speoy

pioyaai4 - pueq

¥20Z ‘udieW ISLE
e sy

§202
‘'UdJe ISLE I SY

5202 'udsew
IsLe 1e sy

sjuaunsnipy

Jeak ayy Jo4

vz0z-4dv-10
18 sy

§202
‘UsIeW ISLE JE SY

sjuawysn(py
12110

s1syiI0

ini

s13UI0

int

suononpag

suonippy

vz0z-1dv-10
1® sy

H2078 13N

NOILVIO3¥d3d

MDO0718 SSOUO

SHVINJILYVYd

"ON IS

(suxe 2 ulunowy)

§Z0Z'£0°LE Uo sejuawdinb3 pue jueld ‘Auadoid L'Z "ON JLON O} [-ainxauuy




“310N SIU) 01 |-3JNX3UUY SE PapiAcid Uaag Sey dyvO snoiaaid Japun LoneldaIdap PaleinWnade pUE SI3sse JO %00iq ss0ub Jad se (3dd) iuawdinb3 pue 1ueid Auadold Jo 2InsOIasIP [BUOHPDY

1oaloid Jelog 1UDUBS AW 8 Jo uoneziiendes o1 suieuad AJauludely pue JUeld Buneauag ul suxe g59p sy jo uonippe seak sy Buung

Jassy BUIKIAPUN JO BNjeA se pajussald pue 19aUs aduejeq WoJj pasiubosalap uaaq aAky JUBIB 1UaWUIaA0E Buipnjoxs uonels Jamod awl Y10q JO 3dd JO WaUOdWOoD e pUB 35B37 30UBUY SB P3YISSED U3aQ 3ABU SISO ® SdSI 9t suoheis Jamod ay) yloq ',s3se37, -g1 | SV pul jo uonedidde oy uensing

SETe)

Buipiing

pue’

Juawdinb3 pue weld ‘Auadold

Auedwo) ay) jo aweu

ayj ut pjay Bujaq jou Joj uoseay

ajep yaym asujs
piay Auadoid

10303.1p/sa10Wwoid Jo aakojdwa 10 J01d3l|p/IaJoWold

J0 aAnR|aS JO J0312341p ‘1ajowoid E §| JOp|OY Pasp 3} JAYIAUM

J0 aweu ayy U] pjay spaag apil

anjep bujlue)n
$5019

Auadoud jo wayj jo uopduasag

12ayg 2auE|Eg 2U) Ul W)} 3UIT JUBA3IAY

-¢Z0Z UdJep IsLE uo se Auedwo) aw jo aweu

Ul play 10U sa1uadold SIQBACWLLI JO SPAaP L

[
gLe

Lz

- 210N

66E'VL

90.'cl

8vL'6

029

8Z1L'6

121474

€L

2 l26'eT

1eak snoinald

90L°EL

8eL'll

69E'0L

[44:]

8y.'6

101'82

) vSv'eZ

|Bl0]

syswdinbg so10

Juawdinb3 uoneauNWWoy

sisIndwo))

3IN)Xij pue aInjiuIn4

sleog f1jeJolly

S3[0IUBA

Suolje||elsul [BoLI09|3

aberamag
pue abeureiqwalsAg Aiddng Jaiem

Juawdinb3 uononiisuod)

sIayjQ AJauiydew pue jueld

SaUl| uoISSIWSuel |
Kiauiyoew pue jueld

uonels gng
A1auiyoew pue jueld

169'y

£59'v

Kisuiyoew pue jueld bunelausg

L80°€L

L9g°0L

029

yS¥'ee

(sjpuuny ‘sa1eb
[ea1URY3W 0IpAH ‘WalsAS J01oNpUOD
J9IBM ‘sweq)syom dnelpAH

sbuipis Aemjiey

sbuipiing

sabplig pue speoy

ploysai4 - puen

€207 'UdJep ISLE
1B sy

yzZoz
‘Yase ISLE 1B sy

vZ0Z ‘udienw
1SLE e sy

siuawisnlpy

Jeak ayy Jo4

£202-4dv-10
e sy

vzoz
'UdJeN ISLE 1B SY

syuawsnipy
1410

s1ayi0

10l

sJaui10

inl

£20Z-4dv-10

suonanpag

® sy
suonIppy

Y2018 13N

NOILVIO3¥d3d

$O0718 SSO¥O

SYVINDILYVd

‘ON IS

(suye 2 ununowy)

¥202°¢0°LE uo se uawdinb3 pueueld ‘Auadoid L'z "ON ILON



66€'V1 90L'c} z18'ce . 029 Z6L'ET 815°Le 8 €L . . . 166'LE Jeak snoinaid

90.'¢) 8cL'LL EEY'PT . [44:] (45334 A4 i ¢ s £69'y - 8lg'LE |E30L
- < - - - - - - - - - - , syswdinb3 83140
- 5 . = - - - - - - - - - Juswdinb3 uonesunwwo)|  (Ax

s - 3 : - . - . 5 - < . - - sigindwo)|  (1ax

= z s - - < s 2 - - + = - 3JnIX1} pue aInjiuIN 4
N . - . ; . " sjeog NjeIolly

: P : » . < . - . - - - : S3IIYIA

. B 2 z = : : : s - = - - SuONe|[e)sul [BILNO3|3
abesamag i

} - ) i ) ) . ) ) ) i i i pue abeuirig/walshg Aiddng saiepm :

. - . . - . N - - - B - - Juswdinb3 uononisuo) 63

. N z - - - - - - - - - - sJauylQ KJaulyoew pue jueld (x1

SaUI| UOISSILSUR) |
Aauiyoew pue jueld

uone)s gng
Ksuiyoew pue jueld
- 159y z - z g £59't 2 - 2 £99'y = = Kiauiyoew pue Jue|d bunesauad (iA

(sjuuny ‘sajeb
90L'¢} 180°¢L LEv've - 029 718'eT 816'.¢ - - % 2 % 816'.¢ [edlueyoaw oIpAH ‘WalsAs J0jonpuo) (n
191 M 'SWeq)syIopm dinesphy

. . - = 3 sbuipis Aemjiey

B . - - . : = B B - - - . sbuiping

p - = : : N B - - - = - - sabplg pue speoy

. . n N . - . 2 s B - - ploysal4 - pue
£20Z 'UdJeiN ISLE (44 ! d f sewe o e o

0z v20Z 'udJenw £20z-1dv-L0 v20Z swauisn(py £202-4dv-10
: syuaunsn|] K
1e sy UoJe ISLE 1B SY ISLE 18 sy waunshipy ARanetdod e sy ‘YsJe ISLE 1B SY Y10 e sy SYVINDJILYVd ‘ONIS
suoponpag suonippy
%2018 13N NOILVYID3Hd3d Y2078 SSOH9

(suxe 2 ur lunowy) $Z0Z'€0°LE uo se juawdinb3z pue jue|d ‘Auadoid L'z "ON JLON O3 [-ainxauuy




‘'suononpap yussaldal sissyjualed ul saunbiq ¢'z'z
Il INEREN|
Jusy esea spiemoy pajendoidde souejeq pue sjuswdinb3g g Jueld ‘Auadolid 0} paliajsuel; S| '9|qeAIaday JuelS) Jusixa 3yl 0} 'SdSO B SJSI Jo 1wadsal ul seak ay) Buunp pasiiended dIMD 222
- - - - - 18101
SIEIA Slea) ¢€-2 sJea) N.__. JeaA | ueyj ssan
¢ ueyj aloy dIMD
[e301 ut pajsjdwoy aq o
s sy0alosd pake|ap 10} GZ0Z UDJB ISLE UO Se ajnpayss uonajdwo) dIMmD (q)
: = g |ejo |
wm.N < = - = No.n mN.m - papuadsng Ajueijodwsy sioaloid
9ge'e = S 0L 62S'L ssaiBoid ui syoslold
SIROA sleaj £-Z SieaA Z-1 JeaA | ueyj ssan
jejoL € uey) aJo dIMo
J0 pouad e 10} dIMD Ul Junowy
6Z0Z YdJew 1sLg uo se ajnpayas buibe 4ia0 (e) (A4
L£68¢C €L1L8 - 086VE vele Jead snoinald
9€2¢ 86709 - £08€EE L£682 Iv1iol
- = 8 - - (q) 1e303 gng
- - - $810]S UOIJONJJSUOD 10} SUOISINOIH © SS87]
- = = $8J0]S uOoNoNISU0)
9ezz 86709 - £08€¢ 1£682 (e) 18303 qng
- = papinold ssaiboid ul YIOAA [Blde) :Ssa7
- - 9Ly (9L¥) # (zg-910N J8)9y) UONONIISUOD O} 8|geINQLNE ain}ipuadx] (x1x
- - - - - uonelsaloly Alojesuadwod uo ainyipuadxy (1nax
LLLL - (18v92) 06 29L/z sableyo uoisiazadns pue Aoueynsuod ‘uonebisanul '‘Aaaing (1Ax
. N N N - 109D 8yl JO 3WaY3S M G I8pUN SI8SSY - JIMD (Inx
LL [4514 g 896 L uone|jeisul bunieme sjassy (AX
5z - - Sz - syuswdinb3 82130 (nix
s 2 s - B yuawdinb3 uonesiunwwo) (nx
- 0LL = € L9l siandwo) (x
- - - - - abelamag pue abeulesq/walsAg Alddng 1aiepn (1x
L = - L = awdinb3 uononisuo) (x
N N - - - sJaylQ - AJaulyoe|y pue ue|d (x1
- Ll - L 4 S8ul| UoISSIWSuel | - AIaulyde|p pue jue|d (A
N N - - - uonels ang - AJsulyoe|y pue jue|d (1A
£89 621.S 50092 LGGLE 052 Aiauiyoe pue yueld bunessuag (1A
5 1.8 - 665 €8¢ (sjauuny 'sajeb [eolueydaW 0JPAH (A
‘Wa)sAs J0jJoNpuUO) JBIBAA 'SWEQ)SHIOAA JlNeIpAH
- - - - - sBuipis Aemjiey
- . - 3 - aseaT Japun-buip|ing
v.iC 6181 - 620l 901 sbuiping
- - - - - sabpug pue speoy
v20z-4dv-1L0
GZ0Z ‘ydJe ISLE Je sy pasijelden juauwysnipy uonippy je sy sie|naoiled| ON'S
(syxeq 2 ulunowy)

6Z0Z'€0’LE uo se ssaiboid u| yiopn [eyides  Z'z "ou 210N




‘suononpap Juasaidas sisayjualed ul saunbi4 ¢'z'z

‘8|qeAlaoay
Juay aseaT spJemo) pajeldoidde acuejeq pue sjuawdinbg g jue|d 'Aladoid 0) pailajsuel) S| ‘8|qeAIB0aY JUBIS) JUBJXa aU) 0} 'SHSO 9 SdSI Jo 10adsal Ul Jeak ayy Buunp pasiended dIMD 222
18¥'92 - - - L81'92 1B10L
18¥'92 - - - L8Y'9Z Weld (AdSH) 91BlOA 010U Jejos Buneojd (g-11un) MIN 88 JO Juawdojanag
SEENN
i i Sy SIBdA €2 siesA z-1 Jea\ | ueyl ssaq e
|elo] ’ uj peyejdwon aq o)
s123fo01d pakejap 10} Z0Z UdJEN ISLE UO SB 3|npayas uonajdwo) diMmo (a)
LE68C - - Zl 6168¢C |e10 |
Z Z Z . = papuadsng Ajuejodway sioalold
1£682 . - A 61682 ssalboid ul syo8loid
SIBOA Siea\ €2 SIBaA Z-L Jes) | ueyj ssa7
|elol € Ueyj alojN dIMD
jo pouad e 10} dIAAD Ul Junowy
¥Z0Z YdJelN ISLE uo se ajnpayas buibe dimo () Lz
12474 z8cl - 0€9C 9LL JeaA snoinald
LE6BT €LL8 s 086v¢E 1444 Iv1i0L
- - - - - (d) 1e103 gns
B - - $810JS UOIJONJISUOD 10} SUOISINOI : SS87
- - - $910}S UOIONIISU0)
L£682 €L18 - 086¥€ (4454 (e) re3o3 ang
® . - papinold ssalboid ul YIoAA [ede) :ssaT
- - 85 (85) = (zg-210N J48j9y) UOIONIISUOD 0) B|CBINGLIE alnjipuadx]
= - - - - uoljelsaloyy Aloyesuadlod uo ainypuadx3
[A:] 944 < (6¢6) [A] Y 6E6 sabieyd uoisiazadns pue Aoueynsuod ‘uonebnsaaul ‘Asaing
- - - - N 109 34} JO aWayog INM G J8pun SI8ssy - 4IMD
L P6LL - 8€01l /LGl uolne|eisul buijieme sjassy
- - - - - syuawdinbg 82140
# - - - - JuawCinbg uonesiunwwo)
191 - - /91 - sieindwo)
= €92 = 65 v02 abesamag pue abeureiq/waisAg Alddng Jajepn
- eel = SS 8L yuawdinb3 uononJisuo)
- - - - - SJaylQ - AJsuIydB|\ pue Jue|d
14 = 4 ¥ - Saul| uoissiwsues] - Ausuiyoe|y pue jue|d
- celL - el 6LL uonejs gng - Ausuiyoey pue jueld
0S¢C 9645 188 818Y LYE Asuiyoep nue jue|d Bunelauao
€8Z €8¢ % 865 89 (sjauuny “sa)eb |eoiueydaw 01pAH
‘waisAs J0oNpuUOY JBIBAA ‘SWEQ)SHIOAA DINBIPAH A
- - N - - sbuipis Aem|iey
- - N N - asea Japun-buipjing
v901 2l - vell Z\Z sbulpjing
- . - - . sabplg pue speoy
€202Z-Jdv-10
¥20Z ‘Ud4e|N ISLE 1B SV pasijejde) juawisnipy uonippy e sy sle|noiyed| ON'S

(syxeT 2 urunowy)

$20Z°€0°L € uo se ssaiboud u| JJop [eliden  Z'Z "ou ajoN




“310N SIY) 0) |-2JnXauuy se papiaoid U3aQ sey dyvo snolaaid Japun uohieldaldap palejnwndde pue s1asse Jo %20iq sso0ib jad se s1assy asn Jo Wby Jo 3ins0IISIP [RUCHIPPY [ 4

“SUYET 9LOVLE ‘S Isulebe suseT gLipZL sy se umous asn o) 1ubiy pue Jo anjea Buikied
ay1 *ABupIodY 135Sy BUKiIapun Jo anjea se pajuasasd pue jaaus aduejeq Woj pasiubosasap Uaaq 2ABY JuBJE UaWUI3A0 BuIPN|aXa SISO ¥ SASI JO 35N 01 IUBNY-pUE Jo WWauodwoa e ‘asea aduBul jo uonealdde Jayy ‘asea 33UBUY J3PUN PAYYISSEID UBaq ARY (S)UONES Jamod aul ‘9L | SY Pul jo Uonedldde ol ensing 26T

usapeld aLL've'L (sa1ov 10'8529L1) pueT plouasean pueT-s13ssy asn jo wbiy
dW J0 "1A09 Aq pajueib asn oy Wby ON eAUpEW Jo 1409 AQ paumo pue
Auedwop 31EP Yd|ym acuis SLILEYIT.Y id jo aako|d Jo anjeaA
8yl jo aweu ay) ui pjay Buiaq 1ou Joj uoseay piay Auadoid | 10133J1pialowold jo aale|al Jo J0133ip 'Jarowold e S1Japjoy Paap 3Nl JAUIAUM [JO aweu a1 uj pjay spaaq 3 Bujkised ssoin Auadoid jo way| jo uonduasag 1834§ adue(eg ay) Ul Wail 3uln JUBA3|IY
~1§Z0Z U2JeW 1SLE Uo se Auedwo) ayl jo 3lWeU U| p|ay 10U pue| pjoyasea| jo 153dsal ul UOHIBINY/PaaP 3SET/PAAP NI bee
-1810N
858'9/ GLy'eL 1£0'LS * £66'S ¥80'GY H'ET'L - i - 605'L - A YA" Jeak snolraig
SLy'ZL 266'vL 80b'tS g Lig'e LE0°'1G 09¢e'6Z't - - " 806'G - SH'eT’) 1e30]
wve'eL 908'69 0LE'¥S £ 182°¢ 620'LS 9Lzl . - - - Ll - GIECT'L 8sn 01 1ybry-pue
= 080'G 8 - L8 - 191G - . : 191G - - Yed Jejog
- - - - - B - - - - - - - SBI0IUBA
- - - - E 3 - - - - - - - Juawdinb3 uononnsuoy)
- - - - - # : . - - - - - Buipiing
69 99 1 - € 8 Ll ¢ £ * i - Ll Ployasea]- pueq
. s1a E)
$202 YaIeW ISLE 5202 | STOTUIEW | o nsnipy | seskagiog | PE0ZHOV-L0 5202 swaunsnipy i s o i b20z-1dv-10 -
je sy YdJEN ISLE 1B SY isigie sy jesy Ydieyisig je sy 3410 suonanpaq suonippy je sy SYYINJILYVd 5
LNNOWY ONIAYYVYD 13N NOILVIO3F¥d3a INNOWY ONIAYYVD SSO¥9D

(suyeT 2 urunoury) 6202°¢0’'LE Uo se S13SSV ISN 4O LHOIY €7 'ON 310N




868'9/ SLy'z. v6E'E8 - £66'C vv'll 608°G5‘L . . i 606°L . 00€'YS'} Jeaf snoinald
SI'ZL 256'vL 69298 2 LLE'S v6E'c8 LL19') - - - 806'G . 608'65'L |eo]
We'TL 908'69 199'98 . 182'¢ 99¢'c8 £/9'96'L - - - b/ = 261'65°L asn 011ybry-pue
¥ 080'S 18 - 18 - 191'S . ¥ : [9L'G - - YJed Jejog
= = E - - - * - - - - - - EIRIENN
- - - - - - - - - - - - - Juswdinb3 uononisuo)
) . . ) . ) ) ) . ) ) ) - Buiping
69 99 Ll . 3 [} Ll - - = . . L ployaseaT puet
IZA T RET RS _ 414 6702 ‘yasew susunsnlpy | seok oy soq ¥20z-1dv-10 _ 1414 sjusunsnfpy | SJ34I0 10l sisuio 1ni y20Z-1dv-10 |
e sy Yosep ISl e Sy | IsLgie sy ’ e sy yaseWiIsigIe sy Jsyio suonanpag suonippy e sy SHVINIILYVd ON ‘IS
2018 L3N NOILYID3¥d3a 2018 SSO¥9

(suxen 2 utunowy)

6202°¢0’Lg uo se S13SSV 3SN 4O LHOIY €°C "ON 310N 03 |-3inxauuy




*310N SIU} 0 |-2INX3UUY SB PapiAold Uaag Sey dyve snolaaid Japun uoheidaidap pale|nwnaoe pue siasse Jo %20iq ssoJb Jad Se $13ssy asn Jo 1UBIY JO 2JnsoidsIp [BUOIPRY  £°E°Z

'SUNeT 9Z6'ZL'e ‘s Isutebe suyeT G/E'eZ’L 'Sy Se umoys asn 01 1ubiy pue jo anjea Buikiies aul 'AiBuipioday
1essy Buikpapun Jo anjea se pajuasaid pue 12ays aoue|eq wouj pasiubodalap uaaq aaey Juelb JuawuiaAob Buipnoxa SJSO B SdSI IO 35N 01 WYBIY-pUET Jo Juauodwod & ‘asean aoueuy Jo uonedldde Jayy "asEaT 3DUBUI JAPUN PAIYISSEID UBAQ 8AEY (S)uonelrs Jamod ayl ‘gL SV pU| Jo uoneandde o1 juensing e

ysapeld S.E'eT'L (sasov L0'85/911) puen plouasean pue-siassy asn jo by
dW J0 1409 Aq paiuelb asn o1 WyBiy OoN ekype Jo 1A09) Ag paumo pueT]
18ays
Auedwo) ayy 31ep Yslym asuls Joyoalipiiajowoud jo aakojdwa Jo J0333JIp/IBI0W0Id anjep ddue|eg Yl Ul Wa)) aulT 1U3AD|3Y
Jo aweu ayy ul pjay Bbuiaq Jou 1o uoseay piay Auadoid JO 3ARE|aJ J0 Joydalip ‘Jajowold e si iapjoy paap 3|11} JaYIauM JO aweu ay) ul pjay spaaqg il bujfuren ssoin Auadoud jo way jo uopdiiasag

-ip20Z U2Je isLg uo se Auedwo ayj Jo aweu Ul pjay 10U pue| ployasea) Jo }9adsal Ul UOHEBIN/Paap 8SE3/P3ap alil] Lee

=:3JON
0.6°18 8589/ ¥80'SY - ££8's LSZ'6E 6L’ ¥ " - (14 * 122121 1eak snoinalg
8689/ Siv'eL . LEO'LS . £56'S ¥80'Gy ISY'ET') - - ¥ 6051 : Al [eioL
£28'9. we'zL 620'LS = 056G 6.0'Gh GIE'eT'L - ¥ = olv'l - 206'L2'L 3s( 01 Jybry-pue
- ¥ * s - - - = < - - - % S3J2IYBA
% s " - - 5 = - - = - 8 - Juawdinb3 uononnsuo)
- - - - = - - - g 8 - - - ases Japun buipiing
G¢ 69 8 - € S Ll £ - - Lg - 0l4 ployases- pue]

s13410 1n sJayi10 ini
£20Z ‘UYdiew isie ) vzZoz ) (2414 swswysnipy 129k au1 104 £202-4dv-L0 . vzoz suaunsnipy £20Z-4dv-10 o
je sy YoJe 1SLE 1. Sy UdJeN ISLE 1e sy je sy yoJew isig e sy Jy10 1e sy SHVYINDILYYd ON IS
suonanpag suonippy
%2078 13N NOILVID3¥d3a X078 SSO¥D

(syse 2 urunowy) v20Z'€0’LE Uo se §13SSV 3ISN 4O LHOIY €2 "ON 3LON




0/6'18 858'9. 'Ll # £e8's 609°}L 00£'%S'1 - - . VZL : 6.6'¢S’) 183k snolnalg
868'9L SLv'el v6£'c8 ¢ £56'S Tv'LL 608'G5'L - . . 605°} ¢ 00€'vS') [e30L
£28'9/ ve'zL 98¢'e8 - 056'S LEV'LL 28L'sS'L 3 2 - 'L - 092'vS'L s 01 ybry-pue
- - - % = - - - - - - - - LEIRIVENY
- ® s 8 e - - - - - - ® 8 Juawdinb3 uononnsuo)
5 - - ) - - « % 5 - - - - asea Japun buipjing
GE 69 8 - £ S Ll . - - JAY - oy ploysses pueT
€20z "Wasew asie | vzoz pZ0Z ‘UdJeW swounsnlpy | sekeypuog | SE0EOWLO | vzoz siuaunsn(py siadio Lni $42U10 1ni £z0z-4dv-10 o
e sy yosewisigie sy| Isigiesy 1e sy Ussew IsL je sy Y0 suopanpag SUOHIPPY e sy SYVINDILYVd ON IS
%2018 L3N

NOILVIO3¥Hd3a

X2078 SSO¥D

(suxen 2 ur unowy)

$20Z’€0’LE UO SB §13SSV ISN 4O LHOIY €7 'ON JLON 03 [-ainxauuy




‘1@ssvy Buikpapun jo anjeA se pajuasaid pue 18ays souejeq woyj pasiubodsalap usaq aAey JueIB JuaWUIsA06 Buipnioxa uonels Jamod aul W10 o 3dd JO 1UBUOJWOD B PUE 35B3T 3JUEBUY SE PAYISSE|D Uaq aAeY suonels Jamod o1pAy aul Yiog ‘,saseaT, -9 | SV pu| jo uohesndde o1 luensing 5T
"8JON SIU} 01 |-2JNX3UUY Se paplaoid Usaq sey dyvo snoiasid Japun uonedasdap paleinwnode pue s1asse Jo ¥00iq ssolb sad se siassy 8|qibueiul jo 3INSO|ISIP [RUOHIPPY V5Z

- 13J0N
: . - . - - . - B = - - - 1eak snoiaalg

- - - < : - - - - - - - - |el0L

. = - > E 5 - - - - - - - a1em)jog Jaindwo)

S = . - - - - - - saa4 juonydn

sJayy slay)
.zu._ﬂﬂumﬁm S20Z 'WRIEN | SZOZ 'WolE sjuaunsnlpy | Jeak ayj Jog ¥euzidylo | szgzosen | sweunsnipy 0 o " i v2oz-1dv-40 ‘ON
' es
1 sy Isigie sy iIsLE je sy ie sy IsLE je sy ay0 suoanpag SUOIIPPY e sy SYVINJILYVd S

LNNOWY ONIAYYYD L3N NOILYSILHOWY LNNOWY ONIAYYYD SSOY9

(suxen 2 U unowy) §20Z°€0°LE UO se sjassy a|qibueiu| 'z "ON 3LON

"SI10N Sy} 0) |-8InXauUY sk papiaoid usag sey dyvO snotrad Japun uoiieidaidap PalenWNIoe PUB SI8SSE JO %20lq $50J6 Jad se Auadold 1UBWISaAU| JO aINsolasip leUONIPPY

[ A4
- 1310N
- - - - - - - - - - - - - 1eak snolnald
: - - - . - : : : - - : : [e10]
- - - - - - - - - - - - - ployasl4 pue’
1ZAVA P : i . Y
‘Yosep 3sL¢ GZ0TZ 'Yya1ely | SZOZ ‘yotew suswsnlpy pouad vZ0Z-1dv-10 | SZ0Z 'yorew | swswisnfpy sia3yi0 1Nl sJayl0 1Nl yz0z-1dy-10 on
JeSy isigje sy isjgie sy ’ ayy Jo4 je sy Isig e sy 13430 suononpag suonIppy e sy SYVINIILYVYd 'Is
%2018 13N NOILVYSILYOWY %2078 SSOY¥9

(syse 2 vl unowy) S20T°€0°LE uo se A1¥3IdOdd INJWLSIANI ¥’ "ON JLON




. - E : = = B - - . - - - Jeak snojnald
= S s s : - - - - - - . - |e30]
. . . N . - - = = - - - - alemyjos Jaindwo) {n
- - - 2 = = = . - s334uosdn [(
, SET siayy ni
.:Swﬂvmﬁem S207 WOXBIN | G202 UMEN | ey | seak o sog | PEOZIAVILO | G202 URIEN | siuauisnlpy s e o t v20z-1dv-10
sjgies sigie s : es sjgies 1 sy "ON "
1 sy ISigje sy Isigie sy je sy isLg je sy Yo suonanpag suomIppY e sy SHVINJILYVd N'IS
2079 13N NOILVSILYOWY %2018 SSO¥9
(suxeT 2 ul junowy) GZ0Z'E0’'LE Uo se sy1assy w_n:mr_muc_ G'Z 'ON 3LON 03 |-ainxauuy
- - - - - - - - - - - - - 1eak snoinalg
- - - - - - - - - - - - - |el0]
. N . - - . : = - : . - - ploysai4 pue (
Veue . . ‘
ey yspg | STOZUMBW | STOZ'UNEW | o cnioy | sesk o so 4 p20z-4dy-10 | SZ0Z ‘yosew | suaunsnlpy | SIAYIQ 1n slapo 1n vZ0z-1dy-10 .
1B sy sigie sy Isigie sy je sy sleie sy 3Q10 suoianpaq suonIppy ie sy SYVINJILYvYd ON'IS
M20718 L3N NOILVSILYOWY %2078 SSOY9

(e 2 ut unowy)

S20Z°€0°LE UO SB A1H3dO¥d LNIWLSIANI #°Z 'ON 3JLON 03 |-3Inxauuy




19ssy BuiApapun jo anjea se pajuasaid pue 13aus asue|eq Wwolj pasiubooalap uaaq pAey Juelb wuawulaaob Buipnioxa uonels Jamod aul L10q Jo Jdd JO 1UBUodWod B puB 3SEaT 3DUBUY SB PAKISSE|D Uaag aAeY suonels Jamod aul uioq ',$8s837, -1 1 SV Pu| jo uonedydde o) Juensing s
“310N SIY) 0} |-2JNX3UUY SE papiAoid Usaq sey dvVvo snolaaid Japun uolienaidap pajeinwnade pue S1asse Jo 300|q ssoub Jad se s13ssy a|qibueiul jo 8inso[osIp [BUCNIPPY 1's'z
- 130N

. . . - . . ” s - . . . - . Jeak snoinaig

. - = 5 : . . S : = 3 : 2 BEN

= : g : 3 - . B - . - - - 31em}jog Jaindwo)

" N N N N N N N - . . . s994 jJuoljdn

s13u10 1n s18U10 1n

‘ §
€202 'udJely isig . 1244 $Z0Z ‘ysJep AUsUERIpY swakiati 1oy €zoz-1dv- 10 . 2474 sjuauisnipy £20Z-4dv- L0
e sy UdJEW ISLE 1B SY ISLE 1B sy e sy UsJew I5LE 18 sy 13410 e sy SHYINDILYVd ON IS
suoplanpag suonlppy
Y2078 13N NOILVSILYOWY Y2078 SSOUD
(suyxeq 2 ui junowy) ¥202°C0’LE UO Se Ss)assy mﬁmmr_muc_ G'C 'ON 310N
"81ON SIU) O} |-3JNX3UUY SB PapiA0Jd Usaq SBU dYVO SNoIAaJd Japun uolieldaidap paleinwnaoe pue s1asse jo ¥20ja ssoJ6 Jad se Auadoid 1Uawisanul o 3JNs0|2sIp [BUONIDDY R
- 13JON
. . . : z z . . . . . Jeaf snoinalg
¥ 5 . . - . - - . . . . B |elo|
- - - B = B E - - - - - - ployaai4 pue 1
‘yoas ! e -
€202 :m mm_a sie ] vZoz ¥Z0Z ‘udienw swawisnfpy | pousd sujsoy | E¢0% 4dv-10 ) v20z sjuaunsnipy si8YI0 ini siaul0 1n £20Z-4dv-10
k) Y YdJeW IsLg 1e sy 1SiLg e sy e sy UdJe ISLE je sy By Suononpag SUONIPPY e sy SYHVYINDILYYd 'ON IS
¥20718 13N NOILYSILYOWY . Y2078 SSON9 —

(suxe 3 urunowy) $20Z'€0°LE UO Se A1¥3d0¥d LNSWLS3IANI +°'Z "ON 3LON




1eak snolnaig

lejo] |-

3Jemyjos 191ndwo)

- N - - - - - - E sa94 juoldn
sJayio 1ni siayl0 n
5 | i x ~idy-
€202 ‘ydlewisie , vzoz $Z0Z ‘yasew swaunsnipy Jeak ayy Jog £20z-1dv-L0 . | 2474 suaunsn(py £202-40v-10 . )
ie sy Yaiew isig e sy isLg e sy ie sy YdJey isLg ie sy 3010 1e sy SYUVYINDILYVYd ON IS
suonanpag suoiippy
32018 13N NOILVSILYOWY %0018 SS0¥9
(swieq @ vl unowy) v20Z°€0’LE uo se syassy a|qiburiu] 'z "ON JLON 03 |-ainxauuy
. - - - . . - . . . . . - Jeak snolnalg
. s . . . . v . # 5 . - . 1e10 |
N - . . . . - - X . - . - ployaai4 pue (
. i !
€202 'UsieNisiLe ! vzoT P20z 'yasey susunsnipy Jeak ayy Jog £20Z-4dv-L0 , vzoz swuaunsnlpy si3W0 1ni sia3y10 1ni £202-1dv-10
e sy YdJe ISLE 1B sy isLg e sy e sy UsJe isig je sy ELULe) stononpag SUONIPPY 1e sy SYVYINDILYVYd ‘ONIS
32018 13N NOLLYSILYOWY

HO0718 SSOYH9

(sug 2 urjunowy)

vZ0Z'e0’LE UO SB A1H3d0dd LINJWLS3ANI ¥'Z 'ON 3LON 03 |-3inxauuy




1BJ01

SIE9A sleaj ¢- Siea) z- 1E9A
¢ ueyj aJop Aee Acl L ueyl sso [juswdojana( Japun s}assy ajqibuelu|
lejo | ul pajsjdwo) aq o
‘syoalosd pakejop 10} GZ0Z Y24BIN ISLE UO SE a|npayss uonajdwo) juswdojaasqg Japun siassy a|qibuelu| 2972
- - - - - |e3o0 L
= papuadsng Ajuelodwsa} sjosloid
- ssalbo.d ul syoslold
SIE9A sies sies 1eSA
|ejo | € ueyj alop Age Al | ueyy sse [|jyuswdojanaq Jepun s}assy 9|qibuelu|
jo pouad e 10} 4IAAD Ul Junowy
"'GZ0Z YdJey 3sLE uo se a|npayas buibe yusawdo|anaq Japun sjassy a|qibueju| 1’9
. €96 - 147 8Ls Jeah snoinaid
- ) . ) - V10l
- - = . . s894 Juoydn (1)
- - = = - juswdojaaa Japun asemyos Jaindwon (n
SZ0Z ‘yoiep v20z-1dy-10
}SLE le sy pasijeyden jusuysnipy uonippy (je sy sig|nodijded| ON'S

(sysfe 2 ul unowy)

GZ0Z°¢0’LE uo se juawdoljanaq Japupn s1assy a|qibuelu| 9'z "ou a10N




18301

SIESA silea SIB3aA Z- T89A
¢ ueyjy alo Aee Acl |l uey) ssa7 [|yuswdojaAaaq Japun s}assy 9a|qibuejul
lejol u pajajdwon aq o
'¥20Z Ydo4e|\ 1SLE uo se a|npayods uonajdwos juswdojansg Japun s}assy a|qibueju 2'9'¢C
- i - - - |ejol
- papuadsng Ajluelodws) syoaloly
- ssalboid ul syoaloid
SIEOA SIeaA £-Z slea A
[ejo | ¢ uey} alo A Al L uey} sse7 [juswdo|aAa( Japun s}assy a|qibueluy|
Jo pouad e 1o} 4IAMD Ul Junowy
"$Z0Z Y24e\ IsLg uo se a|npayas buibe juswdo|anaq Japun sjassy a|qibueju| 1'9°2
81§ - * L9v LS leak snoinaid
- €96 = 144 81§ IV1OL
N - s34 juodn (1r)
- £96 - 144 8LG Juswdolans Jepun alemyng Jandwo) (1
20T ‘yotep €Z0zZ-1dvy-10
isigie sy pasijeyides | jusuysnipy uonippy |ie sy sle[ndijied| ON'S

(suxeT 2 urjunowy)

$20Z°€0°L € uo se JuswdojaAaq Jepun s}assy 9|qiburiu] 9z "ou 810N




NOTE NO. 3.1 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS (Amount in ¥ Lakhs) I

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
Investments . i K
Total - -
NOTE NO. 3.2 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES .‘ (Amount in % Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Trade Receivables - Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note 3.2.1, 3.2.2
and 3.2.3) - 3,041
Total - 3,041

3.2.1 Refer Annexure-! to Note No-3.2 for Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables.

3.2.2 Trage féeceivables Considered Good- Unsecured represents amortized value of amount recoverable in monthly instalments from
MPPMCL.

3.2.3 Refer Note 34 of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances. |

Annexure-l to Note No-3.2-Ageing of Non Current Trade Receivables

As at 31st March 2025 (Amount in ¥ Lakhs

Trade Receivable due and outstanding for following period from
Particulars Unbilled Not Due due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months- More than
months 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 Years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- - B s R _

Considered Good
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables- - « P B -
which have significant increase in
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables- - - - - B
Credit Impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables- - - s - R
Considered Good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables-which - % = - .
have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-Credit - - - 5 -
Impaired

Total - - “ - s % R o

As at 31st March 2024
(Amount in T Lakhs)
Trade Receivable due and outstanding for following period from
due date of payment
Less than 6 6 months- More than
months 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 Years

Total

Particulars Unbilled Not Due

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- - 3,041 - - B < B 3,041
Considered Good .

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- - - - . s
which have significant increase in
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- - B . R B
Credit Impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables- - - s "
Considered Good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables-which - - < R
have significant increase in credil risk
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-Credil - . 8 %
Impaired

Total 3,041 - - - - - 3,041




NOTE NO. 3.3 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs) I

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

At Amortised Cost

A Loan to Related Party - Credit Impaired- Unsecured - .
Less: Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party = -
Sub-total - -
B Loans to Employees (including accrued interest) (Refer Note 3.3.1 &
3.3.2)
- Considered good- Secured 2,685 2,845
- Considered good- Unsecured 241 307
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - -
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans - -
Sub-total 2,926 3,152
Cc Contractor / supplier
- Considered good- Secured - -
- Considered good- Unsecured - .
— Against bank guarantee - -
- Others - -
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - s
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful advances to Contractor/ Supplier - -
Sub-total - -
. TOTAL 2,926 3,152
3.3.1 Due from directors or other officers of the company. 5 5

3.3.2 Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the company. The Carrying value may

be affected by the changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

NOTE NO. 3.4 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A Security Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured 183 199
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured - -
Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits - -
: Sub-total 183 199
B Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity (Refer Note 3.4.1) 1,450 1,462
C Lease Rent receivable (Refer Note 34) 3,59,352 3,59,539
D Interest receivable on lease - -
E Interest accrued on:
- Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity 81 136
F Receivable on account of Late payment Surcharge (Refer Note 3.4.2) - 32
G Amount Recoverable = =
TOTAL 3,61,066 3,61,368
3.4.1 Bank Deposits include an amount under lien with banks for non fund based
credit, which is not freely available for the business of the Company included in - 1,360
stated amount.
3.4.2 Receivable on account of Late payment Surcharge represents amortized value of amount recoverable in monthly instalments from
MPPMCL.




NOTE NO.

4 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

-

ii)

i)

iv)

CAPITAL ADVANCES
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
— Against bank guarantee
— Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful - Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances

Sub-total

ADVANCES OTHER THAN CAPITAL ADVANCES
DEPOSITS

- Considered good- Unsecured

- Considered doubtful - Unsecured

Less : Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Sub-total

Interest accrued
Others
- Considered Good
Others
Advance against arbitration awards/ court cases towards capital works
(Unsecured)
Released to Contractors - Against Bank Guarantee
Released to Contractors - Others
Deposited with Court
Less: Expenditure booked pending Settlement of Cases

93

93

Sub-total

93

93

Prepaid Expenditure

Non Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source
Less: Provision for Current Tax

Non Current Tax (Refer Note No-23)

997

18,091
17,977

997

114

Deferred Cost on Employees Advances

1,342

1,263

TOTAL

2,446

1,470

4.1
4.2

Advances due from Directors or other officers.

Advances due by Firms or Private Companies in which any director of the
Company is a director or member.

NOTE NO. 5

INVENTORIES

(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

(Valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)

Stores and spares

Stores and spares-Stores in transit/ pending inspection
Loose tools

Material at site

Material issued to contractors/ fabricators

1,305
13

Total

Less: Allowances for Obsolescence and Diminution in Value (Refer Note 5.1)

1,318
1

TOTAL

1,307

5.1

Allowances for Obsolescence and Diminution in Value
Opening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 5.1.1)

Used during the year

Reversed during the year (Refer Note 5.1.2)

Closing balance

51.1

5.1.2

Inventories written down to net realisable value (NRV) and recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year.

Allowances for obsolence and diminution in value of inventory booked in earlier

years and reversed during the year.




NOTE NO. 6

CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

(Amount in % Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Quoted Debt Instruments - At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI)
Government Securities

TOTAL

NOTE NO.7 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES (Amount in Z Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
- Trade Receivables- Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note 7.2,7.4,7.5 26,784 37.209
and 7.6)
- Trade Receivables-Unbilled- Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note 7.3 12,736 8,535
and 7.4)
- Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired < -
Less: Loss allowances for Trade Receivables (Refer Note 7.1) - -
TOTAL 39,520 45,744
7.1|Loss allowances for Trade Receivables
Opening Balance - -
Addition during the year - -
Used during the year - -
Reversed during the year - -
Closing balance - -
7.2|Debt due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either
severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director of the Company is a partner or a -
director or a member.
7.3|Represents receivable on account of :
Unbilled sale for the month of March 9,610 7,053
Additional O&M (due to pay anomaly) 278 -
Deferred Tax Materialized 1,658 1,482
Interest On Arbitration/ Court Cases 1,190 -
Others - -
Total 12,736 8,535

7.4 Refer Annexure-| to Note No-7 for Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables.

7.5 Trade Receivables Considered Good- Unsecured includes amortized value of amount recoverable in monthly instalments from
MPPMCL against Sale of Power.

7.6 Trade Receivables includes an amount of Rs. 465 Lakhs on account of energy supplied from 88 MW Omkareshwar Floating Solar
Project bills for the period from June 2024 to October 2024 (upto 14-10-2024), bills are resubmitted and yet to be settled by the
beneficiary.

7.7 Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to be the same as their fair value.

7.8 During the reporting year, the company has not recognised any impairment loss in respect of unbilled debtors.

7.9 Refer Note 34 of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.
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NOTE NO.8 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in % Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
A Balances with banks
With scheduled banks
i) - In Current Account 1,127 740
ii) - In deposits account
(Deposits with original maturity of three months or less) 3,500 -
i) - In Current Account -Other Earmarked Balances with Banks - -
B Cheques, drafts on hand - -
c Cash on hand (Refer Note 8.1) = -
TOTAL 4,627 740

8.1 Includes stamps on hand

NOTE 9: CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
A Bank Deposits for original maturity more than 3 months upto 12 months (Refer 164.674 190,182
Note 9.1, 9.2, 9.3 & 9.4)
B Earmarked Balances with Banks
- Deposit -Unpaid Dividend - -
- Deposit -Unpaid Principal/ Interest - -
- Other w -
TOTAL 1,64,674 1,90,182
9.1]|Bank Deposits include an amount representing deposit by Oustees towards 8 8
Land for Land in respect of Omkareshwar Project, which is not freely available
for the business of the Company.
9.2|Bank Deposits include an amount under lien with banks for non fund based - 1
credit, which is not freely available for the business of the Company included in
stated amount.
9.3|Bank Deposits include an amount under lien with banks as per orders of 762 752
Hon'ble Court of Law, which is not freely available for the business of the
Company included in stated amount.
9.4|Bank Deposits include an amount under lien with banks for acquiring Short - 16,735

Term Loan, which is not freely available for the business of the Company
included in stated amount.

NOTE NO. 10 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A Loans (including interest thereon) to Related Parties - Unsecured (Refer

Note 10.1)
Loan Receivable - (Considered Good)

Loan Receivable-Credit Impaired

Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party

Sub-total 4 -
B Loans to Employees (including accrued interest) (Refer Note 10.2, 10.3
and 10.4)
- Considered good- Secured 415 394
- Considered good- Unsecured 302 254
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured = =
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans - =
Sub-total 717 648
TOTAL 717 648
10.1[Advance due by firms or private companies in which any Director of the
Company is a Director or member . ) .
10.2|Due from directors or other officers of the company. 8 4

10.3|Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the company. The Carrying value may

be affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

10.4[Particulars of Loans as required in terms of Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed under Note-10 above.




NOTE NO. 11 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A Security Deposits
* - Considered good- Unsecured
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Sub-total s <
B Amount recoverable from
- Insurance Company - -
- Employee Benefits Trust = 35
- Others (Refer Note 11.1) 2,279 5,687
Sub-total 2,279 5,722
Less: Loss Allowances for Doubtful Recoverables (Refer Note 11.3) 3 3
Sub-total 2,276 5,719
C Receivable from Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures - =
D Receivable on account of Late Payment Surcharge (Refer Note 11.2) 32 116
Less: Loss allowances for Receivable on account of Late Payment Surcharge 2 -
Sub-total 32 116
E Lease Rent receivable (Finance Lease) (Refer Note 34) 6,713 6,585
F Interest Income accrued on Bank Deposits 6,556 10,969
G Interest receivable on Finance lease = =
H Interest recoverable from beneficiary - -
| Claim recoverable from parent company - NHPC LTD. 2 163
TOTAL 15,577 23,552
11.1[Amount recoverable from others (at Sr. No. B) mainly includes:
(a) An amount of ¥ 2202 Lakhs (As on 31.03.2024 %2332 Lakhs) due from Govt. of Madhya Pradesh.
(b) Duplicate payments recoverable from oustees of 3 Lakhs (As on 31.03.2024 3 Lakhs) already provided for.
(c) An amount of ¥ 25 Lakhs (As on 31.03.2024 ¥ 3316 Lakhs) towards PRP recoverable from employees (including ex-employees) for
the period 2017-18 to 2020-21.
11.2|Receivable on account of Late payment Surcharge includes amortized value of amount recoverable in monthly instalments from
MPPMCL.
11.3|Loss Allowances for Doubtful Recoverables
Opening Balance 3 3
Addition during the year - -
Used during the year - -
Reversed during the year - -
Closing balance 3 3
11.4|Refer Note 34 of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

NOTE NO. 12 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
Current Tax Assets

A Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source : -

B Less: Provision for Current Tax 2 -
Net Current Tax Assets (A-B) - -
Income Tax Refundable - 4

Total ~ 4




NOTE NO. 13.1 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A.

Advances other than Capital Advances
a) Deposits

- Considered good- Unsecured

- Considered doubtful- Unsecured

Less : Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Sub-total
b) Advance to contractors and suppliers (Refer Note 13.1.1)

- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured

— Against bank guarantee

- Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances

Sub-total

C

-~

Other advances - Employees
- Considered good- Unsecured (Refer Note 13.1.2)
Sub-total

d) Interest accrued
Others
- Considered Good
- Considered Doubtful
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Interest
Sub-total
Others
a) Expenditure awaiting adjustment

Less: Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction

: Sub-total
b) Losses/Assets awaiting write off sanction/pending investigation

Less: Allowances for losses/Assets pending investigation/awaiting write off /

sanction (Refer Note 13.1.3)

Sub-total

c) Work In Progress

Construction work in progress(on behalf of client)

Consultancy work in progress(on behalf of client)
d) Prepaid Expenditure
e) Deferred Cost on Employees Advances
f) Others

447

745

447

745

1,248
147
22

TOTAL

2,345

13.1.1

13.1.2

13.1.3

Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Director of the
Company is a Director or member.

Loans and Advances due from Directors or other officers at the end of the
year.

Allowances for losses pending investigation/ awaiting write off / sanction

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

NOTE NO. 13.2 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 13.2.1)

2

TOTAL

2

13.2.1

Property, Plant and Equipment includes Plant and equipment and Other assets (Office equipment, vehicles, furniture and fixtures etc.)

identified for disposal due to replacement/ obsolescence of assets in the normal course of operations.




NOTE NO. 14.1

REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT DEBIT BALANCES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tariff period upto 2009

Opening Balance 25,197 26,161
Addition during the year (Refer Note 31) - -
Used during the year 1,079 964
Reversed during the year = -
Closing balance 24,118 25,197
Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liabilities for tariff period 2014-2019

and onwards

Opening Balance 15,600 12,007
Addition during the year (Refer Note 31) 1,325 3,593
Used during the year - =
Reversed during the year - R
Closing balance 16,925 15,600
Closing Balance (A+B) 41,043 40,797
Less: Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances - -
Add: Deferred Tax recoverable from Beneficiaries = -
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances net of Deferred Tax. 41,043 40,797

14.1.1

Refer Note 34 of Financial Statements for futher disclosures regarding Impairment and Regulatory Deferral Account (Debit) Balances

respectively.

NOTE NO. 14.2 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT CREDIT BALANCES

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

MAT Credit to be passed on to beneficiaries

Opening Balance 42477 56074
Addition during the year 2718 .
Used during the year 16081 13597
Reversed during the year - <
29,114 42,477

Closing balance

14.2.1

Refer Note 31 & Note 34 of Financial Statements for futher disclosure regarding

Regulatory Deferral (Credit) Account Balances .




NOTE: 151 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Authorized Share Capital (Par value per share Rs. |- 30000000 3,00,000 30000000 3,00,000
1000)
Equity shares issued, subscribed and fully paid (Par 19625800 1,96,258 19625800 1,96,258

value per share Rs. 1000)

15.1.1 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:-

Opening Balance 19625800 1,96,258 19625800 1,96,258
Less:-Buyback of shares during the year - - - -
Closing Balance 19625800 1,96,258 19625800 1,96,258

15.1.2 The Company has issued only one kind of equity shares with voting rights proportionate to the share holding of the shareholders. These
voting rights are exercisable at meeting of shareholders. The holders of the equity shares are also entitled to receive dividend as declared
from time to time. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

15.1.3 Shares in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by
subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate: 10024200 No. of Shares (Previous Year-
10024200 No. of Shares).

15.1.4 Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent specifying the number of shares held : -

Shareholders As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Number In (%) Number In (%)
-NHPC 100,24,200 51.08% 100,24,200 51.08%
- Govt. of Madhya Pardesh 51,02,708 26.00% 51,02,708 26.00%
- Narmada Basin Projects Company Limited 5
(Wholly owned by GoMP) 44,98,892 22.92% 44,98,892 22.92%

15.1.5 In preceding five financial years immediately preceding 31.03.2025, Company has not allotted any equity share as fully paid up pursuant to
contract(s) without payment being received in cash/ not allotted any equity share as fully paid up by way of bonus share(s).

15.1.6 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2025 :-

S.No |Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares |% Change during

the year
1 NHPC Limited 100,24,200 51.08% 0.00%
2 Govt. of Madhya Pradesh 51,02,708 26.00% 0.00%

15.1.7 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2024 :-

S.No |Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares [% Change during

the year
1 NHPC Limited 100,24;200 51.08% 0.00%
2 Govt. of Madhya Pradesh 51,02,708 26.00% 0.00%




NOTE NO. 15.2 OTHER EQUITY

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

(i) General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Transfer from Surplus/Retained Earnings
Less: Write back during the year
Add: Transfer from Self Insurance Fund
Less: Tranfer to Capital Redemption Reserve

3,56,350

3,56,350

As at Balance Sheet date

3,56,350

3,56,350

(ii) Retained Earnings/ Surplus
As per last Balance Sheet
Add:- Prior Period errors (Net)
Add: Profit during the year
Add: Transferred from OCI
Add: Amount written back from Bond Redemption Reserve

Add: Amount written back from Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

Add: Tax on Dividend - Write back

Less: Dividend and CDT

Less: Transfer to Bond Redemption Reserve
Less: Transfer to Self Insurance Fund

Less: Transfer to Research & Development Fund
Less: Transfer to General Reserve

Less: Transfer to Corporate Office

Add: Transfer from Power Stations and Projects

14,260

83,696
(306)

28,726

81,224
(112)

As at Balance Sheet date

(iii) FVTOCI-Equity Instruments
As per last Balance Sheet
Add:-Change in Fair value of FVTOCI
Less:-Deferred Tax

As at Balance Sheet date

(iv) FVTOCI-Debt Instruments
As per last Balance Sheet
Add:-Change in Fair value of FVTOCI
Less:-Deferred Tax on change in Fair Value
Less:-Reclassification to P&L

As at Balance Sheet date

TOTAL

3,71,964

3,70,610




NOTE NO. 16.1 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

At Amortised Cost
- Secured Loans
-Bonds
-Term Loan
- from Banks
- from Other (Financial Institutions)

-Unsecured Loans
-Bonds
-Term Loan
- from Bank
- from Other (in Foreign Currency)
Loan from Parent Company- NHPC Limited
- Term Loan -Unsecured

TOTAL

NOTE NO. 16.2 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILITIES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

16.2.1

16.2.2

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34)

5,019

64

TOTAL

5,019

64

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's borrowings and lease liability based on contractual payments

(Undiscounted Cash Flows) :

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years 1,083 24
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years 1,028 15
More than 5 Years 7,363 72
TOTAL 9,474 111

Movement in Lease Liability

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Long term maturities of lease obligations

Opening Balance 71 39
Addition in lease liabilities 5,167 38
Finance Cost accrued during the year 162 6
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 187 12
Closing Balance 5,213 7
Current maturities of lease obligations (Refer Note 20.2) 194 7

5,019 64

NOTE NO. 16.3 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILTIES - OTHERS

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Retention Money 105 59

Liability against capital works/supplies = -

Payable for Late Payment Surcharge - -
TOTAL 105 59

16.3.1

Maturity Analysis of Note No-16.3

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the deposits/retention money based on contractual payments (Undiscounted Cash

Flows) :

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years 107 67
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years 13 -
More than 5 Years -

TOTAL 120 67




NOTE NO. 17 PROVISIONS - NON CURRENT (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i Provision for Long term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation)
Opening Balance 732 683
Additions during the year 90 59
Amount used during the year 5 10
Amount reversed during the year - -
Closing Balance 822 732
B. OTHERS
i) Provision For Committed Capital Expenditure
Opening Balance - -
Additions during the year - -
Amount used during the year - -
Closing Balance - -
ii) Provision-Others
Opening Balance -
Additions during the year - -
Amount used during the year - -
Closing Balance ' - -
TOTAL 822 732
17.1 Information about nature and purpose of Provisions is given in Note 34 of Financial Statements.
NOTE NO.18 NON CURRENT - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
Deferred Tax Liability
a) Property, Plant and Equipments, Right of Use, Investment Property and
Intangible Assets. 6,588 487
b) Financial Assets at FVTOCI . -
c) Other Items . 81,762 80,079
Deferred Tax Liability 88,350 80,566
Less:-Set off of Deferred Tax Assets pursuant to set off provisions
a) Provision for employee benefit scheme, doubtful debts, inventory and others 636 748
b) Other Items - 17
c) MAT credit entitlement (Refer Note 18.3, 18.4, 18.6 & 18.7) 44,529 54,958
Deferred Tax Assets 45,165 55,723
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 43,185 24,843
18.1{Movement in Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) is given as Annexure to Note 18
18.2| Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liability have been offset as they relate to the same governing laws.
18.3|Detail of MAT Credit Entitlement :- (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance 54,958 73,408
Add: Recognised during the year 2,718 -
Less: Utilised & adjusted during the year 13,147 18,450
Closing Balance 44,529 54,958
18.4|Pursuant to the provisions of Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act 1961 announced by Tax Laws (amended) Ordinance 2019 and
promulgated as Taxation Laws (amendment) Act 2019 enacted on 11th December 2019 applicable with effect from 1st April 2019,
Domestic Companies have options to pay Income Tax at concessional rates by foregoing certain exemptions/ deductions (the new tax
regime) as specified in the said section. The Company has Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit of ¥ 44529 Lakhs as on 31st March
2025 [Previous year ¥ 54958 Lakhs]. In view of the same, it has been decided to continue with existing tax. structure for Current and
Deferred Tax recognition. Necessary decision for exercising the option under section 115BAA will be taken once tax deductions are not
available and MAT credit is substantially exhausted.
18.5|Refer Note 14.1 of Financial Statements for RDA (Debit) balances created agaiﬁst Deferred Tax Liability.
18.6|During the year, MAT credit entitlement has been increased by Rs. 2718 Lakhs in accordance with order giving effect to ITAT's order
passed by Assessing Officer to comply with decision of ITAT in the appeal Filed by Company for AY 2015-16.
18.7| The above MAT credit entitlement of 44529 Lakhs includes a sum of Rs. 3807 Lakhs for which Income Tax Department has filed
appeals in the Hon'able High Court of M.P. against decision of ITAT in the appeals filed by Income Tax Department for AY 2013-14, AY
2014-15 & AY 2015-16.
18.8|Refer Note 14.2 of Financial Statements for RDA (Credit) balances created against MAT Credit recognised.




Movement in Deferred Tax Liability (FY 2024-25)

Annexure to Note No. 18

(Amount in T Lakhs)

Particulars

Property, Plant and
Equipments, Right of Use,

Financial Assets at

Investment Property and FVTOCI Olyer fams Total
Intangible Assets.
At 1st April 2024 487 - 80,079 80,566
Charge/(Credit)
-to Statement of Profit and Loss 6,101 - 1,790 7,891
-to Other Comprehensive Income (107) (107)
At 31st March 2025 6,588 - 81,762 88,350
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars Provision for employee
benefit scheme, doubtful Other Items MAT credit entitlement Total
debts, inventory and others
At 1st April 2024 748 17 54,958 55,723
( Charge)/Credit
-to Statement of Profit and Loss (5) (17) (10,429) (10,451)
-to Other Comprehensive Income (107) (107)
At 31st March 2025 636 - 44,529 45,165

Movement in Deferred Tax Liability (FY 2023-24)

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars

Property, Plant and
Equipments,Iinvestment

Financial Assets at

Property and Intangible FVTOCI Other ltems e
Assets.
At 1st April 2023 - - 77,217 77,217
Charge/(Credit)
-to Statement of Profit and Loss 487 2,901 3,388
-to Other Comprehensive Income (39) (39)
At 31st March 2024 487 - 80,079 80,566
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets (FY 2023-24)
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars Provision for employee
' benefit scheme, doubtful Other Items MAT credit entitlement Total

debts, inventory and others

At 1st April 2023 898 11 73,408 74,417

( Charge)/Credit

-to Statement of Profit and Loss (111) (94) (18,450) (18,655)
-to Other Comprehensive Income (39) (39)
At 31st March 2024 748 17 54,958 55,723




NOTE NO. 19 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

19.1

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
Income received in advance-Advance Against Depreciation 8,581 9,016
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Liabilities - -
Grants in aid from Government (Refer Note 19.1) 78,385 78,863
TOTAL 86,966 87,879
GRANTS IN AID FROM GOVERNMENT
Opening Balance (Current and Non Current) 85,433 90,530
Add: Received during the year 755 1,472
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 24.2) 3,902 6,569
Closing Balance (Current and Non Current) (Refer Note 19.1.1) 82,286 85,433
Grants in Aid from Government-(Current)- (Refer Note No-21) 3,902 6,569
Grants in Aid from Government-(Non-Current) 78,385 78,864

l

19.1.1 Grant in Aid is contribution by Governent of Madhya Pradesh towards cost of Indira Sagar Project and Omkareshwar Project.

NOTE NO.

20.1 BORROWINGS - CURRENT

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A Loan Repayable on Demand
From Banks-Secured (Refer Note 20.1.1 & 20.1.2) - 4,300
B Other Loans
From Bank-Secured - -
C Current maturities of long term debt
- Bonds-Secured - -
- Term Loan -Banks-Secured - -
- Term Loan -Banks-Unsecured B =
Sub Total (C) - -
TOTAL - 4,300

20.1.1 Detail of Borrowings (Secured)

S.No Name of Bank along with details of Security As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
1 Bank of Baroda (against FDR) - 3100

2 Punjab National Bank (against FDR) - 1.200
Total - 4,300

20.1.2

Defaults in repayment (if any) : Nil

NOTE NO. 20.2 CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILTIES

(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34)

194

7

TOTAL

194

7

NOTE NO. 20.3 TRADE PAYABLE - CURRENT

(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 20.3.1) 855 904
Total outstanding dues of medium scale enterprise(s) (Refer Note 20.3.1) = -
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro and small enterprises 743 637
(Refer Note 20.3.2)
TOTAL 1,598 1,541
20.3.1|Disclosure regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise :-
Outstanding Liabilities towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 855 904

Disclosure of amount payable to Micro and Small Enterprises is based on the information ‘available with the Company regarding the
status of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the Act). Additional disclosure as
required under Section 22 of the Act is given under Note No.34 of Financial Statements.

20.3.2

Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises includes amount due to Parent Company (NHPC Limited).

20.3.3

Refer Annexure-I to Note No-20.3 for Ageing schedule of Trade Payables.

20.3.4

Refer Note 34 of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.
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NOTE NO. 2

0.4 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Liability against capital works/supplies other than Micro and Small Enterprises

(Refer Note 20.4.1, 20.4.2 and 20.4.3) 11,303 20,029
- Deposits - -
Liability against capital works/supplies-Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer
511 707
Note 20.4.3)
Liability against Corporate Social Responsibility 140 141
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - -
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 1
Earnest Money Deposit/ Retention Money 356 410
Due to Holding Company- NHPC limited 197 -
Unpaid dividend - -
Unpaid Principal/ Interest - -
Payable for Late Payment Surcharge - -
Payable for Financial Guarantee - -
Payable to Employees 84 226
Payable to Ex-Employees - -
Payable to Others 6 9
TOTAL 12,597 21,523
20.4.1|Total outstanding dues of Liability against capital works/supplies other than 56 63
Micro and Small Enterprise includes amount payable to Parent Company
(NHPC Limited).
20.4.2|Above includes an amount of Rs.1044 Lakhs withheld on account of Liquidated damages to M{S TPPSL/TPREL.
20.4.3|Disclosure regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise :-
567 731

Outstanding Liabilities towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Outstanding Interest towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

Disclosure of amount payable to Micro and Small Enterprises is based on the information available with the Company regarding the
status of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the Act). Additional disclosure as

required under Section 22 of The Act is given under Note No.34 of Financial Statements.

20.4.4

Refer Note 34 of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

NOTE NO. 21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Income received in advance (Advance against depreciation)

Unspent amount of deposit/agency basis works

Statutory dues payables

Contract Liabilities-Deposit Works

Contract Liabilities-Project Management/ Consultancy Work

Provision toward amount recoverable in respect of Project Management/
Consultancy Work

Advance from Customers and Others

Grants in aid-from Government (Refer Note No-19.1)

434

1,917

3,902

434

2,016

6,569

TOTAL

6,253

9,019




NOTE NO. 22 PROVISIONS - CURRENT

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Provision for Long term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of actuarial

valuation

iv

~

=

=

Opening Balance 16 18
Additions during the year 11 -
Amount used during the year - -
Amount reversed during the year - 2
Closing Balance 27 16
i) Provision for Wage Revision
Opening Balance 10 8
Additions during the year - 3
Amount used during the year 2 1
Amount reversed during the year 7 -
Closing Balance 1 10
Less: Advance paid 2 -
Closing Balance Net of Advance 1 10
i) Provision for Performance Related Pay/Incentive
Opening Balance 4,934 3,678
Additions during the year 2,157 1,494
Amount used during the year 3,179 238
Amount reversed during the year 446 -
Closing Balance 3,466 4,934
Less:-Advance Paid - -
Closing Balance Net of Advance 3,466 4,934
Provision For Employee Remuneration-Pay Anomaly
Opening Balance - .
Additions during the year 893 -
Amount used during the year = <
Amount reversed during the year - -
Closing Balance 893 -
OTHERS
Provision For Tariff Adjustment
Opening Balance 17,129 13,536
Additions during the year 3,198 9,360
Amount used during the year 4,137 5,767
Amount reversed during the year - -
Closing Balance 16,190 17,129
Provision For Committed Capital Expenditure
Opening Balance 3,642 4,140
Additions during the year - 5
Amount used during the year 141 498
Amount reversed during the year - -
Unwinding of discount - -
Closing Balance 3,501 3,642
iii) Provision in respect of arbitration award/ court cases
Opening Balance 2,672 1,489
Additions during the year 1,007 1,375
‘Amount used during the year 934 178
Amount reversed during the year 7 14
Closing Balance 2,738 2,672
iv) Provision - Others
Opening Balance 5,489 5618
Additions during the year 199 1,803
Amount used during the year 118 17
Amount reversed during the year - 1,815
Closing Balance 5,570 5,489
TOTAL 32,386 33,892

=

22.1 Information about nature and purpose of Provisions is given in Note 34 of Financial Statements.




NOTE NO. 23 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(Amount in  Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Opening Balance 18,769 17,977
Additions during the year 18,946 18,769
Amount adjusted during the year (18,769) (17,977)
Amount used during the year - -
Amount reversed during the year = -
Closing Balance (A) 18,946 18,769
Less: Current Advance Tax including Tax Deducted at Source (B) 19,943 18,539
Net Current Tax Liabilities (A-B) (997) 230
(Disclosed under Note No-4 above) 997 -
TOTAL - 230




NOTE NO. 24.1

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Operating Revenue

A SALES (Refer Note 24.1.1, 24.1.2, 24.1.4, 24.1.5 & 24.1.6)
Sale of Power 43,980 50,616
Revenue recognised out of advance against depreciation 434 434
Performance based Incentive 47,999 33,403
Sub-total (i) 92,413 84,453
Less:
Sales adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Rate Variation - -
Tariff Adjustments (Refer Note 24.1.3) 1,961 8,057
Regulated Power Adjustment - -
Income from generation of electricity—precommissioning 476 63
(Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction) (Refer Note 32)
Rebate to customers 224 159
Sub-total (ii) 2,661 8,279
Sub - Total (A) = (i-ii) 89,752 76,174 |.
B Income from Finance Lease (Refer Note 34 & 24.1.1) 50,359 50,702
Cc Income from Operating Lease - -
Sub-Total-l (A+B+C) 1,40,111 1,26,876
D OTHER OPERATING REVENUE
Income From Sale of Self Generated VERS/REC % -
Income on account of generation based incentive (GBI) - -
Interest from Beneficiary States -Revision of Tariff - -
Sub-Total-Il - -
TOTAL (1+11) 1,40,111 1,26,876
24.1.1 Power Purchase Agreement entered into by NHDC with single beneficiary has
the substance of an embedded lease arrangement pursuant to IND AS 116 in
respect of ISP & OSP.
The revenue from these power stations has been divided into 2 parts in the
Profit & Loss Account, i.e. towards Lease Rental and balance towards Sale of
Power. Further a portion of the Lease Rental is recognized as “Income from
Finance Lease" and booked under “Operating Income”, while the balance
amount of Lease Rental is deducted from the value of “Lease Receivable”
created in the Balance Sheet.
24.1.2 Sales (net of unbilled) includes:
(i) Sales on account of earlier year sales. - 9,487
(ii) Petition Fee. 67 67
24.1.3 Tariff Regulation notified by CERC vide notification dated 15/03/2024 inter-alia
provides that capital cost considered for fixation of tariff for current tariff period
shall be subject to truing up at the end of tariff period. Further, the beneficiary
has filled petition with CERC for changes in Design Energy of ISPS & OSPS. 1,961 8,057
Accordingly, stated amount has been provided in books.
24.1.4 Amount of unbilled revenue includes:
(iy Amount recovered/recoverable directly from beneficiary towards deferred
tax liablity pertaining to the period upto 2009 and materialised during the 1,658 1,482
period.
(i) Interest recoverable from beneficiary (settlement of arbitration award under
vivad se vishwas scheme) 1,190 ”
(iii) On account of additional O&M (due to pay anomaly) 278 R
(iv) On account of Earlier Year Sales - -
24.1.5 The Electricity Duty & Energy Uevelopment Cess is recoverable from
beneficiary and included in Sale of Power as below:
- Electricity Duty 111 91
- Energy Development Cess 8,172 6,687
24.1.6 Sale of power for the year includes sales of electricity generated from Solar :
3,405 66

Power Projects.




NOTE NO. 24.2 OTHER INCOME

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

A)

B)

Interest Income
- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Non Taxable

- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Taxable

- Deposit Account
- Employee's Loans and Advances (Net of Rebate)

- Advance to contractors

- Unwindling of Fair Value Loss on Financial Assets

- Others

Other Non Operating Income (Net of Expenses directly attributable to
such income)

Late payment surcharge

Realization of Loss Due To Business Interruption

Profit on sale of investments

Profit on sale of Assets (Net)

Income from Insurance Claim

Liabilities/ Impairment Allowances/ Provisions not required written back (Refer
Note 24.2.1)

Material Issued to contractor

(i) Sale on account of material issued to contractors

(ii) Less: Cost of material issued to contractors on recoverable basis
(iiiy Net: Adjustment on account of material issued to contractor
Amortization of Grant in Aid (Refer Note 19.1)

Exchange rate variation (Net)

Mark to Market Gain on Derivative

Income on account of Guarantee Fee

Others (Refer Note 24.2.2)

Sub-total
Add/(Less): C.O. Income Allocation
Add/(Less): Regional Office Income Allocation

Sub-total
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Transferred to Advance/ Deposit from Client/Contractees and against
Deposit Works
Less: Transfer of other income to grant

Total

14,404
367

271

14,893
356

19,353

24.2.1 Detail of Liabilities/Impairment Allowances/Provisions not required

written back
a) Allowances for Obsolescence & Diminution in Value of Inventories
b) Allowances for trade receivables
c) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Deposits
d) Allowances for doubtful recoverables
e) Provision for tariff adjustment
f) Provision for Committed Capital Expenditure
g) Provision for PRP / Incentive /Productivity Linked Incentive
h) Others

| TOTAL

24.2.2 Compensation for shortfalll in energy exported in comparison to base generation during O&M period of 88 MW Omkareshwar Floating

Solar shall be considered based on annual shortfall/excess in energy.




NOTE NO.

25 GENERATION EXPENSES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Cc
FARTICULARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Consumption of stores 331 194
Sub-total 331 194
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction . =
Total 331 194
NOTE NO. 26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Amount in % Lakhs)
PARTICULARS For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Salaries and Wages (Refer Note 26.1, 26.2 & 26.4) 17111 12,366
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 26.3 & 26.4) 1,965 1,974
Staff welfare expenses 1,438 1,235
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution 2 -
Sub-total 20,514 15,575
Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation - -
Add/(Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation - -
Sub-total 20,514 15,575
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction = -
Less: Transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment 124 -
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total 20,390 15,575
26.1|Salary and wages includes expenditure on short term leases as per IND AS- - 7
116 " Leases".
26.2|Salary & Wages includes expenses on account of Performance related Pay for the FY 2017-18 to FY 2020-21 amount to Rs. 2860
Lakhs (Previous year ¥ Nil/-) paid in persuant to DPE order.
26.3|Contribution to provident and other funds include contributions: For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
i) towards Employees Provident Fund 812 813
ii) towards Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation/New Pension
727 884
Scheme
26.4|Employee benefit expenditure includes an amount of ¥ 115 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 74 Lakhs) in respect of employees engaged in R&D

Activities of the Company.

NOTE NO. 27 FINANCE COSTS

(Amount in % Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

A Interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Term loan = -
Short Term Loan 7 6
Other interest charges - -
Lease Liabilities 162 6
Sub-total 169 12
B Other Borrowing Cost
Other finance charges s -
Unwinding of interest-Provision & Financial Liablities 14
Sub-total 14
C Others
Interest on Arbitration/ Court Cases (Refer Note 27.1) 1,200 3
Interest to beneficiary (Refer Note 27.2) 1,236 1,303
Sub-total 2,436 1,306
D Interest on Income Tax 28 89
Total (A+B +C+D) 2,647 1,415
Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation - -
TOTAL 2,647 1,415
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction - 3
Total 2,647 1,412
271 Interest on Arbitration/ Court Cases includes Rs. 1190 Lakhs (previous period Rs. Nil/-) on account of Interest on settlement of
arbitration award under vivad se vishwas scheme.
27.2 For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Stated amount has been provided in the books during the year towards Interest
to beneficiary which may have to be paid in case of trueing up of tariff order.
Truing up application has been filed by the company under CERC regulations.

1,236

1,303




NOTE NO. 28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICUL
ARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Depreciation -Property, Plant and Equipment 2,003 622
Depreciation-Right of use Assets 3,371 5,953
Amortization -Intangible Assets & -
Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation - -
Add/(Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation - -
Add/(Less): Depreciation allocated to/from other units “ =
Sub-total 5,374 6,575
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction - 2
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total 5,374 6,573
NOTE NO. 29 OTHER EXPENSES (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
PARTICULARS For the Year ended For the Year ended

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Direct Expenditure on Contract, Project Management and Consultancy
Works

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
- Building
- Machinery
- Others
Rent (Refer Note 29.3)
Hire Charges
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Security expenses
Electricity Charges
Travelling and Conveyance
Expenses on vehicles
Telephone, telex and Postage
Advertisement and publicity
Entertainment and hospitality expenses
Printing and stationery
Legal Expenses
Consultancy charges - Indigenous
Consultancy charges - Foreign
Audit expenses (Refer Note 29.2)
Expenses on compensatory afforestation/ catchment area treatment/
environmental expenses/development expenses
Expenses on work of downstream protection works
Expenditure on land not belonging to company
Loss on Assets (Net)
Loss on Sale of Investment
Losses out of insurance claims
Donation
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 34)
Community Development Expenses
Directors' Sitting Fees
Compensation on Arbitration/ Court Cases
Expenditure on Self Generated VER's/REC
Exchange rate variation (Net)
Training Expenses
Petition Fee /Registration Fee /Other Fee — To CERC/RLDC/RPC/IEX/PXIL

Operational/Running Expenses of Kendriya Vidyalay
Operational/Running Expenses ~f Other Schools
Operational/Running Expenses of Guest House/Transit Hostel
Operating Expenses of DG Set-Other than Residential
Fair Value Loss on Financial Assets
Other general expenses

Sub-total
Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation
Add/(Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation

Sub-total
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works
Less: Transfer to General Reserve for Expenses on Buyback

Sub-total (i)

1,327 1,165
1,741 1,089
2,450 2,674
31 27
637 645
8,497 6,898
1,802 1,484
2,212 2,230
761 743
184 179
28 27
197 161
20 30
36 20
59 56
87 132

7 12

25 20
57 30

- 1
1,926 1,947
3 7

2 3

88 48
140 100
93 115
250 215
14 12
698 480
23,372 20,550
23,372 20,550
23,372 20,550




(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

PROVISIONS/ IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE

Loss allowance for trade receivables

Loss Allowance for Expected Credit Loss -Trade Receivables
Allowance for Bad and doubtful advances / deposits
Allowance for Bad and doubtful claims

Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Loan

Allowance for stores and spares/ Construction stores
Allowance for Shortage in store & spares provided
Allowance for Project expenses

Allowance for losses pending investigation awaiting write off sanction

Others
Sub-total

Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation
Sub-total

Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction

Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works
Sub-total (ii)

Total (i+ii)

3

23,375

291

29.2

29.3
(i)
(if)
(iif)

Disclosure about leases are given in Note 34 of Financial Statements.

(Amount in  Lakhs)

Detail of audit expenses are as under: -

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

i) Statutory auditors

As Auditor

- Audit Fees

- Tax Audit Fees

In other Capacity

- Taxation Matters

- Limited Review

- Company Law Matters

- Management Services

- Other Matters/services

- Reimbursement of expenses
ii) Cost Auditors

- Audit Fees

- Reimbursement of expenses
iii) Goods and Service Tax (GST) Auditors
- Audit Fees

- Reimbursement of expenses
Total Audit Expenses

25

21

Rent includes the following expenditure as per IND AS-116 " Leases".

Expenditure on short-term leases other than lease term of one month or less
Expenditure on long term lease of low-value assets
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

31

27

NOTE NO. 30.1

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Current Tax
Current Tax on Profits for the year
Adjustment Relating To Earlier years

18,918

18,679

Total Current Tax expenses

18,918

18,679

Deferred Tax

Decrease /(increase) in Deferred Tax Assets

- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
- Relating to change in tax rate

- Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of earlier years

- On account of MAT credit entitlement recognised

- On account of MAT credit entitlement utilized

Increase/ (decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities

- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
- Relating to change in tax rate

- Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of earlier years

205

18,450

3,389

Total Deferred Tax Expenses (benefits)

18,342

22,044

Net Deferred Tax

18,342

22,044

Total

37,260

40,723




30.1.1

Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense and the accounting profit
multiplied by India's statutory Income Tax rate.

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Accounting profit/loss before income tax including movement in Regulatory

Deferral Account Balance 107,593 108,350
Applicable tax rate (%) 34.944% 34.944%
Computed tax expense 37,597 37,862
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (Taxable) in calculating

taxable income.

Non Deductible Tax Expenses (337) 2,861
Tax Exempt Income

Adjustment for current tax of earlier years - -
Minimum Alternate Tax Adjustments

Change in rate of tax

Income tax expense reported in Statement of Profit and Loss 37,260 40,723

NOTE NO. 30.2 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations (306) (112)
Less: Income Tax on remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit
obligations LA07) (39)
Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations (net (199) (73)
of Tax)
Less:-Movem_ent ir} Re_gulatory Deferral Account Balances in respect of tax on 107 a9
defined benefit obligations
-Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances-Remeasurement of post i i
employment defined benefit obligations
Less: Impact of Tax on Regulatory Deferral Accounts 5 -
Sub total (a) (306) (112)
(b) Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI - -
Less: Income Tax on above item - -
Sub total (b) - -
Total (i)=(a)+(b) (306) (112)
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Changes in the fair value of debt investments at FVTOCI - -
Less: Income Tax on above item - -
Sub total (a) - -
(b) Cost of Hedge Reserve - -
Less: Income Tax on above item s -
Sub total (b) - .
Total (il)=(a)+(b) - -
Total =(i+ii) (306) (112)

NOTE NO. 3

1 Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

(i)
(i)
(iif)

Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tariff period upto 2009 (1,079) (964)

Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liabilities for tariff period 2014-2019 and 1325 3,593

onwards

Regulatory Liability on account of recognition of MAT Credit 13,363 13,597
TOTAL (i)+(ii)+(iii) 13,609 16,226

Impact of Tax on Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Less: Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances -

Add: Deferred Tax recoverable from Beneficiaries - -

Total 13,609 16,226

311

Refer Note 14.1 and 14.2 of Financial Statements.




NOTE NO. 32 EXPENDITURE ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONSTRUCTION (EAC) FORMING PART OF CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS FOR THE

YEAR
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended

c
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

A. GENERATION EXPENSE
Water Usage Charges -

Consumption of stores = B
Sub-total - .

B. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages . = -
Contribution to provident and other funds - =
Staff welfare expenses - -
Leave Salary and Pension Contribution - -

Sub-total - -

C. FINANCE COST
Interest on : (Refer Note 2.2.3)
Bonds - -
Foreign loan « -
Term loan - -
Lease Liabilities - 3

Cash credit facilities /WCDL “ -
Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost = =

Loss on Hedging Transactions - -

Bond issue/ service expenses & =
Commitment fee - -
Guarantee fee on loan « .

Other finance charges - =
Sub-total -

D. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES -
Sub-total - 2

E. OTHER EXPENSES

Repairs And Maintenance :
-Building 3 =
-Machinery - .
-Others . -

Rent and Hire Charges s s

Rates and taxes - .

Insurance - .

Security expenses % 2

Electricity Charges - -

Travelling and Conveyance - s

Expenses on vehicles - -

Telephone, telex and Postage " -

Advertisement and publicity = z

Entertainment and hospitality expenses - -

Printing and stationery = 5

Land Acquisition and Rehabilitation Expenditure - =

Losses on sale of assets : . -

Other general expenses = 5

Exchange rate variation (Debit) - -

Sub-total - -

F. LESS: RECEIPTS AND RECOVERIES
Income from generation of electricity — precommissioning 476 63
Interest on loans and advances = -
Profit on sale of assets = -
Exchange rate variation (Credit) = -
Provision/Liability not required written back = -
Miscellaneous receipts - -

Sub-total 476 63

TOTAL (A+B+C+D+E-F) (Refer Note 2.2) (476) (58)




Note-33: Disclosure on Financial Instruments and Risk Management

(1)Fair Value Measurement

A) Financial Instruments by category

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2025

As as 31st March, 2024

Total Financial Liabilities

s Fair value . Fair value
Fairvalue through Other Fair value through Other
Financial assets Notes through Profit 9 . Amortised Cost | through Profit i e Amortised Cost
Comprehensive Comprehensive
or Loss or Loss
Income Income
Non-current Financial assets
(i) Non-current investments
a) In Equity Instrument (Quoted) 31
b) In Debt Instruments (Government/ Public Sector
Underlaking)- Quoted -
Sub-total o . - -
(i) Trade Receivables 3.2 = 3,041
(i) Loans
a) Loans to Related Party 33 < =
b) Employees 33 2,926 3,152
c) Others 33 & -
(iv) Others
-Deposits 3.4 183 199
-Lease Receivables including interest 34 3,59,352 3,59,539
-Receivable on account of Lale payment Surcharge 34 . 32
-Amount Recoverable 3.4 & -
-Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months
Maturity (Including interest accrued) 3.4 1,531 1,598
Total Non-current Financial assets - " 3,63,992 - . 3,67,561
Current Financial assets

(i) Current Investments 6 - -

(ii) Trade Receivables 7 39,520 45,744

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 4,627 740

(iv) Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 164674 1.90,182

(v) Loans 10

-Employee Loans 77 648
-Loans lo Related Parly - .
-Others - .

(vi) others (Excluding Lease Receivables) 1 8,864 16,967

(vii) others (Derivative Mark to Markel Asset) 1" - -

(viii) others (Derivative Assel Under Hedged Contract) 1" - -

(ix) others (Lease Receivables including interest) 1 6,713 6.585
Total Current Financial Assets - - 2,25115 - - 2,60,866
Total Financial Assets - - 5,89,107 - - 6,28,427

As at 31st March, 2025 As as 31st March, 2024
Fair value Falrvalue Fair value Fairvalue
iy dieay th
Financial Liabilities Notes through Profit thraugh Olh.er Amortised Cost through Profit rough Olh.cr Amortised Cost
Comprehensive Comprehensive
or Loss or Loss
Income Income

Non-current Financial Liabilities
(i) Long-term borrowings 16.1 - -
(ii) Long term maturities of lease liabilities 16.2 5,019 64
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 16.3 105 59
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 16.3 - -
(v) Other Financial Liabilities 16.3 - -
Total Non-current Financial Liabilities - 5124 = - 123
Current Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowing -Short Term including current maturities of long
term borrowings 20.1 . 4.300
(i) Current maturities of lease obligations 20.2 194 7
(iii) Trade Payables including Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises . 20.3 1,598 1,541
(iv) Other Current financial liabilities

a) Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 20.4 - <

b) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 20.4 - = 1

c) Other Current Liabilities 20.4 12,597 21,522
Total Current Financial Liabilities - - 14,389 - 27,371

- - 19,513 - - 27,494




B) FAIR VALUATION MEASUREMENT
*(i) Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost
and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inpuls used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial

instruments into the following three levels prescribed under Ind AS-113 “Fair Value Measurements”

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments and traded bonds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity
instruments including bonds which are traded in the recognised Stock Exchange and money markets are valued using the closing prices as at the reporling date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litlle as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. This includes derivative Mark To Market assets/

liabilities, Term Loans etc.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable markel data, the instrument is included in level 3.The fair value of financial assets and liabilities included in level 3 is determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments. This
includes derivative security deposits/ retention money and loans at lower than market rates of interest,

(a) Financial Assets/Liabilities Measured at Fair Value-Recurring Fair Value Measurement:

(Amount in ¥

Particulars

Note No.

As at 31st March, 2025

As as 31st March, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets at FVTOCI
(i) Investments-

- In Equity Instrument (Quoted) 3.1 . -

- In Debt Instruments (Govermnment/

Public Sector Undertaking)- Quoted * 3.1and6 & &

Financial Assets at FVTPL :
(i) Derivative MTM Asset (Call spread option and Coupon
only swap) J4and 11 - ~
(ii) Derivative Asset Under Hedged Contract 3.4 and 11 - N
Total Financial Assets - - - - - %
Financlal Liabilities at FVTPL :
. - o . 16.3 and
(i) Derivative MTM Liability (Call spread option) 20.4 ) R
(ii) Derivalive Liability under Hedged Contract 16;)2:":‘ 3 )

Total Financial Liabilities

Note:

* in the absence of lalest quoted markel rates in respect of these instruments, rates have been derived as per Fixed Income Money Market and Derivalives Association of India (FIMMDA).

All other financial assets and financial liabilities have been measured at amortised cost at balance sheet dale and classified as non-recurring fair value measurement.

(b) Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at amortised cost for which Fair Value are disclosed:

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
(l) Trade Receivables 3.2 - 3,030
(li) Loans
a) Employees (including current
loans) 3.3and 10 3,644 3,800
b) Loans to Related Party 3.3 - -
c) Others 3.3 - -
(iii) Others
Security Deposits 3.4 183 199
-Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity 34
(Including Interest accrued) ) 1,531 1,598
-Recoverable-Others 3.4 - 32
Total Financial Assets - 5,358 - - 8,659 -
Financial Liabilities
(i) Long Term Borrowings including Current maturities and | 16.1,20.1
accrued interest and 20.4
(ii) Other Long Term Financial Liabilities 16.3 - 105 = 63
Total Financial Liabilities - - 105 - - 63
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
(c) Fair value of Financial Assets and liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Note No. Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 3.2 - - 3,041 3,030
(ii) Loans
" lEoﬂ;zI:)yees (rebiding Sumant 3.3and 10 3,644 3,644 3,800 3,800
b) Loans to Related Party 33 - N . <
c) Others 3.3 - - - -
(iii) Others
Security Deposils 34 183 183 199 199
-Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity 34 .
(Including Interest accrued) 1,531 1,531 1,598, 1,598
-Recoverable-Others 3.4 - - 32 32
-Recoverable on account of Bonds 34
fully Serviced by Government of India B . B .
Total Financial Assets 5,358 5,358 8,670 8,659
Financial Liabilities
(i) Long Term Borrowings inc'..ding Current maturities arnd | 16.1,20.1
accrued interest and 20.4 - - 4,301 4,301
(i) Other Long Term Financial Liabilities 16.3 105 105 59 63
Total Financial Liabilities 105 105 4,360 4,364

Note:-

1. The Carrying amounts of current investments, Trade and olher receivables (Current), Cash and cash equivalents
current financial liabilities are considered 1o be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature
-For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair value.

(d) Valuation techniques and process used to determine fair values

. Short-term loans and advances, Short Term Borrowings, Trade payables and other

(1) The Company values financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. Specific valuation techniques used to determine fair value of financial instruments includes:
- Use of Quoted markel price or dealer quotes for similar instruments

- Fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(2) The discount rate used to fair value financial instruments classified at Level -3 is based on the Weighted Average Rate of company's outstanding borrowings except subordinate debls and foreign

currency borrowings.

(3) Financial liabililies that are subsequently measured at amorlised cost are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs using the effective interest method where such transaction costs

incurred on long term borrowings are material



(2)Financial Risk Management
(A) Financial risk factors .

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks.These are summarized as below:-

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash & Cash equivalents, Other Bank Balances ,Trade receivables  |Ageing analysis, credit [Diversification of bank deposits, letter of
and financial assets measured at amortised cost, Lease Receivable. |rating. credit for selected customers.

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other facilities. Rolling cash flow Availability of commitied credit lines and

forecasts & Budgets

borrowing facilities.

Market Risk- Interest rate Long term borrowings at variable rates

Sensitivity Analysis

1. Diversification of fixed rate and floating
rates

2. Refinancing

3. Aclual Interest is recovered through lariff
as per CERC Regulation

Market Risk- security prices Investment in equity and debt securities

Sensitivily Analysis

Portfolio diversification

Market Risk- foreign exchange

Recognised financial liabilities not denominated in INR.

Sensitivity Analysis

Foreign exchange rate variation is
recovered through tariff as per CERC
Regulation. Call spread option and coupon
only swap

Risk management framework

The Company's activities make it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices.
Company has a well-defined risk management policy to provide overall framework for risk management in the Company. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the

establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.
The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 1o a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables/leased assets) and from its financing activities including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

i) Liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.

iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise of three types of risk:
currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity and debt price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and
investments. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk
is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The company operates in a regulated environment. Tariff of the company is fixed by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) through Annual Fixed Charges (AFC)

comprising of the following five components:

1. Return on Equity (RoE), 2. Depreciation, 3. Interest on Loans, 4. Operation & Maintenance Expenses and 5. Interest on Working Capital Loans. In addition to the above, Foreign
Exchange rate variations and Taxes are also recoverable from Beneficiaries in terms of the Tariff Regulations. Hence variation in inlerest rate, currency exchange rate variations and
other price risk variations are recoverable from tariff and do not impact the profitability of the company. Further, the company also hedges its medium term foreign currency borrowings

by way of interest rate hedge and currency swaps.

(B) Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating aclivities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial

instruments.

Trade Receivables, unbilled revenue and lease receivables :-

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company monitors the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding receivables are regularly
monitored. In the case of the Company, the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables is low, as its customers are mainly state government companies/DISCOMS and
operate in largely independent markets. Unbilled revenue primarily relates to the Company's right to consideration for work compleled but not billed at the reporting date and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as trade receivables for the same type of contracts.

Lease receivables of the company are with regard to Power Purchase Agreements classified as finance lease as per Ind AS 116- 'Leases' as referred to in Note No. 34. The power
purchase agreements are for sale of power {o single beneficiary and recoverability of interest income and principal on leased assets i.e. PPE of the power slations are assessed on the

same basis as applied for trade receivables.
Financlal assets at amortised cost :-

Employee Loans: The Company has given loans to employees al concessional rates as per the Company's policy which have been measured at amortised cost at Balance Sheet
date. The recovery of the loan is on fixed instalment basis from the monthly salary of the employees. Long term loans for acquisition of assets are secured by way of
mortgage/hypothecation of the assets for which such loans are given. Management has assessed the past data and does not envisage any probability of default on these loans.

Financial instruments and cash deposits :-

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the bank, market reputation and service standards to select banks with which balances and deposits are maintained.
Generally, the balances are maintained with banks with which the Company has also availed borrowings. The Company invests surplus cash in short term deposits with scheduled
banks. The company has balances and deposits with banks which are well diversified across private and public sector banks with limited exposure to any single bank.

Corporate Guarantee issued by the Company: -Nil

(i) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporling date is as under:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected

Credit Losses (ECL) )

Non-current investments (Other than Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures) - -
Loans -Non Current (including interest) 2,926 3,152
Other Non Current Financia! Asse:s (Excluding Lease keceivables and Share 1,714 1,829
Application Money Pending Allotment)

Current Investments N B
Cash and cash equivalents 4,627 740
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,64,674 1,90,182
Loans -Current 717 648
Other Financial Assels (Excluding Lease Receivables) 8,864 16,967
Total (A) 1,83,522 2,13,518
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected

Credit Losses (ECL)

Trade Receivables 39,520 48,785
Lease Receivables (Including Interest) 3,66,065 366,124
Total (B) 4,05,585 4,14,909
TOTAL (A+B) 5,89,107 6,28,427




(ii) Provision for expected credit losses :-
(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses
The Company assesses outstanding receivables on an ongoing basis considering changes in payment behaviour and provides for expected credil loss on case-lo-case basis.

(b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses
A default in recovery of financial assets occurs when in there is no significant possibility of recovery of receivables after considering all available options for recovery as per assessment
of the management. As the power stations and beneficiaries of the company are spread over various states of India, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

CERC Tariff Regulations 2024-29 allow the Company to raise bills on beneficiaries for late-payment surcharge, which adequately compensates the Company for time value of money
due to delay in payment. Further, the fact that beneficiaries are primarily State Governments/ State Discoms and considering the historical credit loss experience for trade receivables,
the Company does not envisage either impairment in the value of receivables from beneficiaries or loss due to time value of money due to delay in realization of trade receivables.
However, the Company assesses outstanding trade receivables on an ongoing basis considering changes in operating results and payment behaviour and provides for expected credit
loss on case-to-case basis. As at the reporting date company does not envisage -any defaull risk on account of non-realization of trade receivables.

(iii) Reconcillation of impairment loss provisions
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the year was as follows:
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

[ 1 o) o

Particulars Tx:dd(' [nvestments Claim Recoverable Loans Total
Reccivables

Balance as at 1.4.2023 - - 3 s 3

Changes in Loss Allowances - = s - N

Balance as at 1.4.2024 : - - 3 5 3

Changes in Loss Allowances - - a _ N

Balance as at 31.3.2025 - » 3 . 3

Based on historical default rates, the company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of any other financial assets as the amounts of such allowances are not
significant.

(C) Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities

to meet obligations when due.

i) The Company's objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity at all times to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company relies on a mix of borrowings and excess
operating cash flows to meet its need for funds. The current committed lines of credit and internal accruals are sufficient to meet its short to medium lerm expansion needs. The
Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet capital expenditure and operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) are not breached on any of its borrowing facilities.

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year:
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March,
2025

Particulars

Floating rate borrowing :-
(a) Term Loan-Secured

(b) Term Loan-Unsecured
(c) cash Credit

Fixed rate borrowing

(a) Term Loan-Secured

(b) Term Loan-Unsecured
(c) cash Credit

Total - s
Terms of undrawn borrowing facilities :-

i) Maturities of Financial Liabllities:

The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 1 year is equal to their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

As at 31st March, 2025 (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Contractual maturities of financial Note No. Outstanding Debt as on Within 1 Year More than 1 Year & Less More than 3 Year & More than 5 Year
liabilities 31.3.2025 than 3 Years Less than 5 Years
Borrowings 16.1 and 20.1 - - - 4 .
Lease Liabilities 16.2 & 20.2 9,668 194 1,083 1,028 7,363
Other financial Liabilities 16.3& 20.4 12,724 12,604 107 13 -
Trade Payables 20.3 1,598 1,598 - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 23,990 14,396 1,190 1,041 7,363
As at 31st March, 2024 (Amountin ¥ Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial Note No. Outstanding Debt as on Within 1 Year More than 1 Year & Less More than 3 Year & More than 5 Year
liabilities 31.03.2024 than 3 Years Less than 5 Years
Borrowings 16.1 and 20.1 4,300 4,300 - - -
Lease Liabilities 16.2 & 20.2 118 7 24 15 72
Other financial Liabilities 16.3&20.4 21,594 21,627 67 - -
Trade Payables 20.3 1,541 1,541 - - -
27,553 27,375 91 15 72
Total Financial Liabilities

(D) Market Risk:

The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-employment benefit obligation provisions and on the non-financial assets
and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant item of the Statement of Profit and Loss is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. The Company's activities
expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in interest rates.

(i) Interest rate risk and sensitivity

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily o the Company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. Company's policy is to
maintain most of ils borrowings at fixed rate. Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost and are not subject Lo interest rate risk. Further the company refinances
these debts as and when favourable terms are available. The company is also compensated for variabilily in floating rate through recovery by way of tariff adjustments under CERC tariff

regulations.

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporling year are as follows:




(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

As at 31st March,

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025|As at 31st Marcﬁ, 2024| As at 31st March, 2024

2025
weighted average weighted average
interest rate (%) interest rate (%)

Floaling Rale Borrowings (INR) - = = =
Floaling Rale Borrowings {FC) - = = =
ixed Rate Borrowings (INR) - = S 5
Fixed Rale Borrowings (FC) - = = =

Total - -

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Profit or loss is sensilive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The majority of the borrowings of the company are at fixed interest rate.
In case of floating rate borrowings there is no impact on Statement of Profit and Loss of the company due to increase/decrese in interest rates, as the same is recoverable from
beneficiaries through tariff .

(i) Price Risk:
(a) Exposure
The company's exposure to price risk arises from investment in equity shares and debt instruments classified in the financial statements as Fair Value Through OCI. Company's

investment in equily shares are listed in recognised slock exchange and are publicly traded in the stock exchanges. Company's investment in debt instruments comprise quoted
Government Securities and Public Sector Bonds and are publicly traded in the market. The investment has been classified under current / non-current investment in Balance Sheet.

Al a reporting date, the exposure o equity and debt instruments are as under:-

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

[Particul
Rarticulars As at 31st March,

2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Equity Instruments - =

Debt Instruments a a

(b) Price Risk Sensitivity

For Investment in Equity Instruments ( Investment in equity shares of PTC )
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease in the market price of investment in equity instruments on the company's equity for the year:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

t t in Equity shares of :
Investmen U Impact on other

components of equity

Impact on other

% ch
% change components of equity

% change

-Nil-

Sensitivity has been worked out based on the previous 3 years average of six monthly fluctuations in the share price as quoted on the National Stock Exchange (NSE).

For Investment in Debt Instruments (Investments in Government and Public Sector Undertaking Bonds)
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the market value of the debt instruments on company's equity for the year:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
% change|Impact on other| % change|lmpact on other|
components of equity components of equity
-Nil-

(ili)Foreign Currency Risk
The company is compensated for variability in foreign currency exchange rate through recovery by Way of tariff adjustments under the CERC Tariff Regulations.

(a) Foreign Currency Exposure:
The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting year expressed in INR are as follows :

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2025|As at 31st March, 2024

Financial Liabilities:
Foreign Currency Loans
Other Financial Liabilities R 87

Net Exposure to foreign currency (liabilities)

- 87

(b) Sensitivity Analysis
There is no impact of foreign currency fluctuations on the profit of the company as these are either adjusted to the carrying cost of respective fixed assel/Capital Work-in-Progress or
recovered through tariff as per CERC Tariff Regulation. Accordingly, sensivity analysis for currency risk is not disclosed.



Place:
Date:

(3) Capital Management

(a) Capital Risk Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. Company's objective by managing capital is lo safeguard its ability to continue as
going concern, so thal it continues o provide relurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. CERC Tariff Regulations prescribe Debt : Equity ratio of 70:30 for the
purpose of fixation of tariff of Power Projects. Accordingly, the company manages its capital structure to maintain the normative capital structure prescribed by the CERC.

The Company monitors capital using Debt : Equity ratio, which is total debl divided by total capital. The Debt : Equity ratio are as follows:

(Amount in  Lakhs)

Statement of Gearing Ratio

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Particulars

(a) Total Debt 5213 4,371

(b) Total Capital 5,68,222 5,66,868
0.01 0.01

Gearing Ratio (a/b)

Note: For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and reserves. Total debt includes Long term debts and Lease Liabilities including

current maturities thereof & Short lerm Borrowings.
{b) Loan Covenants:
As on 31/03/2025 Company is a debt-free Company.

(c) Dividends:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

(i) Equity Shares

(i) Dividend declared in previous year and paid in current year

3rd Interim dividend for the year ended 31st March 2024 of Rs. 72/- per fully paid
up Shares (3rd Interim dividend of Rs. 85/- per fully paid up Share for year ended
31 st March 2023)

14,131 16,682

(ii) Dividend declared and paid in current year

The 1st, 2nd & 3rd Interim dividend of Rs. 67/, Rs. 165/- & Rs. 114/- respectively
per fully paid up Shares for the year ended 31st March 2025 (1st & 2nd Interim
dividend of Rs. 192/- & Rs. 210/- respectively for the year ended 31st March 2024)

67,905 78,896

(iii) Dividend not recognised at the end of the reporting year

The directors have declared the payment of 4th Interim dividend of Rs. 72/- per
fully paid up Shares for year ended 31 st March 2025 (3rd Interim dividend of Rs.
72/- per fully paid up Shares for year ended 31 st March 2024) .

14,131 14,131

As per our report of even date attached

For B.C.P. Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn.No. 000802C)

CA AMIT JAIN
Partner
M.No. 077986
UDIN: 25077986BMJPDF8300

Bhopal
09-05-2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

R -Jase, -
s
RAJEEV JAIN
Managing Director
DIN: 10725127,

~ .
N K

DEEPAK AHUJA
General Manager (Fin) &
Chief Financial Officer

MADHUS, PANY
Director

DIN: 09319007

V. K. TRIPATHI
Co. Secfetary
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NHDC LIMITED

Note No. — 34: Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts

1.

a)

Disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities:
Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for -

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

(i) Capital works

(if)

(i)

Contractors have lodged claims aggregating to ¥ 23132 Lakhs (Previous year 326612 Lakhs)
against the Company on account of rate and quantity deviation, cost relating to extension of
time, idling charges due to stoppage of work/delays in handing over the site etc. These claims
are being contested by the company as being not admissible in terms of provisions of the
respective contracts or are lying at arbitration tribunal/other forums/under examination with
the Company. These include ¥23132 Lakhs (Previous year ¥26612 Lakhs) towards arbitration
awards including updated interest thereon, against the Company, which have been
challenged/decided to be challenged in the Court of Law.

Management has assessed the above claims and recognized a 'provision of ¥ NIL (Previous
year ¥ NIL) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and
estimated 23132 Lakhs (Previous year ¥26612 Lakhs) as the amount of contingent liability
i.e. amounts for which Company may be held contingently liable. In respect of such estimated
contingent claims either the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable or a reliable estimate of the amount required for settling the obligation cannot be
made. In respect of the rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement
is considered as remote.

Land Compensation cases

In respect of land acquired for the projects, some of the erstwhile land owners have filed
claims for higher compensation amounting to ¥ 24515 Lakhs (Previous year ¥25683 Lakhs)
before various authorities/courts. Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and
provided an amount of 22106 Lakhs (Previous year 32672 Lakhs) based on probability of
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and estimated 222409 Lakhs (Previous
year 223011 Lakhs) as the amount of contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered
as not probable. In respect of the rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in
settlement is considered as remote.

Disputed Tax Demands

Disputed Income Tax/other taxes/duties matters pending before various appellate authorities
amount to ¥ NIL (Previous year Z NIL). Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and

- provided an amount of Z NIL (Previous year Z NIL) based on probability of outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits and ¥ NIL (Previous year ¥ NIL) are being disclosed as
contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered not probable. In respect of the rest
of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.

Others

Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters amount to 58043 Lakhs (Previous year
¥29837 Lakhs). These claims are pending before various forums. Pending settlement, the
Company has assessed and provided an amount of ¥ NIL (Previous year ¥ NIL) based on
probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and estimated 358043 Lakhs
(Previous year 29837 Lakhs) as the amount of contingent liability as outflow of resources is
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considered as not probable. In respect of the rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any
outflow in settlement is considered as remote.

The above is summarized as below:

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

SI. |Particulars |Claims as |uptodate [Contingent |Contingent |Addition/ Decrease of
No. on Provision |liability as on |liability as on |(deduction) |contingent
31.03.2025 |against the |31.03.2025 |31.03.2024  |from liability from
claims contingent | Opening
liability Balance as
during the on
year 01.04.2024
(i) (i) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii)=(v)-(vi) (viii)
1 Capital 23,132 - 23,132 26,612 (3,480) 4,510
" | Works
Land 24,515 2,106 22,409 23,011 (602) 1,629
2. | Compensati
on cases
Disputed tax = = - - - -
3.
matters
4. | Others 58,043 - 58,043 29,837 28,206 3
Total 1,05,690 2,106 1,03,584 79,460 24,124 6,142

(b) The above do not include contingent liabilities on account of pending cases in respect of service
matters and others where the amount cannot be quantified.

(c)

contingent liabilities.

(d)

above Contingent Liabilities.

It is not practicable to ascertain and disclose the uncertainties relating to outflow in respect of

There is possibility of reimbursement to the company of ¥ NIL (Previous year  NIL) towards

(e) (i) An amount of  NIL (Previous year Z NIL) stands paid towards above Contingent Liabilities
in respect of Capital Works, pursuant to Niti Aayog directions issued vide OM No.
14070/14/2016-PPPAU dated 5th September 2016, in cases where Arbitral Tribunals have
passed orders in favour of contractors and such awards/orders have been further
challenged/being challenged by the Company in a Court of Law.

(i) An amount of ¥93 Lakhs (Previous year %838 Lakhs) stands paid /deposited with
courts/paid as per Court Order towards above contingent liabilities to contest the cases
and has been shown under Other Non-Current/ Current Assets/ adjusted against other
liabilities of the claimants. (Also refer Note no. 04).

(iii) Other contingent liability includes case where, the contractor has claimed an amount of
Z14 Lakhs towards Invoice amount and Z1 Lakh to'wvards interest on delayed period under
this claim. Since, the Invoice amount of 14 Lakhs has already been paid to the contractor,
hence the same has not been considered for contingent liability. Only interest amount of
¥1 Lakh (Previous Year Z1 Lakh) has been considered for contingent liability.

(f) The Management does not expect tHat the above claims/obligations (including under litigation),
when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the

company's results of operations or financial condition.

(8




(9)

NHDC LIMITED

During the year Contingent liabilities of 4510 Lakhs (Previous year Z NIL) against claims
of contractors has been reduced under Vivad se Vishwas Il Scheme (Contractual
Disputes) notified by the Government of India vide Office Memorandum dated 29.05.2023.

2. Contingent Assets: Contingent assets in respect of the Company are on account of the -

w2

following:

a) Counter Claims lodged by the company on other entities:

The company has lodged counter claims aggregating to ¥ NIL (Previous year Z NIL) Against
claims of other entities. These claims have been lodged on the basis of contractual provisions
and are being contested at arbitration tribunal/other forums/under examination with the
counterparty. It includes counter claims of ¥ NIL (Previous year ¥ NIL) towards arbitration
awards including updated interest thereon.

Based on Management assessment, a favourable outcome is probable in respect of the
claims aggregating ¥ NIL (Previous year ¥ NIL) and for rest of the claims, the possibility of
any inflow is remote. Accordingly, these claims have not been recognised.

b) Late Payment Surcharge:

c)

d)

CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations 2019-24/2024-29 provide for levy of Late
Payment Surcharge by generating company in case of delay in payment by beneficiaries
beyond specified days from the date of presentation of bill. In view of significant uncertainties
in the ultimate collection from the beneficiaries, an amount of Z NIL (Previous year ¥ NIL) as
estimated by the management has not been recognised.

Revenue to the extent not recognised in respect of power stations:

Tariff orders for 2019-24/2024-29 are pending in respect of all Power stations. Management
has assessed that additional revenue of ¥ NIL (Previous year ¥ NIL) is likely to accrue on
account of tariff revision which has not been recognised due to significant uncertainty for the
approval thereof.

Business Interruption Losses

Insurance Claims due to Business Interruption Losses in respect of Power Stations are
recognised when no significant uncertainty of ultimate collection exists. Management has
assessed the claim of ¥ NIL (Previous Year Z NIL) in this respect which has not been
recognised.

Other Cases

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Claims estimated by Management but not
been recognized on account of other - -
miscellaneous matters comprising of:

Non-payment/short payment of interest at

agreed rate on FDR from Bank of India 5013 4248
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3. Commitments (to the extent not provided for):
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account are as under:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

s Particulars e As
No. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv)
1. Property Plant and Equipment (including 2397 36856
Capital Work in Progress)
2. Intangible Assets 1561 1561
Total 3958 38417

4. Other Commitments (if any) : ¥13 Lakhs (previous year % NIL), work done pending approval
are included in Capital Work-in-Progress/Property, Plant and Equipment.

5. Disclosures as per IND AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers':
(A) Nature of goods and services

The revenue of the Company comprises of income from electricity sales. Sale of electricity is
the only principal activity of the Company.

(a) Revenue from sale of electricity

The major revenue of the Company comes from sales of electricity. The Company sells
electricity to electricity utilities owned by M.P. State Government. Sale of electricity is
generally made pursuant to long-term' Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) entered into
with the beneficiary.

The details of nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant
payment terms under contracts for electricity sales are as under:

Product/ Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and

Service significant payment terms

Sale of | The Company recognises revenue from contracts for electricity sales on the
electricity basis of long-term Power Purchase Agreements entered into with the

beneficiaries, which is for substantially the entire life of the Power Stations,
i.e. 40 years in case of Hydro Power Stations and 25 years in case of Solar
Power Stations. In case of hydro power station, Revenue from sale of
electricity is accounted for based on tariff rates approved by the CERC for
tariff periods of 5 years as modified by the orders of Appellate Tribunal for
Electricity to the extent applicable. In case of power stations where the tariff
rates are yet to be approved/approved provisionally by the CERC in their
orders, provisional rates are adopted considering the applicable CERC Tariff
Regulations. In case of Solar Power Stations, the revenue from sale of
electricity is billed based as per the terms of Power Purchase Agreements
(PPA) and are payable as per Terms of PPA i.e. ¥ 3.22 per unit.

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognised once the electricity has been
delivered to the beneficiary. Beneficiaries are billed on a periodic and regular
basis.
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(B) Disaggregation of Revenue
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by type of product and services,
geographical market and timing of revenue recognition:
(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars Generation of electricity Others for the Total for the period ended
For the period ended period ended
(including revenue
classified under Finance
, Leases)
Geographical | . 135005 | 31.03.2024 |31.03.2025(31.03.2024| 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
markets
India 140111 126876 - - 140111 126876
Others - - - - - -
Total 140111 126876 - 140111 126876
Timing of revenue recognition
Products and
Services 140111 126876 - 140111 126876
transferred
over time
(L’er‘l'j‘;‘ =old 5,524.64 4448.60 - - 5,524.64 4448.60

88MW Omkareshwar Floating Solar Project has been commissioned during F.Y. 2024-25 and
96.059 MU (valuing % 2924 Lakhs) was sold to M/s MPPMCL during the aforesaid period, out
of which 19.690 MU (valuing % 476 Lakhs) pertains to pre-commissioning income.

(C) Contract Balances
Details of trade receivables, unbilled revenue and ‘advances from customers / clients for
Deposit Works and Contract Liabilities-Project Management/Consultancy Work are as
under:
(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Current Non- Current Non-
Current Current
Trade Receivables 26784 . 37209 3041
Unbilled Revenue 12736 - 8535
Advance from Customers and i )
Others

The Company has recognised revenue of ¥ NIL (Previous Year Z NIL) from opening contract

liabilities.

As on 31.03.2025, an amount includes ¥ 987Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 987 Lakhs) which is
disputed by beneficiary.
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(D) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations is either not
applicable or not material to the Company’s operations.

(E) Practical expedients applied as per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’:

(i) The company has not disclosed information about remaining performance obligations that
have original expected duration of one year or less and where the revenue recognised
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed
to date.

(ii) Company does not have any contracts in the normal course of business where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by
the customer exceeds one year. Accordingly, transaction price has been adjusted for the
time value of money only where such time value of money is significant.

(F) The Company has not incurred any incremental costs of obtaining contracts with a
customer and has therefore, not recognised any asset for such costs.

6. Government of Madhya Pradesh (GoMP), being a joint venture partner, contributed on various
accounts through Narmada Valley Development Authority (NVDA) after setting off other
expenses incurred on behalf of NHDC as details given below: -

Indira Sagar Project: -
(Amount in % Lakhs)

(A) Amount received in Cash or in Cumulative up to During Apr to Cumulative up to
kind 31.03.2024 March-2025 31.03.2025

i. Expenditure by NVDA on account of

Project 138347 221 138568
ii. Cash Received 67283 0 67283
iii. Amount transferred from OSP Alc 856 0 856
Total of (A) 206486 221 206707
(B) Due/Adjusted on account of 0 0 0
i. Equity Capital 66000 0 66000
ii. Irrigation Component 40881 75 40956
iii. SSP Component 52239 95 52334
iv. Sub-vention towards excess R&R

Expenses 43884 491 44375
v. Electricity charges & water supply

maintenance charges 504 0 504
vi. Equity of OSP 3308 0 3308
Total of (B) 206816 661 207477
(C) Amount recoverable from NVDA

ie. (B-A) 330 440 770
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(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

(D) Amount received in Cash orin kind g;";;lzzﬁz‘f up W D&J;igg:'gg;go Cur;:lg;i;g;sp B
i. Expenditure by NVDA on account of
Project 13788 142 13930
ii. Cash Received 68041 500 68541
iii. Amount transferred from ISP A/C 3308 0 3308
Total of (D) 85137 642 85779
(E) Duel/Adjusted on account of 0 0
i. Equity Capital 30016 0 30016
ii. Irrigation Component 24370 9 24379
iii. Sub-venation towards excess R&R
Expenses 8676 22 8698
iv. Amount Transferred to ISP A/C 856 0 856
v. Additional Special R&R Package 23199 63 23262
Total of (E) 87117 94 87211
(F) Amount recoverable from NVDA i.e.
(E-D) 1980 (548) 1432
(G) Total Amount recoverable i.e (C+F) 2310 (108) 2202
Movement of Grant in Reserve during Apr -2024 to March-2025 is as under:-
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Sl. . As on - . Adjust- As on
N Particulars 01.04.2024 Additions | Deductions ieite 31.03.2025
1. Proportionate contribution 16464 75 773 15766

by Govt. of Madhya

Pradesh towards Irrigation

Component in ISPS as a

Grant-in-Aid
2. Proportionate Sub-vention 21043 95 987 20151

towards Sardar Sarovar

project transferred from

NVDA Account for ISPS.
3. Contribution by Govt of 20315 491 971 19835

Madhya Pradesh towards

R&R of ISPS.
4. Proportionate contribution 9856 9 417 9448

by Govt. of Madhya

Pradesh towards lIrrigation

Component in OSPS as

Grant-in-Aid
5. Contribution by Govt of 17755 85 754 17086

Madhya Pradesh towards

R&R of OSPS.

Total 85433 755 3902 82286
L
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7. The effect of foreign exchange rate variation (FERV) during the year are as under:
(Amount in % Lakhs)

Sl. | Particulars For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(i) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss

as FERV NIL NIL
(i) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss

as Borrowing Cost NIL NIL
(iii) | Amount charged to Capital work-in-progress as

FERV NIL NIL
(iv) | Amount adjusted in the carrying amount of PPE / 3 1

Lease Receivables

8. Operating Segment:

a) Electricity generation (including income from embedded Finance/ Operating leases) is the
principal business activity of the Company. Other operations viz., Contracts, Project
Management, Consultancy works do not form a reportable segment as per the Ind AS — 108
on ‘Operating Segment’.

b) The Company has a single geographical segment as all its Power Stations are located within .
the Country.

c) NHDC has single beneficiary /Customer, MP Power Management Co. Ltd. The revenue
from operations is ¥ 140111 Lakhs (Previous period ¥126876 Lakhs).

d) The Company is domiciled in India. Revenue from External Customers is Nil (Previous Year
Nil).
9. Disclosures under Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”:

(A) List of Related parties:

(i) Parent Company:

Principle place of
Name of Company operation

NHPC Limited India

(ii) Joint Ventures:- NIL
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(iif) Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. Name Position Held
Remarks
No.
1 Sh. Raj Kumar Chaudhary Chairman Appointed on 07.08.2024
2 Sh. Rajeev Jain Managing Director | Appointed on 01.08.2024
(KMP)
3 Sh. Vijay Kumar Sinha Managing Director | Superannuated on
(KMP) 31.07.2024
4 Sh. Rajendra Prasad Goyal | Director Presently continuing as
' Director of NHDC,
however ceased from
Chairmanship of the
Company w.e.f..
07.08.2024
5 Dr. Rajesh Rajora Director Continue
6 Sh. Hirdaram Chouhan Director Continue
7 CA. Arun Daga Director Continue
8 | Sh. Rajat Gupta Director Ceased on 13.08.2024
9 Smt. Madhusmita Pany Director Continue
10 | Sh. Deepak Ahuja CFO (KMP) Continue
11 | Sh. Vinay Kumar Tripathi Company Secretary | Continue
(KMP)

(iv) Post-Employment Benefit Plans of NHDC:

Principal place of

Name of Related Parties operation

NHDC Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust India
NHDC Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Fund India
NHDC Ltd. Retired Employees Health Scheme Fund India
NHDC Employees Social Security Scheme Trust India
NHDC Ltd. Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation ndia
Scheme

NHDC Ltd. Employees Leave Encashment Trust India

(v) Other entities with joint-control or significant influence over the Company:

The Company is a Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) controlled by Central
Government by holding majority of shares. The Company has applied the exemption
available for government related entities and has made limited disclosures in the Financial
Statements in accordance with Ind AS 24. Accordingly, Party-wise details of
material/significant transaction carried out with the Central Public Sector Enterprises/Govt.
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Agencies only have been disclosed. Transactions with these related parties are carried out
in the ordinary course of business at normal commercial terms.

(a) Interest of Hdlding Co.:

Proportion of Ownership

Name of Principle place Principal ;
Companies of operation activities interest as at
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
NHPC LTD India Power Generation 51 08% 51.08%

(b) Name and nature of relationship with Government:

(Wholly owned Company of Govt.
Madhya Pradesh)

Sl. Name of the Government Nature of Relationship with

No. NHPC

1 Government of India Shareholder having control over
Parent Company (NHPC)

2 NHPC Holding Company (51.08%)

3 Govt. of Madhya Pradesh Shareholder (26%) having
significant influence over the

4 Narmada Basin Projects Company | Shareholder (22.92%)  having

Limited significant influence over the

of | Company

5 Central/State controlled PSU

Entities controlled by the same
Government (Central
Government/State Govt.) that has
control over NHDC

(B) Transactions and Balances with related parties are as follows:

(i) Transactions and Balances with Parent (NHPC Limited)

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars

For the period
ended 31.03.2024

For the period
ended 31.03.2025

(i)

(ii) (iil)

Services received by the Company from

Parent 383 443
Services provided by the Company to Parent - -
Dividend Paid to Parent 41901 48818
Equity contributions by the Parent - -
Reimbursement of cost of employee on

247 170

deputation /posted

Loans & Advances given by the Company to:

Loans & Advances received by the Company
from:
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Balances with Parent (NHPC)

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Receivable (unsecured) - 163
Payable (unsecured) 252 63
Investment in Equity 100242 - 100242

Loans & Advances Receivable

Loans & Advances Payable

(ii) Transactions and Balances with Govt. of Madhya Pradesh

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Transactions with Govt. of Madhya
Pradesh

For the year
ended 31.03.2025

For the year
ended 31.03.2024

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Purchase of property/Other assets

Purchase of goods/Inventory

Services Received by the Company 372 468
Services Provided by the Company - 718
Sale of goods/Inventory made by the 140111 126876
company

Grant during the Year 755 1472
Dividend Paid During The Year 21329 24850

Balances with Govt. of Madhya Pradesh

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Receivable (unsecured) 41755 51265
Payable (unsecured) - -
Investment in Equity 51027 51027

Loans & Advances Receivable

Loans & Advances Payable
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(iii) Transactions and Balances with Narmada Basin Projects Company Limited

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Transactions with Narmada Basin
Projects Company Limited

For the period
ended 31.03.2025

For the period
ended 31.03.2024

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Purchase of property/Other assets

Purchase of goods/Inventory

Services Received by the Company

Services Provided by the Company

Sale of goods/Inventory made by the
company

Dividend Paid During The Year

18,805

21910

Balances with Narmada Basin Projects
Company Limited

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

(i)

(iii)

Receivable (unsecured)

Payable (unsecured)

Investment in Equity

Loans & Advances Receivable

Loans & Advances Payable

(iv) Transactions and Balances with Key Management Personnel:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars Transactions for the year ended 31.03.2025 and Balances as at 31.03.2025
Key . .
Compensation to Key Management Other transactions &
(HanAgement Personnel Balances
Personnel (KMP)
Interest
Short Term Past Other Termina- | received| ..,,. Out.sta-
Employ- Long - Sitting nding
Name Employee tion on
: ment Term : Fee Loans
Benefits . . Benefits | outstand- 2
Benefits Benefits : receivable
ing loans
1. Whole Time Directors/Functional Directors: ]
Sh. Rajeev Jain 59 9 - - 2
Sh. Vijay Kumar
Sirihig 49 4 20 -
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2. Nominee Directors:

A. Madhya Pardesh Government

CA Arun Daga

Dr. Rajesh Rajora

Sh. Hirdaram
Chouhan

Sh. SN Mishra

Sh. P.K. Sharma

2. Nominee Directors

B. Holding Company (NHPC LTD)

Sh. Rajeev Kumar
Vishnoi

Sh. Rajendra
Prasad Goval

Sh. Rajat Gupta

- Smt. Madhusmita

Pany

3. Company Secretary/CFO

Sh. Vinay Kumar

Tripathi 62 10 ) ) i i >
Sh. Deepak Ahuja 49 8 - - 1 - 9

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars Transactions for the period ended 31.03.2024 and Balances as at 31.03.2024
Key . .
Compensation to Key Management Other transactions &
management Personnel Balances
Personnel (KMP)
Interest
Short Term Post- Other 1o mina- | received| ... Outsta-
Employ- Long : Sitting nding
Name Employee tion on
’ ment Term ] Fee Loans
Benefits . - Benefits | outstand .
Benefits | Benefits . receivable
ing loans
1. Whole Time Directors/Functional Directors:
Sh. Vijay Kumar
Sinha 56 12 9 )
2. Nominee Directors:
A. Madhya Pardesh Government
CA Arun Daga - - - - - 3 -

Dr. Rajesh Rajora

Sh. Hirdaram
Chouhan

Sh. SN Mishra

Sh. P.K. Sharma
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2. Nominee Directors

B. Holding Company (NHPC LTD)

Sh. Rajeev Kumar
Vishnoi

Sh. Rajendra
Prasad Goyal

Sh. Rajat Gupta

Smt. Madhusmita
Pany

3. Company Secretary/CFO

Sh. Vinay Kumar ) ) )

Tripathi 40 10 ! ¢
Sh. Deepak Ahuja 30 6 5 - - - 5
Sh. Alok |

Srivastava 10 4 ) ) ) )

(v) Transactions & Balances with Post —-Employment Benefit Plans

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Post —-Employment Benefit

Plans

Contribution by the
company (Net of Refund

Balances with Post —
Employment Benefit

from Post —-Employment Plans
Benefit Plans) Payable/(Receivable)
for the year | for the year As at As at
ended ended 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 '
NHDC Limited Employees 708 673 61 58
Provident Fund Trust
NHDC Limited Employees
Group Gratuity Assurance 89 (34) 89 (34)
Fund
NHDC Limited Retired
Employees Health Scheme 381 309 416 324
Fund
NHDC Employees Social 23 23 2 2
Security Scheme Trust
NHDC Limited Employees
Defined Contribution 539 722 72 220
Superannuation Scheme
Trust
NHDC Limited Employee 442 317 476 377
Leave Encashment Trust
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(vi) Significant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Company

(i.e., Central Government)

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Name of Entity/ Govt.

Nature of

Detail of

For the period
ended

For the period
ended

the Company

Agency Transaction | Transaction 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
. Services .
Centrgl Industrial Received by Secgrlty 1898 1922
Security Force (CISF) Services
the Company
. . Services .
gondriya Vidyalaya | Receiveq by | Education 307 290
gathan(KVS) Facilities
the Company
Central Water and Services Resaarahi
Power Research Received by Madel Studizs 30 47
Station (CWPRS) the Company
Western Region Services
Power Committee Received by ?Aiii?rsczdies 70 28
(WRPC) the Company
National Informatics Services E-Office
Centre Services Inc. Received by Sapizes 62 48
(NIC) the Company
; , Services -
Indian Institute Of Received by Tralryng 3 i
Management Services
the Company
y ; Services .
ooy [Receveaiy | 10 1 -
the Company
Maulana Azad Services
National Institute of Recaivad b Testing 2 i
Technology (MANIT) , y Services
the Company
Bhopal
National Power Serwpes Sponsorship
s . Received by . 2 -
Training Institute Services
the Company
. . Services -
Natlongl Productivity . Received by Tram_mg 40 i
Council Services
the Company
IIT (Indian School Of Services Resaatoh
Mines), Received by Model Studies 2 -
Dhanbad,Jharkhand the Company
Central Power Services Rasearshi
Research Institute Received by Model Studies 5 -
(CPRI) the Company
Central Board Of Services Training
Irrigation & Power Received by Services 4 -
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(vii) Outstanding balances and guarantees with Central Government:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

: For the period | For the period
Name of Entity/ Govt. Nature of Transaction endgd endcfd
Agenty | 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Central Industrial Security | Payable (unsecured) 195 185
Force (CISF) Receivable (unsecured) 82 82
Kendriya Vidyalaya Payable (unsecured) 1 2
Sangathan(KVS) Receivable (unsecured) 40 21
Central Water and Power | Payable (unsecured) - =
Research .
Station (CWPRS) Receivable (unsecured) 3 41
Sr. Divisional Finance Payable (unsecured) = =
Manager W.Rly. Ratlam Receivable (unsecured) - -
Central Board Of Irrigation | Payable (unsecured) 1 s
& Power Receivable (unsecured) - -
National Informatics Payable-Unsecured - -
Centre Services Inc. Receivable -Unsecured 37 30
Indian Institute Of Payable-Unsecured 3 -
Management, Receivable -Unsecured - -
Indian Institute Of Payable-Unsecured 1 -
Technology Receivable -Unsecured 14 -
National Power Training Payable-Unsecured 1 -
Institute Receivable -Unsecured . -
National Productivity Payable-Unsecured 26 -
Council Receivable -Unsecured = -
Western Central Railway Payable-Unsecured 1851 1851

(viii) Transactions with entities controlled by the Government that has control

over the Parent Company (i.e., CPSUs)

(Amount in  Lakhs)

. For the For the
Name of Entity/ Govt. Nature of Detail of period period
Agency Transaction Transaction ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Purchase of
Purchase of ;
Equipments & - -
Assets .
. Erection
Bharat Heavy Electricals
. Purchase of Purchase of
Limited (BHEL) - -
Spares Spares
Sanieds Maintenance
Received by : 87 -
Services
the Company
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, OTC charges
Serw;:es Cloud
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Eicggﬁqd :Z Service & 158 125
Limited (BSNL) Pany | mpLs
Purchase of Satelite 9 i
.| Goods Phone
Indian OQil Corporation chrﬂ;?se ot Purchase of 11 11
LTD. (IOCL) 9 HSD Oil
inventory
The New India Assurance | Services Insurance
Company Limited Received by ; 1888 1499
Premium
the Company
United Insurance Services Insurance
Company Limited Received by P . 1 2
remium
the Company
. ! Services
Power Grid Corporation of ) Insurance
India Limited (PGCIL) Received by | bromium 4 3
the Company
. Services '
gentral WarehOUSIng Received by Pest Control 13 9
orporation
the Company
Railtel Corporation of Services
India Ltd. Received by Services 17 17
the Company
Security Printing and .
Minting Corporation of Purchase of Pyrchasg of 36 i
LS Goods Silver Coins
India Limited

(viii) Outstanding balances and guarantees with Entities Controlled that has control over

the Parent Company (NHPC) i.e. (CPSU):

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Name of Related Party Nature of As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2024
Balance
Payable 14
Bharat Sanchar Nigam (unsecured)
Limited (BSNL) Receivable
12
(unsecured)
Payable
The New India Assurance (unsecured) )
Company Limited Receivable
1,158
(unsecured)
Payable 4
Central Warehousing (unsecured)
Corporation Receivable
(unsecured) )
Payable
Indian Qil Corporation (unsecured) )
Limited (IOCL) Receivable
(unsecured) )
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Payable i 5
Railtel Corporation of India (unsecured)
Ltd. Receivable 6

11

(unsecured)

Payable
Power Grid Corporation of (unsecured) i i
India Limited (PGCIL) Receivable i 3

(unsecured)

Payable
United India Assurance (unsecured) ] i
Company Limited Receivable

(unsecured) } i

C) Other notes to related party transactions:
(i) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties:

(a) Transactions with the state governments and entities controlled by the
Government of India are carried out at market terms on arms- length basis
through a transparent price discovery process against open tenders, except in a
few cases of procurement of spares/services from Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEMs) for proprietary items on single tender basis due to
urgency, compatibility or other reasons. Such single tender procurements are
also done through a process of negotiation with prices benchmarked against
available price data of same/similar items.

(b) Consultancy services received by the Company from Parent Company are
generally on nomination basis at the terms, conditions and principles applicable
for consultancy services provided to other parties.

(c) Outstanding balances of Parent company as at 31.03.2025 are unsecured and
settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances other than
loans are interest free. No impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed
by related parties has been recognised. Assessment of impairment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.

(d) Contributions to post-employment benefit plans are net of refunds from trusts.

10. Particulars of Security: The carrying amount of assets mortgaged/ hypothecated as

security for borrowings are as under.
(Amount in % Lakhs)

S. | Particulars As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024
No Specific Common Specific Common
Assets Assets Assets Assets

mortgaged/ mortgaged/ mortgaged/ mortgaged/
hypothecated | hypothecated | hypothecated | hypothecated
against against against against
Borrowings Borrowings # | Borrowings Borrowings #

1 Property, Plant &
Equipment - - . -
2 Capital work in
progress = = - -
3 Financial Assets-
Others ~ - - -
Total - - - -
# The actual value of security pledged against common pool of assets is  NIL as on
31.03.2025 (Previous Year ¥ NIL)
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11. Disclosures Under Ind AS-19 “Employee Benefits”:

(A) Defined Contribution Plans-

(i)

(ii)

Social Security Scheme: The Company has a Social Security Scheme in lieu of
the erstwhile scheme of compassionate appointment. The Company also makes a
matching contribution per month per employee and such contribution was in
operation i.e. 01.04.2009. The scheme has been created to take care of and
helping bereaved families in the event of death or permanent total disability of its
employee. The expenses recognised during the year towards social security
scheme are ¥ 23 Lakhs (Previous year 23 Lakhs).

Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation Scheme (EDCSS): The
Company has an employee defined contribution superannuation scheme for
providing pension benefits to employees. As per the scheme, each employee
contributes @ 5% of Basic Pay and Dearness Allowance. The company contributes
to the extent of balance available after deducting employers’ contribution to
Provident Fund, contribution to Gratuity Trust and REHS Trust, from the amount
worked out @ 30% of the Basic Pay and DA. The Scheme is managed by Life
Insurance Corporation of India. The expenses recognised during the year towards
Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation Scheme (EDCSS) are ¥ 539
Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 722 Lakhs).

(B) Defined Benefit Plans- Company has following defined post-employment benefit
obligations:

(a) Description of Plans:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Provident Fund: The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at
predetermined rates to a separate Trust, which invests the funds in permitted
securities. The contribution to the fund for the year is recognised as expense and
is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss/Expenditure Attributable to
Construction. The obligation of the Company is to make fixed contribution and to
ensure a minimum rate of return to the members as specified by Government of
India (Gol).

Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The ceiling limit of
gratuity is fixed as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, whereby every employee
who has rendered continuous service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity
at 15 days salary (15/26 X last drawn basic salary plus dearness allowance) for
each completed year of service subject to a maximum of ¥ 20 Lakhs on
superannuation, resignation, termination, disablement or death. Such ceiling limit
of gratuity shall, however, increase by 25% when Industrial Dearness Allowance
increased by 50%. The plan is being managed by a separate Trust created for the
purpose and obligation of the company is to make contribution to the Trust based
on actuarial valuation.

Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS): The Company has a Retired
Employee Health Scheme, under which retired employee and/or spouse of retiree
and eligible dependent children of deceased/retired employees are provided
medical facilities in the Company hospitals / empanelled hospitals. They can also
avail treatment as Out-Patient subject to a ceiling fixed by the Company. The
liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. The Scheme



(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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is being managed by a separate Trust created for the purpose and obligation of the
company is to make contribution to the Trust based on such actuarial valuation.

Allowances on Retirement/Death: Actual cost of shifting from place of duty at
which employee is posted at the time of retirement to any other place where he /
she may like to settle after retirement is paid as per the rules of the Company. In
case of death, family of deceased employee can also avail this facility. The liability
for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Memento to employees on attaining the age of superannuation: The Company
has a policy of providing Memento valuing % 10,000/- to employee on
superannuation. The liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial
valuation -

Employees Family Economic Rehabilitation Scheme: Company has introduced
“Employees Family Economic Rehabilitation Scheme” w.e.f. 01.04.2021. The
objective of this scheme is to provide monetary assistance and support to an
employee in case of permanent total disablement of the employee and to his family
in case of death of the employee, provided the permanent total disablement / death
as the case may be, takes place while the employee is in service of the Company.
On the separation of an employee from the service of the Company on account of
death / permanent total disablement, the beneficiary is entitled to monthly payment
equivalent to 50% of one-month Basic Pay & DA last drawn by the employee and
other benefits including HRA, Children’s Education Allowance, etc. provided the
beneficiary surrenders with the Company the death/ disablement benefits received
under Social Security Scheme. Liability for the Scheme is recognised on the basis
of actuarial valuation.

(b) Disclosure of Balance Sheet amounts and sensitivity analysis of Plans:

(i) Provident Fund: Movements in the net defined benefit obligation during the years

2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

(if)

ii=(1)-(ii)

2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024

20,050

20,176

(126)

Difference in Opening

2

(2)

Current Service Cost

708

708

Past Service Cost

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

1,670

1,670

Total

2,378

1,672

706

Re-measurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding
amount included in interest expenses
/(Income)

(58)

58

(Gain)/Loss from change in
demographic assumptions

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (Gains)/Losses

10

10

Total

12

70

Contributions:-

-Employer

(708)
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-Additional Contribution Employee
for last year Bank Charges

-Plan participants 971 971 -
Benefit payments (1,042) (1,042) -
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025 22,369 22,427 (58)

Particulars Present Value of Fair value of Net Amount
Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/
(Asset)
(i) (ii) iii=(i)-(ii)
2023-24
Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 18,201 18,331 (130)
Difference in Opening - (154) 154
Current Service Cost 624 - 624
Past Service Cost - - -
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 1,498 1,498 -
Total 2,122 1,344 778
Re-measurements
Return on Plan Asset, excluding
amount included in interest expenses - 276 (276)
/(Income)
(Gain)/Loss from change in ) ) )
demographic_assumptions
(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 2 ) 2
assumptions
Experience (Gains)/Losses 124 - 124
Total 126 276 (150)
Contributions:-
-Employer - 624 (624)
-Additional Contribution Employee ) ) }
for last year Bank Charges
-Plan participants 987 987 -
Benefit payments (1,386) (1,386) -
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024 20,050 20,176 (126)

The net liability disclosed above related to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Present Value of funded obligations 22,369 20,050
Fair value of Plan Assets 22,427 20,176
Deficit/(Surplus) of funded plans (58) (126)
Unfunded Plans - N
Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling (58) (126)

As per the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952, the Company has no right to the benefits either in the form of refund from the

plan or lower future contribution to the plan towards the net surplus of ¥ 58 Lakhs

determined through actuarial valuation. Accordingly, Company has not recognised the

surplus as an asset, and the actuarial gains in Other Comprehensive income, as these
pertain to the Provident Fund Trust and not to the company.
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Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the

weighted principal assumptions is:

. Change in Impact on Defined Benefits Obligation
Particulars . - - . .
Assumptions Increase in Assumption Decrease in Assumptions
31.03.25)/ 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24
Discount o o, |Decrease o o Increase B o
Rate 0.50% | 0.50% by 0.01% 0.01% by 0.01% 0.01%

(ii) Gratuity: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024

along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during the years 2024-25 and

2023-24 are as follows:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Fair value of

Particulars Presen_t Vallue Net {\mount
of Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/(Asset)
(i) (ii) iii=(i)-(ii)
2024-25
Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024 3,413 3,447 (34)
Adjustments - -
Current Service Cost 124 124
Past Service Cost s - =
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 243 245 (2)
Total Amount recognised in Profit or 367 245 122
Loss
Re-measurements _
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount s 15 (15)
included in interest expenses/(Income)
(Gain)/Loss_ from _ change in (9) - (9)
demographic assumptions
(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 139 - 139
assumptions
Experience (Gains)/Losses (73) - (73)
Total Amount recognised in Other 57 15 42
Comprehensive Income
Contributions:-
-Employer - - -
-Plan participants - - -
-Withdrawal from Fund (34) 34
Benefit payments (75) - (75)
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025 3,762 3,673 89

[8S]
o
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Pattisiilars Present Value Fair value of Net {\mount
of Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/(Asset)
(i) (ii) iti=(i)-(ii)
2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 3,197 3,433 (236)
Adjustments - -
Current Service Cost 135 135
Past Service Cost - - -
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 235 252 (17)
Total Amount recognised in Profit or 370 252 118
Loss
Re-measurements
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount = (2) 2
included in interest expenses/(Income)
(Gain)/Loss from change in 10 - 10
demographic assumptions
(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 77 = 77
assumptions
Experience (Gains)/Losses (111) - (111)
Total Amount recognised in Other (24) (2) (22)
Comprehensive Income
Contributions:-
-Employer - - -
-Withdrawal from Fund - (236) 236
Benefit payments (130) B (130)
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024 3,413 3,447 (34)

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed
above are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of ¥ 9 Lakhs
(Previous year ¥ 22 Lakhs) accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of

employees of NHDC posted in the Parent of the Company.

The net liability disclosed above related to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

(Amountin 2 Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Present Value of funded obligations 3,762 3,413
Fair value of Plan Assets 3,673 3,447
Deficit/(Surplus) of funded plans 89 (34)
Unfunded Plans 3 =
Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling 89 (34)
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Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

Particulars Change in Impact on Defined Benefits Obligation
assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions

31.03.25 | 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24
Discount 0.50% 0.50% Decrease 4.499% 461% Increase 4.71% 4.92%
Rate by by

Decrease

Salary 0.50% | 0.50% | 'MCrease| 4 oge | 4.54% 1.46% | 1.72%
growth rate by by

(ii) Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS): The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
as at 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation
during the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Bartioulaes Present Value of Fair value of Net Amount
Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/(Asset)
(i) (ii) iii=(i)-(ii)
2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024 2,699 2,375 324

Current Service Cost 150 - 150

Past Service Cost = - -

Interest Expenses/ (Income) 192 169 23

Total Amount recognised in Profit or 342 169 173

Loss

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount . 51 (51)

included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic (4) . (4)

assumptions

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 62 - 62

assumptions

Experience (Gains)/Losses 236 . 295

Total Amount recognised in Other 204 51 243

Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers - 324 (324)

-Plan Participants - - -

-Withdrawal from fund (34) 34

Benefit payments (35) - (35)

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025 3,300 2,885 415

24
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Particulars Present Value of Fair value of Net Amount
Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/(Asset)
(i) (ii) iii=(i)-(ii)
2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 2232 1740 492

Current Service Cost 125 - 125

Past Service Cost - = =

Interest Expenses/ (Income) 164 128 36

Total Amount recognised in Profit or 289 128 161

Loss

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount _ 30 (30)

included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic (4) - (4)

assumptions

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 57 - 57

assumptions

Experience (Gains)/Losses 141 = 141

Total Amount recognised in Other 194 30 164

Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers - 492 (492)

-Withdrawal from fund - (15) 15

Benefit payments (16) - (16)

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024 2699 2375 324

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Construction and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of ¥ 30 Lakhs accounted as
receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHDC posted in the Parent of the

Company.

The net liability disclosed above related to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Present Value of funded obligations 3,300 2,699
Fair value ¢/ Plzn Assets z,885 2,375
Deficit/(Surplus) of funded plans 415 324
Unfunded Plans = -
Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling 415 324

o
i
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Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

Change in Impact on Defined Benefits Obligation
Particulars assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
‘ 31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24
Discount | 4 5095 0.50% | DBCreaSe | g 190 | 1067% | "®3%8| 9.76% | 10.86%
Rate by by
Medical | 0.50% 0.50% '”Cfase 9.49% | 11.35% Decgeas 9.09% | 10.80%
Cost Rate y e oy

(iv) Allowances on Retirement/Death: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at
31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation

during the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:
Amount in % Lakhs

< Present Value of Fair value of
Particalars Obligation Plan Assets Net Arnaunt
(i) | (ii) iti=(i)-(ii)
2024-25
Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024 150 ) 150
Current Service Cost 9 ) °
Past Service Cost ) ) )
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 1 ) 11
Total Amount recognised in Profit or 20 = 20
Loss
Remeasurements
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount - - B
included in interest expenses/(Income)
(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic (3) - (3)
assumptions
(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 6 - 6
assumptions
Experience (gains)/Losses 8 ) 8
Total Amount recognised in Other 11 = 11
Comprehensive Income
Contributions:-
-Employers - - -
-Plan participants - - -
Benefit payments (3) - 3)
Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025 178 ) ‘ 178
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Parfleulars Preseqt Vglue of Fair value of Net {-\mount
Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/(Asset)
(i) (i) iii=(i)-(ii)
2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 135 135

Current Service Cost 8 8

Past Service Cost - -

Interest Expenses/ (Income) 10 10

Total Amount recognised in Profit or 18 18

Loss

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount = =

included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic 1 1

assumptions

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 4 4

assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses (6) (6)

Total Amount recognised in Other (1) (1)

Comprehensive Income

Contributions:- - =

-Employers - -

-Plan participants - -

Benefit payments (2) (2)

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024 150 150

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of ¥ 1 Lakhs (Previous year
% 1 Lakhs) accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHDC

posted in the Parent of the Company.

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans.

Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted

principal assumptions is:

Particulars Change in Impact on Defined Benefits Obllg.atnon
assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24
[R)'SC"“”t 0.50% 0.50%  |P°°®@%e 4 90% | 6.07% Increase \* 4 92% | 6.09%
ate by by
oSt 0.50% | 050% || 4999 |6.18% P 487% | 6.03%
ncrease by by
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(v) Memento to employees on attaining the age of superannuation: The amount recognised in
the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined
benefit obligation during the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars

Present Value
of Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

(i)

iii=(i)-(ii)

2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024

11

11

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

Total Amount recognised in Profit or
Loss

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/Loss from financial

assumptions

change in

Experience (Gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan Participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025

12

12

Particulars

Present Value
of Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

(ii)

iii=(i)-(ii)

2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023

10

10

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

Total Amount recognised in Profit or
Loss
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Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/Loss from changé in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/Loss  from financial

assumptions

change in

Experience (Gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan Participants

Benefit payments

(1) -

(1)

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

11 -

11

year Z NIL Lakhs)

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans.

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of ¥ NIL Lakhs (Previous
accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of
NHDC posted in the Parent of the Company.

Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the
weighted principal assumptions is:

Paificalars Change in Impact on Defined Benefits Obligation
assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
31.03.25 | 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24
iscount | 0 50% | 0.50% |P°T®2€| 5350, | 5.50% |3\ 5549 | 570%
Rate by by

(vi) NHDC Employees Family Economic Rehabilitation Scheme: The amount recognised in the
Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined
benefit obligation during the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Present Value Fair value of Net Amount
Particulars s Obligation/
of Obligation Plan Assets
(Asset)
(i) (i) iii=(i)-(ii)
2024-25
Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024 587 587
35 35

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost

29




NHDC LIMITED

Interest Expenses/ (Income) 42 B 42

Total Amount recognised in Profit or Loss 7 ) "

Reméasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount = - -

included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic = . =

assumptions

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 17 z 17

assumptions

Experience (Gains)/Losses (9) N (9)

Total Amount recognised in Other 8 - 8

Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers ) B -

-Plan participants B B )

Benefit payments (13) B (13)
659 - 659

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025

Present Value

Fair value of

Net Amount

PRI of Obligation | Plan Assets Ghligation/
(Asset)
(i) (ii) iii=(i)-(ii)
2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023 557 - 557
Current Service Cost 29 ) 29
Past Service Cost B ) B
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 41 i} 41
Total Amount recognised in Profit or Loss 70 ) 70
Remeasurements
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)
(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic 5 s -
assumptions
(Gair.)/Loss from change in financial 2 - 21
assumptions
Experience (Gains)/Losses (51) B (51)
Total Amount recognised in Other (30) - (30)

Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-
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-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments (10) . (10)
587 - 587

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of ¥ NIL (Previous year ¥
NIL) accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHDC posted
in the Parent of the Company.

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans.

Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

] Change in Impact on Defined Benefits Obligation
Particulars . - - - :
assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
31'g3'2 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24 31.03.25 31.03.24
Discount | 4 500, | 0.50%  |Pecrease| 5 340, 3.15% |\NC183%e| 3540 3.50%
Rate by by
(c) Defined Benefit Plans: Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March
2024
Discount Rate 6.69% 7.11%
Salary growth rate 6.50% 6.50%

(d) The major categories of Plan Assets are as follows:

(i) Provident Fund:
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025
Quoted Unquoted Total In %

Debt Instruments :

Government Bonds 12227 - 12227 54.52%
Corporate Bonds 7381 - 7381 32.91%
Investment Funds - - -

Mutual Funds 2137 - 2137 9.53%
Cash & Cash Equivalents - 238 238 1.06%
Accrued Interest 444 - 444 1.98%
Total 22189 238 22427 100%
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Particulars 31st March 2024
Quoted Unquoted Total In%
Debt Instruments
Government Bonds 11412 - 11412 56.56%
Corporate Bonds 6740 - 6740 33.41%
Investment Funds - - =
Mutual Funds 1562 - 1562 7.74%
Cash & Cash Equivalents 397 . 397 1.97%
Accrued Interest - 65 65 0.32%
Total 20111 65 20176 100.00%
(ii) Gratuity
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March 2025
Quoted Unquoted Total In %
Investment Funds
LIC Scheme - 3673 3673 100%
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - - 0%
Total - 3673 3673 100%
Particulars 31st March 2024
Quoted Unquoted Total In %
Investment Funds
LIC Scheme - 3446 3446 99.99%
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1 1 0.01%
Total - 3447 3447 100.00%

(iii) Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS):

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025
Quoted Unquoted Total In %
Debt Instruments

34.00%
Government Bonds 981 B 981 °
23.58%
Corporate Bonds 680 ) 680 )

Investment Funds R _ _
Fixed Deposit _ 1133 1133 39290/0
Accrued Interest ) 83 83 2.87%
. } 8 8 0.26%

| Cash & Cash Equivalents

100%
Total 1,661 1,224 2,885 0

(95
o
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Particulars 31st March 2024
Quoted Unquoted Total In %

Debt Instruments } 3 ' 3
Government Bonds 984 - 984 41.45%
Corporate Bonds 682 - 682 28.70%
Investment Funds , - -

Fixed Deposit ; 624 624 26.27%
Accrued Interest - 80 80 3.37%
Cash & Cash Equivalents 3 o o 0:21%
Total 1,666 709 2,375 100%

(e) Risk Exposure: Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number
of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

(V)

Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over

time. As such, the company is exposed to various risks as follows:

A) Salary Increase- Actual salary increase will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in
salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets-liabilities mismatch and actual
investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability.

C) Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the

plan’s liability.

D) Mortality and disability — Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher
than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals
and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions: Funding levels are monitored on

an annual basis and the current contribution rate is 30% of basic salary and dearness
allowance. The Company considers that the contribution rates set at the last valuation date
are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the agreed period and that regular contributions,
which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly.
Expected contributions to defined-benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2026 are #1258
Lakhs ( March 31, 2025 ¥ 1139 Lakhs)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 11.40 Years ( 11.95 Years

2023-2024).

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit plans is as follows:
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The expected maturity analysis of Provident Fund (NHDC Ltd. Employees Provident

Fund)
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars Between 0-1 | Between 1-5 | Between 5- | Over 10 years Total
years years 10 years
31.03.2025 1294 2891 7993 10191| 22369
31.03.2024 925 1408 3924 13793 20050

The expected  maturity analysis of Gratuity (NHDC Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity
Assurance Fund), Post employment Medical Benefits (NHDC Ltd. Retired Employees
Health Scheme Trust), Allowances on Retirement/Death, Memento and NHDC Employees

Family Economic Rehabilitation

Scheme.

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars

Less than a
year

2 years

Between 1-

Between 2-
5 years

Over 5 years

Total

31.03.2025

Gratuity

125

83

415

3,139

3,762

Post-employment
Medical Benefits
REHS)

47

92

200

3,002

3,301

Allowances on
Retirement/Death

3 15

156

177

Memento to
employees on
attaining the age of
superannuation

- 1

11

12

Employees Family
Economic
Rehabilitation
Scheme.

23

25 79

532

659

TOTAL

198

163

710

6,840

7,911

31.03.2024

Gratuity

110

113

289

2901

3413

Post-employment
Medical Benefits
(REHS)

37 43

163

2457

2700

Allowances on
Retirement/Death

4 10

134

150

Memento to
employees on
attaining the age of
superannuation

11

Employees Family
Economic
Rehabilitation
Scheme.

14

15 49

509

587

TOTAL

163

176

512

6010

6861
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(C) Other long-term employee benefits (Leave Benefit): The Company provides for earned
leave and half-pay leave to the employees which accrue annually @ 30 days and 20 days
respectively. Earned Leave (EL) is also encashable while in service. The maximum ceiling of
encashment of earned leave is limited to 300 days. However, any shortfall in the maximum
limit of 300 days in earned leave on superannuation shall be fulfilled by half pay leave to that
extent. The liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. The
expenses recognised during the year on the basis of actuarial valuation are ¥415 Lakhs.
(Previous year 317 Lakhs).

12. Particulars of income and expenditure in foreign currency and consumption of spares are

as under: -

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Sl. | Particulars For the year For the year
No ended ended
. , 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
i) Interest - -
i) Other Misc. Matters = -
b) | Value of spare parts and Components
consumed in operating units.
i) Imported = -
i) Indigenous 331 194
C) Income in Foreign Currency (Specify Nature)
) Interest = -
ii) Other Misc. Matters . =

13. Earnings Per Share:

a) The Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) are as under:

Particulars For the year For the year

' ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Earnings per Share before movement in

Regulatory Deferrals Account Balances () — Basic 357.11 331.19

and Diluted

Earnings per Share after movement in Regulatory

Deferrals Account Balances (%) — Basic and Diluted AEEAG 413.86

Par value per share () 1000 1000

b) Reconciliation of Earning used in calculating Earnings Per Share:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Net Profit after Tax but before movements in

Regulatory Deferral Account Balances usea as 70087 64998

numerator

Net Profit after Tax and movements in

Regulatory Account Balances used as 83696 81224

numerator
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c) Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares used as denominator:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Weighted Average number of equity shares used
5% Hensminaior 1,96,25,800 1,96,25,800

Disclosure related to Confirmation of Balances is as under:

(a) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from

banks and other parties. There are no unconfirmed balances in respect of bank
accounts and borrowings from banks & financial institutions. With regard to
receivables for energy sales, the Company sends demand intimations to the
beneficiaries with details of amount paid and balance outstanding which can be
said to be automatically confirmed on receipt of subsequent payment from such
beneficiaries. In addition, reconciliation with beneficiaries and other customers is
generally done on quarterly basis.

(b) The confirmation in respect of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, loans,

Advances to Contractors/ Suppliers/ Service Providers/ Others including for
capital expenditure have been sought for outstanding balances of ¥ 5 Lakhs or
above in respect of each party as at 315 December, 2024. Status of confirmation
of balances against total outstanding as at December 31, 2024 as well as total

outstanding as on 31.03.2025 is as under:
(Amount in % Lakhs)

Particulars Total Amount Total
outstanding confirmed | outstanding
amount as amount as
on on
31.12.2024 31.03.2025
Trade receivable (Including interest,
late payment surcharge receivable 28089 20410 26817

from beneficiaries and excluding
Unbilled sales)

Loans and Advances to contractors/ »
suppliers/service providers/ others 377 91 727
including for capital expenditure

Trade/Other payables 12737 8966 13402

Security Deposit/Retention Money
payable

397 109 432

* Confirmation available for 31.03.2025 only is being shown excluding unbilled
receivables.

(c) In the opinion of the management, unconfirmed balances will not require any adjustment
having any material impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.
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15. Disclosure related to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Refer Note 29)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company is required to spend, in every
financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made
during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR
Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under:

(Amount in % Lakhs)

S. Particulars For the year | For the year
No ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A Amount required to be spent during the year
(i)  Gross amount (2% of average net profit 1850 1691
as per Section 135 of Companies
Act,2013)

(i) Surplus arising out of CSR project = -
(iii)  Set off available from previous year = -

(iv) Total CSR obligation for the year [(i)+(ii) 1850 1691
-(iii)]

B Amount approved by the Board to be spent

: 2775 2392
during the year
| C Amount spent during the year 1926 1947
D Excess spent carry forward for succeeding NIL NIL
years
E Amount Unspent during the year - -

The breakup of CSR expenditure under various heads of expenses incurred is as below:

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Sl. " Heads of Expenses constituting For the year For the
No. CSR expenses ended year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 Health Care and Sanitation 1121 1,140
2 Education and Skill Development 692 566
3 Women Empowerment /Senior Citizen ) )
4 Environment | ° 3
5 Art and Culture _ ) )
6 Ex- Armed Forces ) )
7 Sports i ,
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8 Rural Development 10 142
9 Swachh Vidyalaya Abhiyan } )
10 Swachh Bharat Abhiyan ) )
11 Disaster Management ) )
12 Contribution to Central Government Fund - -
(including Contribution to PM CARES Fund)
13 Administrative Overhead 91 92
14 CSR Impact assessment 3 4
Total amount 1,926 1,947

(iifi)

Other disclosures: -

(a) Details of expenditure incurred during the year paid and yet to be paid along with the nature
of expenditure (capital or revenue nature) is as under: -

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars For the period ended on For the period ended on
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Paid Yet to Total (a+b) Paid Yet to Total
(a) be paid (a) be paid (a+b)
(b) (b)
(i) | Construction/
Acquisition  of 1102 142 1244 982 120 1102
any asset
(i) | On purpose
other than (i) 681 1 682 824 21 845
above
Total 1783 143 1926 1806 141 1947

(b ) As stated above, a gross sum of 143 Lakhs out of the total expenditure of ¥1926Lakhs is yet to
be paid to concerned parties which are included in the relevant head of accounts pertaining to
liabilities.

16. Disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 read with notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 11
October,2018 to the extent information available with management are as under:

(Amount in % Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

Particulars

As at
31.03.2025

As at
31.03.2024

(i)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier on Balance Sheet
date:
a) Trade Payables:

-Principal (Refer Note 20.3)

-Interest
b) Others:

-Principal (Refer Note 20.4)

-Interest

855

567

904

731

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
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payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during the year.

(iii) | The amount of interest due and payable for the year of

delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without - -
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(iv) | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid -

as on Balance Sheet date.

(v) | The amount of further interest remaining due and

payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the -
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006.

17. Disclosures regarding leases as per IND AS -116 “Leases”:

A) Company as Lessee:

(i)

Treatment of Leases as per Ind AS 116:

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the
contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and
telephones). For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate.

The Company has applied the following practical expedients on initial application of Ind AS 116:

a.

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic

environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases lwith'
less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

c. Excluded the initial direct costs, if any from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at

the date of recognition of right-of-use asset.

d. Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend

or terminate the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to leases recognised during FY

2024-25is 7.47%.

(i) Nature of lease: The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of the

following assets:
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(a) Premises under cancellable lease arrangements for residential use of employees
ranging from 3-4 months to three years.

(b) Premises for offices, guest houses and transit camps on lease which are not non-
cancellable and are usually renewable on mutually agreeable terms.

(c) Land obtained on lease for construction of projects and / or administrative offices.

(d) Vehicles on operating leases generally for a period of 1 to 2 years and such leases
are not non-cancellable.

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss / Expenditure Attributable to Construction
in respect of short term, low value and variable lease are as under:

(iif)
(iv)

B)

(Amount in % Lakhs)

S. Description 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024

No .

1 Expenditure on short-term leases - 31 34

2 Expenditure on lease of low-value assets - -

3 Variable lease payments not included in the = -
measurement of lease liabilities

Commitment for Short Term Leases as on 31.03.2025 is ¥ NIL. (Previous Year Z NIL.).

Movement in lease liabilities during the year:
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Opening Balance 71 39
Additions in lease liabilities 5167 38
Finance cost accrued during the year 162 6
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 187 12
Closing Balance 5213 71
Lease Liabilities-Current 194 7
Lease Liabilities-Non-Current 5019 64

Finance Lease — Company as Lessor

The Company has entered into an arrangement with a single beneficiary, M P Power
Management Company for sale of the entire power generated by two power stations,
namely Indira Sagar and Omkareshwar Power Stations for the substantial period of the
stipulated life of these Power Stations. Under the agreements, the customer is obliged to
purchase the entire output at prices determined by the Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC). The Company has classified the Power Station as embedded
Finance Lease as per Appendix-C to Ind AS 17- Leases. The Company has elected to use
the practical expedient not to apply this Standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying Ind AS 17. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17. Other financial
assets (Current and Non-Current) include lease receivables representing the present value
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of future lease rentals receivable on the embedded finance lease arrangements entered

into by the company.

The Company has earned “Income from Finance Lease” of ¥ 50359 Lakhs during the year

(previous year ¥ 50702 Lakhs)

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease receivables, showing the
undiscounted lease payments to be received after the end of the financial year as at

31.03.2025:

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
undiscounted lease payments receivable:
Less than one year 56564 56610
One to two years 55459 55534
Two to three years 54354 54458
Three to four years 53248 53382
Four to five years 52363 52305
More than five years 823253 864896
Total' undiscounted lease payments receivable 1095241 1137185
Add: unguaranteed residual value 43723 43101
Less: Unearned finance income 772899 814162
Net investment in the lease 366065 366124
Discounted unguaranteed residual value included 381 2035

in the Net investment in lease

Significant changes in the carrying amount of the net investment in finance leases

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Opening Balances 366124 366961
Additions during the year 6708 5891
Income from Finance Lease for the year 50359 50702
Less: Amount received during the year 57126 57430
Closing Balances 366065 366124
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18. Disclosures under Ind AS-27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’:

19.

20.

(a) Interest of Parent:

Principal Principal Proportion of Ownership
N fC : place of activities interest as at
AMERILOmPARES | spention 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
NHPC Limited India Power 51.08% 51.08%
Generation

Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets requires an entity to assess on each Balance Sheet date
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the entity is required to estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. If there is no indication
of a potential impairment loss, the Standard does not require an enterprise to make a formal
estimate of the recoverable amount.

Management has determined that each of the Project / Power Station of the Company is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that is
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets and accordingly
qualifies to be designated as a Cash Generating Unit (CGU). Impairment indicators applicable
to these CGUs have been assessed and based on such assessment, Management is of the
opinion that no significant change with an adverse effect on the Company has taken place
during the year, or is expected to take place in the near future, in the technological, economic
or legal environment in which the Company operate. Based on the assessment, there exists
no significant indicator that would suggest an impairment of the carrying amounts of the CGUs
of the company during 2024-25.

Nature and details of provisions (refer Note No. 17 and 22)

(i) General

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a Finance Cost.

(ii) Provision for employee benefits (Other than provisions for defined contribution
and defined benefit plans which have been disclosed as per Ind AS-19 at S. No. 11
of Note No. 34):

a) Provision for Performance Related Pay/Incentive:

Short-term Provision has been recognised in the accounts towards Performance Related
Pay/ incentive to employees on the basis of Management estimates as per company’s
rules in this regard which are based on the gwdehnes of the Department of Public
Enterprises, Government of India.
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b) Provision For Employee Remuneration-Pay Anomaly

Order of the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court in the matter of NHPC Officers
Association Vs. Union of India & Others and All India Diploma Engineers Council and
Others Vs. Union of India & Others as per which pay anomalies in certain scales of pay
were to be resolved w.e.f January 1, 1997 was received during the FY 2024-25. Provision
of arrears payable to NHPC employees posted in NHDC has been estimated and
accounted for as on 31.03.2025.

(i) Other Provisions:

a) Provision For Tariff Adjustment:

Provision for tariff adjustment is made on estimated basis against probable refund to
beneficiaries on reassessment of tariff billed, pending approval of Tariff/truing up for the Year
2014-19/2019-24 by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC).

b) Provision for Committed Capital Expenditure:

Provision has been recognised at discounted value in case of non- current amount for Capital
Expenditure to be incurred towards environment, compensatory afforestation, local area
development, etc. which was a pre-condition for granting approval for construction of the
project and expenditure towards which had not been completed till commissioning of the
project. Such provisions are adjusted against the incurrence of actual expenditure as per
demand raised by the concerned State Government Authorities.

c) Provision for restoration expenses of insured assets:

Provision has been recognised in the accounts based on Management Estimates for
restoration of damaged assets insured under Mega and Construction Plant and Machinery
Policy. Utilization of the provision is to be made against incurrence of actual expenditure
towards restoration of the assets.

d) Provisions for expenditure in respect of Arbitration Award/Court cases:

This includes provisions created on the basis of management assessment as to probable
outflow in respect of contractors claims against which arbitration award/Court decision have
been received and which have been further challenged in a Court of Law. Utilization/outflow
of the provision is to be made on the outcome of the case.

e) Provisions- Others: This includes provisions towards: -

(i) Contractor claims, Land compensation cases, disputed tax demands and other cases
created on the basis of management assessment towards probable outflow.
Utilization/outflow of the provision is to be made on the outcome of the case.

(i) Wage revision of Central Government Employees whose services are utilised by the
company.

(iii) Provision for interest to beneficiaries on excess tariff recovered in terms of Tariff
Regulations for the Year 2019-24 where the capital cost considered for fixation of tariff
by the CERC on the basis of projected capital cost as on Commercial Operation Date or
the projected additional capital expenditure exceeds the actual capital cost incurred.
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(iv) Upfront provision for rebate towards interest on House Building Advance provided to
employees based on the historical trend of rebate allowed.

(v) Upfront provision for rebate to customers for sale of power based on the historical trend
of rebate allowed.

Disclosures relating to creation of Regulatory Deferral Account (RDA)balances as per
Ind AS 114:

The Company is principally engaged in the construction and operation of hydroelectric power
projects. The price (tariff) to be charged by the company for electricity sold to its customers
is determined by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) under applicable CERC
(terms and conditions of tariff) Regulations. The said price (tariff) is based on allowable costs
like interest costs, depreciation, operation and maintenance charges plus a stipulated return.
This form of rate regulation is known as cost-of-service regulations. The basic objective of
such regulations is to give the entity the opportunity to recover its costs of providing the goods
or services plus a fair return.

For the purpose, the Company is required to make an application to CERC based on capital
expenditure incurred duly certified by the Auditors or already admitted by CERC or projected
to be incurred up to the date of commercial operation and additional capital expenditure duly
certified by the Auditor or projected to be incurred during tariff year. The tariff determined by
CERC is recovered from the customers (beneficiaries) on whom the same is binding.

The above rate regulation results in creation of right (asset) or an obligation (liability) as
envisaged in the accounting framework which is not the case in other industries. Guidance
Note on Accounting for Rate Regulated Activities (Previous GAAP) issued by the ICAI is
applicable to entities that provide goods or services whose prices are subject to cost-of-
service regulations and the tariff determined by the regulator is binding on the customers
(beneficiaries). As per guidance note, a regulatory asset is recognized when it is probable (a
reasonable assurance) that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the
entity as a result of the actual or expected actions of the regulator under applicable regulatory
framework and the amount can be measured reliably.

The guidance note also provides that in some cases, a regulator permits an entity to include
in the rate base, as part of the cost of self-constructed (tangible) fixed assets or internally
generated intangible assets, amounts that would otherwise be recognized as expense in the
statement of profit and loss in accordance with Accounting Standards.

With effect from 01.04.2016, such rate regulated items are to be accounted for as per Ind AS
114 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts.’ Ind AS 114 allows an entity to continue to apply previous
GAAP accounting policies for the recognition, measurement and impairment and
derecognition of regulatory deferral account balances. For this purpose, Guidance Note of
the ICAI on ‘Accounting for Rate Regulated Activities’ shall be considered to be the Previous
GAAP.

Regulatory Deferral Account balances on account of deferred tax recoverable from
beneficiaries:

As per CERC Tariff Regulations, deferred tax arising out of generating income for the tariff
period 2004-09 is recoverable from beneficiaries in the year the same materializes as current
tax. For the tariff period 2014-19/2019-24, deferred tax is recoverable by way of grossing up
the Return on Equity by the effective tax rate based on actual tax paid. Till 31st March, 2018
the deferred tax recoverable from beneficiaries in future years was presented as an
adjustment to deferred tax liability and was not recognised as RDA.
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The practice was reviewed based on an opinion of the Expert Advisory Committee of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (EAC of the ICAIl) obtained during FY 2019-20.
Such deferral account balance which as per EAC of ICAl is not a deductible temporary
difference resulting into deferred tax asset under Ind AS 12, rather fulfils the definition of
regulatory deferral account balance in terms of Ind AS 114.

Accordingly, the Company had reclassified the deferred tax recoverable upto 2009 and
deferred tax adjustment against deferred tax liabilities pertaining to tariff period 2014-19
earlier presented as an adjustment to Deferred Tax Liability, as a Regulatory Deferral Account
balance.

As per Tariff Regulations 2019-24 & 2024-29 notified by the CERC, there is no change in
mode of recovery of current tax and deferred tax as provided in the earlier Tariff Regulations
2014-19.

The regulated assets (+)/liability (-) recognized in the books to be recovered from or payable
to beneficiaries in future periods are as follows:

In respect of deferred tax recoverable for tariff period upto 2009:
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Sl.No. | Particulars Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances

A Opening balance as on 01.04.2024 25197

B Addition during the year (assets (+)/ liability (-)) -

C Amount collected (-)/refunded (+) during the year 1079

D Regulatory income/(expense) recognized in the Statement 1079
of Profit and Loss (B-C) ( )

E Closing balance as on 31.03.2025 (A+D) 24118

In respect of deferred tax adjustment against deferred tax liabilities (pertaining to tariff

period 2014-19 and onwards):
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Sl.No. | Particulars Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances
A Opening balance as on 01.04.2024 15600
B Addition during the year (assets (+)/ liability (-)) 1325
Cc Amount collected (-)/refunded (+) during the year -
D Regulatory income/(expense) recognized in the Statement 1325
of Profit and Loss (B-C)
E Closing balance as on 31.03.2025 (A+D) : 16925
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Regulatory Deferral Account Credit balances on account of Minimum Alternative Tax
(MAT) Credit:

As per IND AS 12, Deferred Tax Assets shall be recognised for the unused tax credit to the
extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will be available against which unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

The company has recognised Deferred Tax Assets on account of MAT Credit entitlement.
Further, in lines with CERC guidelines, for Tariff period 2019-24/2024-29, the ROE is to be
grossed up by effective tax rate based on actual tax paid. Hence out of the MAT credit
entitlement the share of MAT credit payable to beneficiaries towards ROE has been credited
to Regulatory Deferral Account (Credit) balances.

The Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Credit Balances recognized in respect of MAT
Credit payable to beneficiaries in future periods are as follows:

(Amount in Z Lakhs)

Particulars Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances
A Opening balance as on 01.04.2024 42477
B Addition during the year (assets (+)/ liability (-)) 2718
C Amount collected (-)/refunded (+) during the year 16081
D ifgft:tlzt:crjyl—lgzgrzw;/ée)xpense) recognized in the Statement of (13363)
E Closing balance as on 31.03.2025 (A+D) 29114

Recoverability of Regulatory Deferral Account balance recognised on account of deferred tax
recoverable/ payable upto tariff period 2004-2009, deferred tax adjustment against deferred tax
liabilities pertaining to tariff period 2014-19 onwards and discharge of Regulatory Deferral
Account (Credit) balance created on MAT Credit are dependent upon the future operating
performance of the Company. Further, since these Regulatory Deferral Account balances relate
to past tariff periods, recoverability is also subject to the regulatory risk of CERC allowing
recovery of such balances in future tariff regulations.

Following is the disclosure
regarding balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013
or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 as per requirement of Schedule-lll of the
Companies Act, 2013: '

Name of the |Nature of transactions with  |Balance Relationship Balance Relationship|
struck off  |struck off company Outstanding |with the struck [Outstanding as\with the
company as at off company, if |at 31.03.2024 |struck off
31.03.2025 |any, to be company, if
disclosed any, to be
disclosed

Investment in securities

Receivables

Payables

Shares held by struck off
company

Other outstanding
balances (to be specified)
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23. Disclosure regarding Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
(ROC): Following is the disclosure as per requirement of Schedule-lll of the Companies Act,
2013, where any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period:

Brief description Location of the Period (in days or | Reason for delay
of the charges or Registrar months) by which in registration
satisfaction such charge had
to be registered
NIL NIL NIL NIL

24. Disclosure regarding Impact of Change in Accounting Policies:

Description of change in Accounting |Impact on the | Impact on the Line

Policies Statement of | Item of Balance
Profit/Loss - | Sheet as at
Increase in Profit/ | 31.03.2025
(Decrease in
Profit)

Change in Accounting Policy of charging NIL NIL

depreciation of Right of Use Land

Change in Accounting Policy of NIL NIL

amortisation of Intangible Assets

25 Order of the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court in the matter of NHPC Officers Association
Vs. Union of India & Others and All India Diploma Engineers Council and Others Vs. Union
of India & Others as per which pay anomalies in certain scales of pay were to be resolved
w.e.f January 1, 1997 was received during the year ended 31st March, 2025. Pursuant to
the said Order, arrears payable to NHPC employees posted in NHDC, has been estimated
at ¥ 893 Lakhs. Out of the same, ¥124 Lakhs has been capitalized while ¥ 769 Lakhs has
been charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss, out of which ¥ 278 Lakhs has been
recognized as Unbilled Revenue, being the amount recoverable from beneficiaries as per
applicable CERC Tariff regulations and earlier Tariff Orders.

26. Other Disclosure required under Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ( “ Ultimate
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Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during
the financial year.

(v) The provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable to the company as
per Section 2(45) of the Companies Act,2013

(vi) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

(vii)  The quarterly returns / statement of current assets filed by the company with banks /
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(vii)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. '

(ix) During the financial year, there is no delay by the company in the registration of charges
or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies beyond statutory period.

27. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For B.C.P. Jain & Co. R Jaiy Jé E ‘
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